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This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including ManagetsDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditanmd Results of Operations,
contains forward-looking statements, within the nieg of the Private Securities Litigation ReformtA¢ 1995, that reflect our views about
future events and financial performance. When ursékis report, the words “may,” “will,” “should,“anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “plan,”
“believe,” “feel,” “predict,” “project,” “potentia)’ “intend” and similar expressions are intendeddentify forward-looking statements, which
are generally not historical in nature. Forwardkiog statements include, but are not limited toaficial projections and estimates and their
underlying assumptions; statements regarding ptbjectives and expectations with respect to futyrerations, products and services; and
statements regarding future performance. Forwaollihg statements are subject to known and unknasis and uncertainties, many of which
are difficult to predict and generally beyond oantol, that could cause actual results to diffatenially from those expressed in, or impliec
projected by, the forward-looking information aridtements. You are cautioned not to place undienied on these forward-looking
statements that speak only as of the date hereof.are also urged to carefully review and consibdervarious disclosures made by us, which
attempt to advise interested parties of the fadtmsaffect our business, including “Risk Factast forth in Part I, Item 1A. hereof and our
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdgaion, or SEC, from time to time. Except to théeex otherwise required by federal
securities laws, we do not undertake any obligatiorepublish revised forward-looking statementgeftect events or circumstances after the
date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of ungrdted events.

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K &témms “we,” “our,” “us,” “WellPoint” or the “Comp any” refer to WellPoint, Inc.,
an Indiana corporation, and its direct and indiresttbsidiaries, as the context requires.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
General

We are one of the largest health benefits companiessms of medical membership in the United Staserving 34.3 million medical
members through our affiliated health plans anata bf 65.3 million individuals through all sub&ides as of December 31, 2011. We are an
independent licensee of the Blue Cross and Bluel&hissociation, or BCBSA, an association of indegent health benefit plans. We serve
our members as the Blue Cross licensee for Caldand as the Blue Cross and Blue Shield, or BdiB&)see for: Colorado, Connecticut,
Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri (ex¢hgd30 counties in the Kansas City area), Nevaday Nampshire, New York (as BCBS
10 New York city metropolitan and surrounding coesitand as Blue Cross or BCBS in selected upstabeties only), Ohio, Virginia
(excluding the Northern Virginia suburbs of Washorg D.C.), and Wisconsin. In a majority of thesevice areas we do business as Anthem
Blue Cross, Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield, Bluess and Blue Shield of Georgia, Empire Blue €lsie Shield, or Empire Blue Cross
(in our New York service areas). We also serveausts throughout the country as UniCare and irage@alifornia, Arizona and Nevada
markets through our recently acquired CareMore tHdgatoup, Inc., or CareMore, subsidiary. We areriged to conduct insurance operations
in all 50 states through our subsidiaries.

Our mission is to improve the lives of the peopkeserve and the health of our communities. Weestivachieve our mission by creating
the best health care value in our industry, exogliit day-today execution, and capitalizing on new opportusit@drive growth. By deliverin
on our mission, we expect to create greater valueudr customers and shareholders.

We offer a broad spectrum of netwdsksed managed care plans to the large and smdbenpindividual, Medicaid and senior mark:
Our managed care plans include: preferred proadganizations, or PPOs; health maintenance orgadmiza or HMOSs; point-of-service plans,
or POS plans; traditional indemnity plans and othdirid plans, including consumer-driven healthngleor CDHPs; and hospital only and
limited benefit products. In addition, we providér@ad array of managed care services to self-filiedstomers, including claims processing,
underwriting, stop loss insurance, actuarial sesiprovider network access, medical cost manageisaase management, wellness
programs and other administrative services. Wepiswide an array of specialty products and sesvioeluding life and disability insurance
benefits, dental, vision, behavioral health bersditvices, radiology benefit management, analyiogen personal health care guidance and
long-term care insurance. Finally, we provide sggsito the Federal Government in connection wighRaderal Employee Program, or FEP,
and various Medicare programs.

On August 22, 2011, we completed our acquisitio@afeMore. CareMore is a senior focused health delieery Medicare Advantage
program designed to deliver proactive, integraitedividualized health care. While CareMore currgmitovides services in select California,
Arizona and Nevada markets, we expect to expan@#neMore operating model to other markets in fiytgars. CareMore’s market leading
programs and services provide members with queditg through a hands-on approach to care coordimatonvenient neighborhood care
centers and exercise facilities and intensive tneat of chronic conditions. This approach enhaocesbility to create better health outcomes
for seniors by engaging members both on the frodtaf our relationship, through comprehensive hesdreenings and enhanced preventive
care, and throughout the spectrum of their health oeeds. The acquisition of CareMore supportsiategic plans to capitalize on new
opportunities for growth in the changing marketpland to create the best health care value innolusiry.

The increased focus on health care costs by enysloyee government and consumers has continuedvie ttie growth of alternatives to
traditional indemnity health insurance. HMO, PP@ &gbrid plans, such as POS plans and CDHPs, ave@the various forms of managed
care products that have been developed.
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Through these types of products, insurers attempbhtain the cost of health care by negotiatingreats with hospitals, physicians and other
providers to deliver health care to members atrf@ve rates. These products usually feature metdieakhgement and other quality and cost
optimization measures such as pre-admission reai@happroval for certain non-emergency servicesapthorization of outpatient surgical
procedures, network credentialing to determine ietvork doctors and hospitals have the requiretifications and expertise, and various
levels of care management programs to help mentetisr understand and navigate the medical systeaddition, providers may have
incentives to achieve certain quality measures, siaye medical cost risk or have other incentivegetiver quality medical services in a cost-
effective manner. Also, certain plans offer membecentives for healthy behaviors, such as smokegsation and weight management.
Members are charged periodic, pre-paid premiumsyanérally pay co-payments, coinsurance and/oralides when they receive services.
While the distinctions between the various typeplahs have lessened over recent years, PPO, RDSAP products generally provide
reduced benefits for out-of-network services, whidglitional HMO products generally provide little no reimbursement for non-emergency
out-of-network utilization, but often offer more generduenefit coverage. An HMO plan may also require mersio select one of the netw
primary care physicians to coordinate their car @pprove any specialist or other services.

Economic factors and greater consumer awarenessrbaulted in the increasing popularity of produloeg offer larger, more extensive
networks, more member choice related to coverdygsigians and hospitals, and a desire for greleribility for customers to assume larger
deductibles and co-payments in return for lowenpuens. CDHPs, which are relatively high deductiBrRO products and are often paired with
some type of member tax-advantaged health carenditpee account that can be used at the membextsation to help fund member out-of-
pocket costs, help to meet this demand. CDHPsussally incorporate member education, wellness,cained management programs to help
customers make better informed health care decske believe we are well-positioned in each ofregions to respond to these market
preferences.

For our fully-insured products, we charge a premamd assume all of the health care risk. Undeffaalied and partially-insured
products, we charge a fee for services, and thdogmpor plan sponsor reimburses us for all or nebshe health care costs.

Our medical membership includes seven differentocusr types:

» Local Groug

* National Account:

» BlueCard®

* Individual

* Senior

» State-Sponsored

« FEP

BCBS-branded business generally refers to memhegariservice areas licensed by the BCBSA. Non-BGE®ded business refers to

members in our non-BCBS-branded UniCare and CareMlams. In addition to the above medical membprsté also serve customers who
purchase one or more of our other products or sesuwhat are often ancillary to our health business

Our products are generally developed and marketttdan emphasis on the differing needs of our waricustomers. In particular, our
product development and marketing efforts take &uoount the differing characteristics betweenvéimous customers served by us, as well as
the unique needs of educational and public entitédr groups, federal employee health and bepefigrams, national employers and state-
run programs servicing low-income, high-risk andemserved markets. Each business unit is resgderfsibproduct design, pricing, enrolling,
underwriting and servicing customers in specifistomer types. Overall, we seek to establish
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pricing and product designs to achieve an apprteplével of profitability for each of our custonategories balanced with the competitive
objective to grow market share. We believe thatafritbe keys to our success has been our focuseme tdistinct customer types, which better
enables us to develop benefit plans and serviegsrbet our customers’ unique needs.

We market our products through an extensive netwbikdependent agents and brokers for Individual Senior customers, as well as
for certain Local Group customers with a smallepkryee base. Products for National Accounts andaLGeoup customers with a larger
employee base are generally sold through indepéitdekers or consultants retained by the customeéneorking with industry specialists
from our in-house sales force.

Each of the BCBS member companies, of which thene\89 independent primary licensees as of DeceBiher011, works
cooperatively in a number of ways that create iamt market advantages, especially when compétingery large multi-state employer
groups. As a result of this cooperation, each B@@sber company is able to take advantage of otb@IBlicensees’ substantial provider
networks and discounts when any BCBS member warkseels outside of the state in which their ppl written. This program is referred
as BlueCar® , and is a source of revenue when axgd® member services in the states where we arB@BS licensee to individuals who
are customers of BCBS plans not affiliated withTisis program also provides a national providewoek for our members when they trave
other states.

For additional information describing each of oustomer types, detailed marketing efforts and chariig medical membership over the
last three years, see Part Il, Item 7. “Managersddiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations” included in this
Form 10-K.

Our results of operations depend in large partanuiately predicting health care costs and ouitgltd manage future health care costs
through adequate product pricing, medical managémenduct design and negotiation of favorable ftercontracts.

The aging of the population and other demographéracteristics and advances in medical technologyirtue to contribute to rising
health care costs. Our managed care plans andqgisoaie designed to encourage providers and mentpessticipate in quality, costffective
health benefit programs by using the full rangewfinnovative medical management services, qualitiatives and financial incentives. Our
leading market share and high business retenties enable us to realize the long-term benefitawasting in preventive and early detection
programs. Our ability to provide cost-effective liedenefits products and services is enhanceditira disciplined approach to internal cost
containment, prudent management of our risk exgoand successful integration of acquired businessesldition, our ability to manage
selling, general and administrative costs contirtad®e an increasing driver of our overall profitigya

Our future results of operations will also be impalcby certain external forces and resulting chamgeur business model and strategy.
In 2010, the U.S. Congress passed and the Presiderd into law the Patient Protection and AffdrldaCare Act, or ACA, as well as the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of @0dr HCERA, or collectively, Health Care Reformhieh represents significant change:
the current U.S. health care system. The legisiatidar-reaching and is intended to expand adoeksalth insurance coverage over time by
increasing the eligibility thresholds for most stdMedicaid programs and providing certain otheividials and small businesses with tax
credits to subsidize a portion of the cost of Hemlsurance coverage. As a result of the complefithe law, its impacts on health care in the
United States and the continuing modification antérpretation of Health Care Refomrules, we cannot currently estimate the ultinvaggact
of Health Care Reform on our business, cash fléiwancial condition and results of operations. &dditional discussion, see “Regulation,”
herein and Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in thisrm 10-K.

In addition to the external forces discussed inpitezeding paragraph, our results of operationgnapacted by levels and mix of
membership. Since 2008, we experienced memberskinds due to unfavorable economic conditionsidgivncreased unemployment.
During 2011, this trend reversed and our overall
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membership increased. However, we expect unemplolteeels will remain high throughout 2012, whichilyikely impact our ability to
maintain current membership levels. In addition,beéeve the self-insured portion of our group menship base will continue to increase as a
percentage of total group membership. These meimiperends could have a material adverse effedwrfuture results of operations. See
Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” and Part Il, Item“Kanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of FinahCiandition and Results of Operations”
included in this Form 10-K.

We continue to believe health care is local antitfest we have the strong local presence requoethtierstand and meet local customer
needs. We believe we are well-positioned to delivieat customers want: innovative, choice-basedadfmddable products; distinctive service;
simplified transactions; and better access to médion for quality care. Our local presence, corabiwith our national expertise, have created
opportunities for collaborative programs that redvanysicians and hospitals for clinical quality anaellence. We feel that our commitmen
health improvement and care management providesdaglue to customers and health care professiovadelieve that an essential
ingredient for practical and sustainable improvetsémhealth care is raising health care qualitylevmanaging costs for total cost
affordability. We have identified solutions that Wwelieve will deliver better health care while rethg costs. These include driving innovation
in paying and partnering with providers to compeaproved cost, quality and health along with findiveyv, effective ways to manage risk and
engage the member as a consumer. In addition, @ketsechieve efficiencies from our national saahéle optimizing service performance for
our customers. Finally, we seek to continue taretiize our portfolio of businesses and productd, align our investments to capitalize on
new opportunities to drive growth in both our eixigtand new markets in the future.

We continue to enhance interactions with custon@kers, agents, employees and other stakehdluensgh web-enabled technology
and improving internal operations. Our approaclhuites not only sales and distribution of healthefiés products on the Internet, but also
implementation of advanced capabilities that impregrvice benefiting customers, agents, broketspesviders while optimizing
administrative costs. These enhancements willlzddo improve the quality, coordination and safédthealth care through increased
communications between patients and their physician

We intend to continue pursuing our mission to inverthe lives of the people we serve and the hedltlur communities, while driving
growth in both existing and new markets, includxgansion of the CareMore operating model. At #raestime, we will focus on earnings
share, or EPS, growth through organic membershiipsgemprovements in our operating cost structstigtegic acquisitions and efficient use
of capital.

Significant Events

The more significant events that have occurred theetast five years that have impacted or will &opour capital structure or that have
or will influence how we conduct our business ofiers include:

» Use of Capite—Board of Directors declaration of dividends on coomstock (2011) and authorization for repurchasesio
common stock (2011 and pric

» Acquisition of CareMore, as previously describedl(R)

» Sale of our pharmacy benefits management, or PBiginbss to Express Scripts, Inc., or Express Sc{git09)

» Acquisition of DeCare Dental, LLC, or DeCare (2009)

» Acquisition of Imaging Management Holdings, LLC desubsidiary, American Imaging Management, IncAidd (2007)

For additional information regarding these evesg® Note 3, “Business Combinations and Divestifusesl Note 15, “Capital Stock,” to
our audited consolidated financial statements asdffor the year ended December 31, 2011, includéds Form 10-K.
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Competition

The managed care industry is highly competitivehationally and in our regional markets. Compatitontinues to be intense due to
aggressive marketing, business consolidationsplifgration of new products and increased quaktiaeeness and price sensitivity among
customers.

Health benefits industry participants compete fmstomers mainly on the following factors:

» quality of service;

* access to provider network

» access to care management and wellness prograchaliimg health information;

* innovation, breadth and flexibility of products anehefits;

* reputation (including National Committee on Qualtysurance, or NCQA, accreditation stati

* brand recognition;

e price; anc

» financial stability.

Over the last few years, a health plan’s abilitynteract with employers, members and other thadigs (including health care

professionals) via the Internet has become a rmop@itant competitive factor and we have made diganit investments in technology to
enhance our electronic interaction with provideraployers, members and third parties.

We believe our exclusive right to market productder the most recognized brand in the industry, BAB our most significant markets
provides us with an advantage over our competitiur. provider networks in our markets enable usctieve cost-efficiencies and distinctive
service levels enabling us to offer a broad rarfgeealth benefits to our customers on a more cffstiéve basis than many of our competitors.
We strive to distinguish our products through pdeviaccess, service, care management, product aatubrand recognition.

To build our provider networks, we compete withasthealth benefits plans for the best contracts titspitals, physicians and other
providers. We believe that physicians and othevigers primarily consider member volume, reimbursantrates, timeliness of reimbursem
and administrative service capabilities along wfith reduction of non-value added administrativkdaghen deciding whether to contract with
a health benefits plan.

At the sales and distribution level, we competedfaalified agents and brokers to recommend andflis¢ our products. Strong
competition exists among insurance companies aalihhieenefits plans for agents and brokers withalestrated ability to secure new busir
and maintain existing accounts. We believe thatityuand price of our products, support serviceputation and prior relationships, along v
a reasonable commission structure are the facginsts and brokers consider in choosing whetheratidet our products. We believe that we
have good relationships with our agents and brolerd that our products, support services and cgsiar structure compare favorably to our
competitors in all of our markets. Typically we dine lead competitor in each of our markets anas,thre a closely watched target by other
insurance competitors.

Reportable Segments
We manage our operations through three reportalgments: Commercial, Consumer, and Other.

Our Commercial and Consumer segments both offéreagified mix of managed care products, includ?i®ROs, HMOs, traditional
indemnity benefits and POS plans, as well as a&wadf hybrid benefit plans including CDHPs, hoapinly and limited benefit products.
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Our Commercial segment includes Local Group (inicigdUniCare), National Accounts and certain othasiléary business operations
(dental, vision, life and disability and workergimpensation). Business units in the Commercial segmiffer fully-insured products and
provide a broad array of managed care servicesltdunded customers, including claims processimglerwriting, stop loss insurance,
actuarial services, provider network access, médst management, disease management, wellnegsapre and other administrative
services.

Our Consumer segment includes Senior, State-Spethsod Individual businesses. Our Senior busimedsdes services such as
Medicare Advantage (including private fee-for-seevplans and special needs plans), Medicare PamdMedicare Supplement, while our
State-Sponsored business includes our managedloameatives for Medicaid and State Children’s e&tsurance Plan programs. Individual
business includes individual customers under agen@Xheir covered dependents.

Our Other segment includes the Comprehensive H8allilitions business unit, or CHS, that brings togebur resources focused on
optimizing the quality of health care, the clinicaihsumer experience and cost of care managemid&tirizluded our PBM business until its
sale to Express Scripts on December 1, 2009, aaddludes provider relations, care and diseasegement, employee assistance programs
including behavioral health, radiology benefit mgament and analytics-driven, evidence based pdreealih care guidance. Our Other
segment also includes results from our Federal @owvent Solutions, or FGS, business. FGS businetsdies FEP and National Government
Services, Inc., or NGS, which acts as a Medicargraotor in several regions across the nation. Otieer segment also includes other
businesses that do not meet the quantitative tblgskior an operating segment as defined in Firsdi#aicounting Standards Board, or FASB,
guidance for disclosure about segments of an engerpnd related information, as well as intersegrsales and expense eliminations and
corporate expenses not allocated to the other tapersegments.

Through our participation in various federal govaeemt programs, we generated approximately 23%, &28419% of our total
consolidated revenues from agencies of the U.Semovent for the years ended December 31, 2011, 20d@009. These revenues are
contained in the Consumer and Other segments.

For additional information regarding the operatiagults of our segments, see Part Il, Item 7. “M@naent’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” &lude 20, “Segment Information,” to our audited aditated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2011, includedignRorm 10-K.

Products and Services

A general description of our products and servisgsovided below:

Preferred Provider Organization. PPO products offer the member an option to selechealth care provider, with benefits reimbur
by us at a higher level when care is received faoparticipating network provider. Coverage is sabje co-payments or deductibles and
coinsurance, with member cost sharing usually &ohity out-of-pocket maximums.

Consumer-Driven Health Plans. CDHPs provide consumers with increased financspoasibility, choice and control regarding how
their health care dollars are spent. Generally, EBEombine a high-deductible PPO plan with an eygpttunded and/or employee-funded
personal care account, which may result in tax fitsrte the employee. Some or all of the dollarma@ing in the personal care account at
yea-end can be rolled over to the next year for futealth care needs.

Traditional Indemnity. Indemnity products offer the member an option feceany health care provider for covered serviGzsierage
is subject to deductibles and coinsurance, with bmoost sharing usually limited by out-of-pocketdimums.
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Health Maintenance Organization. HMO products include comprehensive managed carefitengenerally through a participating
network of physicians, hospitals and other provdsdérmember in one of our HMOs must typically sekeprimary care physician, or PCP,
from our network. PCPs generally are family prémtiers, internists or pediatricians who provideassary preventive and primary medical
care, and are generally responsible for coordigaither necessary health care services. We offeDHblns with varying levels of co-
payments, which result in different levels of pramirates.

Point-of-Service. POS products blend the characteristics of HMO, BR@indemnity plans. Members can have comprehe h8il@-
style benefits through participating network prarsl with minimum out-of-pocket expenses (co-paysieand also can go directly, without a
referral, to any provider they choose, subjecatnpng other things, certain deductibles and coarsie. Member cost sharing is limited by out-
of-pocket maximums.

Administrative Services. In addition to fullyinsured products, we provide administrative sesvicelarge group employers that maint
self-funded health plans. These administrativeisesvinclude underwriting, actuarial services, matimanagement, claims processing and
other administrative services for self-funded ergpts. Self-funded health plans are also able t@us@rovider networks and to realize
savings through our negotiated provider arrangespevtiile allowing employers the ability to desigertain health benefit plans in accordance
with their own requirements and objectives. We alsderwrite stop loss insurance for self-fundedhpla

BlueCard® . BlueCard® host members are generally membersragide in or travel to a state in which a WellRsubsidiary is the
Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield licensee and whaavered under an employer sponsored health plaicedrby a non-WellPoint controlled
BCBS licensee, who is the “home” plan. We perfoerta@in administrative functions for BlueCard hostmbers, for which we receive
administrative fees from the BlueC&rd membéarshe plans. Other administrative functions, inahgdinaintenance of enroliment informati
and customer service, are performed by the honre pla

Senior Plans. We offer a wide variety of senior plans, productd aptions such as Medicare supplement plans, Meglisdvantage
(including private fee-for-service plans and spleeéeds plans) and Medicare Part D PrescriptiorgBtans, or Medicare Part D. Medicare
supplement plans typically pay the difference betwikealth care costs incurred by a beneficiaryaandunts paid by Medicare. Medicare
Advantage plans provide Medicare beneficiaries withanaged care alternative to traditional Medieae often include a Medicare Part D
benefit. In addition, our Medicare Advantage splemégeds plans provide Medicare beneficiaries whealeronic diseases and conditions with
tailored benefits designed to meet their uniquelsekledicare Part D offers a prescription drug paiedicare and dual eligible (Medicare
and Medicaid) beneficiaries. We offer these plansustomers through our health benefit subsididhesughout the country, including
CareMore.

Individual Plans. We offer a full range of health insurance plaiith a variety of options and deductibles for induals under age 65
who are not covered by employer-sponsored covefagme of our products target certain demographiuladions such as uninsured younger
individuals between the ages of 19 and 29, famdiss those transitioning between jobs or earlyees.

Medicaid Plans and Other State-Sponsored Programdle have contracts to serve members enrolled in dagdli State Children’s
Health Insurance programs and other publicly funtealth care programs for low income and/or higldlicad risk individuals. We provide
services in California, Indiana, Kansas, Massadtsisdew York, South Carolina, Texas, Virginia, W¥gginia and Wisconsin.

Pharmacy Products. We market and sell an integrated prescriptiag groduct to both fully-insured and sélirded customers throu
our health benefit subsidiaries throughout the tyuit his comprehensive product includes featuteh s drug formularies, a pharmacy
network and maintenance of a prescription drugldega and mail order capabilities. Since Decemb209, we have delegated certain
functions and
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administrative services related to our integratexsgription drug products to Express Scripts, udien year contract. Express Scripts mar
the network of pharmacy providers, operates maiéopharmacies and processes prescription drug<lan our behalf, while we sell and
support the product for clients, make formularyisiens and set drug benefit design strategy andigedront line member support.

Life Insurance. We offer an array of competitive individual and gpdife insurance benefit products to both largd amall group
customers in conjunction with our health plans. Tifeeproducts include term life and accidental tie@nd dismemberment.

Disability. We offer short-term and long-term disability pramiss usually in conjunction with our health plans.

Behavioral Health. We offer specialized behavioral health plans amelieEmanagement. These plans cover mental headth a
substance abuse treatment services on both aneinpahd an outpatient basis. We have implementgdayee assistance and behavioral
managed care programs for a wide variety of busgethroughout the United States. These prograensffared through our subsidiaries.

Radiology Benefit Management.We offer outpatient diagnostic imaging managenservices to health plans. These services include
utilization management for advanced diagnostic imgagrocedures, network development and optimipafatient safety, claims adjudication
and provider payment.

Personal Health Care Guidance. We offer leading evidence based and analytitsed personal health care guidance. These services
help improve the quality, coordination and safdthe@alth care, enhance communications betweenntatd their physicians, and reduce
medical costs.

Dental. Our dental plans include networks in certaiiet in which we operate. Many of the dental béhafie provided to customers
enrolled in our health plans and are offered o laofully-insured and self-funded basis. Our mersla¢so have access to additional dental
providers through our participation in the Natiob&ntal GRID, a national dental network developgdbd for BCBS plans. The National
Dental GRID includes dentists in all 50 states pravides multi-state customers with a national setuproviding in-network discounts across
the country. Additionally, we offer managed ders@lvices to other health care plans to assist thibsz health care plans in providing dental
benefits to their customers.

Vision Services. Our vision plans include networks within the statd®re we operate. Many of the vision benefitspaiovided to
customers enrolled in our health plans and argefen both a fully-insured and self-funded basis.

Long-Term Care Insurance. We offer long-term care insurance products to aalif@nia members through a subsidiary. The lorrgate
care products include tax-qualified and non-taxifjgd versions of a skilled nursing home care pdendl comprehensive policies covering
skilled, intermediate and custodial long-term camd home health services.

Medicare Administrative Operations. Through our subsidiary, NGS, we serve as a fistatinediary, carrier and Medicare
administrative contractor providing administratservices for the Medicare program, which genenalbvides coverage for persons who art
or older and for persons who are disabled or witthgtage renal disease. Part A of the Medicarerpamgrovides coverage for services
provided by hospitals, skilled nursing facilitiesdeother health care facilities. Part B of the Magé program provides coverage for services
provided by physicians, physical and occupatiohatapists and other professional providers, asagetiertain durable medical equipment and
medical supplies.
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Networks and Provider Relations

Our relationships with physicians, hospitals anafgssionals that provide health care services tor@mbers are guided by regional and
national standards for network development, reirebomrent and contract methodologies.

We attempt to provide “market-based” hospital raimsement along industry standards. We also seekgore that physicians in our
network are paid in a timely manner at appropniates. We use multi-year contracting strategieduding case or fixed rates, to limit our
exposure to medical cost inflation and increasé prelictability. We seek to maintain broad providetworks to ensure member choice, b:
on both price and access needs, while implemeptiograms designed to improve the quality of caceireed by our members.

Depending on the consolidation and integrationtgfgician groups and hospitals, reimbursement gfiegesary across markets. Fee-for-
service is our predominant reimbursement methogologphysicians. Physician fee schedules are dgegl at the state level based on an
assessment of several factors and conditions,dimgurhe Centers for Medicare & Medicaid ServiagsCMS, resource-based relative value
system, or RBRVS, medical practice cost inflatiod @hysician supply. The RBRVS structure was degyedcand is maintained by CMS, an
used by the Medicare program and other major payeesutilize CMS RBRVS fee schedules as a referpoast for fee schedule development
and analysis. In addition, we have implementedamdinue to expand physician incentive contractorg'pay for performance”, which ties
physician payment levels to performance on clininabsures.

It is generally our philosophy not to delegate fulhncial responsibility to our physician providen the form of capitation-based
reimbursement. However, in certain markets we bel@apitation can be a useful method to lower castsreduce underwriting risk, and we
therefore have some capitation contracts.

Our hospital contracts provide for a variety obursement arrangements depending on local maykeingics and current hospital
utilization efficiency. Most hospitals are reimbeudsa fixed amount per day or reimbursed a per aas®int, per admission, for inpatient
covered services. Some hospitals, primarily sofaroanity hospitals, are reimbursed on a discoumhfapproved charge basis for covered
services. Our “per case” reimbursement methodgetihany of the same attributes contained in MedisdDiagnosis Related Groups, or
DRG, methodology. Hospital outpatient servicesranmbursed by fixed case rates, fee schedulesroepeof approved charges. Our hospital
contracts recognize unigue hospital attributesh siscacademic medical centers or community hospaald the volume of care performed for
our members. To improve predictability of expeatedt, we frequently use a multi-year contractingrapch and have been transitioning to
case rate payment methodologies. Many of our halspittracts include a “pay for performance” comgrutnwhere reimbursement levels are
linked to improved clinical performance, patienfies and medical error reduction.

Though fee-for-service or fee-feervice combined with pay for performance remainspredominant payment model today, our prov
engagement and contracting strategies are becdesadunit price” focused and more focused on thal tvalue of care, defined by overall
quality and cost. This includes a strong focus mmmwting primary care and developing collaboratelationships with physicians that align
financial incentives and helping to provide thenthvthe tools they need to effectively manage trathef their population of patients in a w
that improves health outcomes and reduces theassstiated with preventable medical events. Famelg we are partnering with physicians
to advance a number of innovative delivery modethsas accountable care organizations, or ACOspatient-centered medical homes, or
PCMHs, that aim to improve affordability and theatity of care delivered to members. Under an AC@ragement, providers receive
incentives based on quality, cost, safety, clince#tomes and coordination of care metrics. Thrahgke shared risk arrangements, providers
share in the savings achieved through better guatiti reduced costs, but may also share the fiahrisk if results are not achieved. In the
PCMH model, primary care physicians adopt a
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patient-centered care delivery model that focusesomrdinated care management, wellness and piegerare and shared-decision making
with patients and their care givers. This modehpotes patient engagement and accountability fop#tient’s own health. Both of these
models help improve quality through enhanced sergfterings and better care coordination with ofigysicians and specialists across the
healthcare system. In addition to the opporturgtpdrticipate in shared savings, participating ptiga practices often receive a per-member,
per-month care management fee to appropriately eosgie physicians for important care managemeivitees that occur outside of the
patient visit, enabling a move away from visit-thepisodic intervention to proactive patient engaget and care coordination.

In the latter half of 2012, we plan to implementiéidnal shared savings opportunities for certaimpry care physicians, aimed at
further improving the quality of care and healtlicmmes of our members while reducing medical castsincreasing revenue opportunities
the participating primary care physicians. Undés thodel, participating primary care physiciand Wwé able to earn additional revenue by
expanding access to medical care and also cooimtjnaedical care for patients with chronic condigoTo participate in the shared savings
opportunities, primary care physician practices tmuset certain plan quality requirements, whicHude quality standards established by
organizations including, but not limited to, the Q&, the American Diabetes Association and the AnzriAcademy of Pediatrics.

Medical Management Programs

Our medical management programs include a broay afractivities that facilitate improvements irethuality of care provided to our
members and promote cost effective medical caresdimedical management activities and programadiménistered and directed by
physicians and trained nurses. The goals of ouigakeshanagement strategies are to ensure thattleedelivered to our members is supported
by appropriate medical and scientific evidencegceived on a timely basis and occurs in the mgstapriate location.

Precertification. A traditional medical management program ineglassessment of the appropriateness of certgpitdlasations and
other medical services prior to the service beamglered. For example, precertification is usecetersnine whether a set of hospital and
medical services is being appropriately applietheomember’s clinical condition, in accordance vatttieria for medical necessity as that term
is defined in the member’s benefits contract. Albor health plans have implemented precertificapoograms for common high-tech
radiology studies, including cardiac diagnostidites addressing an area of historically significaost trends. We are exploring expansion of
our outpatient precertification program through AiiMo other clinical areas that show significaeinil and have demonstrated clinically
inappropriate use of services, such as oncologysk®p apnea diagnosis and treatment. We levertdis Aervices, clinical expertise and
technology to facilitate more effective and effiti@ise of these outpatient services by our members.

Care Coordination. Another traditional medical management stratggyuse is care coordination, which is based oiomaity
recognized criteria developed by third-party meldspeecialists. With inpatient care coordinatiore tequirements and intensity of services
during a patient’s hospital stay are reviewedinaés$ by an onsite skilled nurse professional itadaration with the hospital’s medical and
nursing staff, in order to coordinate care and meitee the most effective transition of care frora tiospital setting. In addition, guidance for
many continued stay cases is reviewed with physigiadical directors to ensure appropriate utilratf medical services. We also coordinate
care for outpatient services to help ensure thi@mta with chronic conditions who receive carenfrmultiple physicians are able to manage
exchange of information between physicians anddinate office visits to their physicians.

Case Management. We are also implementing a medical managenteategy focused on identifying the small percentaigine
membership that will require a high level of intemtion to manage their health care needs. Theteegtsnurses and medical directors focus on
members likely to be readmitted to the hospital laelp them coordinate their care through pharmaecypiance, post-hospital care, follow-up
visits to see their physician and support in theime.
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Formulary management. We have developed formularies, which are sielestof drugs based on clinical quality and effestiess. A
pharmacy and therapeutics committee of physiciaes gcientific and clinical evidence to ensure thiatmembers have access to the
appropriate drug therapies. This function remaivé us after the sale of our PBM business.

Medical policy. A medical policy group comprised of physiciaaders from various areas of the country, workingadoperation with
academic medical centers, practicing community giieyss and medical specialty organizations sudaf\merican College of Radiology a
national organizations such as the Centers ford3s€ontrol and Prevention and the American Ca®aeiety, determines our national policy
for the application of new medical technologies tredtments.

Quality programs. We are actively engaged with our hospital amgsjrian networks to enable them to improve medical surgical
care and achieve better outcomes for our membezseMlorse, encourage and incent hospitals andgidnysito support national initiatives to
improve the quality of clinical care, patient outoes and to reduce medication errors and hospfdtions. We have demonstrated our
leadership in developing hospital quality programs.

External review procedures. We work with outside experts through a proedssxternal review to provide our members sciecifiy
and clinically, evidence-based medical care. Whemeeeive member concerns, we have formal appeategures that ultimately allow
coverage disputes related to medical necessitgides under the benefits contract to be settleithdgpendent expert physicians.

Service management. In HMO and POS networks, primary care physigis@rve as the overall coordinators of memberdttheare
needs by providing an array of preventive healthises and overseeing referrals to specialistafqropriate medical care. In PPO networks,
patients have access to network physicians witaqutmary care physician serving as the coordinataare.

Anthem Care Comparison. Anthem Care Comparison, or ACC, is an innowatemparison tool that discloses price ranges aatitg
data for common services at contracted providacduding the facility, professional and ancillagrgces. The price ranges include a bundl
related services typically performed at the timéhef procedure, not just the surgery itself. Usarsreview cost data for 102 procedures in 48
states and Puerto Rico. ACC provides informatiokeynquality factors such as the number of spepiftzedures performed, patient safety,
facility complication rates, mortality rates anceeage length of stay. We continue to work on enimgnand evolving the ACC program to
assist members in making informed health care wexss

Personal Health Care Guidance. These services help improve the quality, cowatibon and safety of health care, enhance
communications between patients and their physiciand reduce medical costs. Examples of servimbsde member and physician
messaging, providing access to evidence-based alaggicelines, physician quality profiling, and etfconsulting services.

Care Management Programs

We continue to expand oure®° Healthsuite of integrated care management programs ansl 860° Healthoffers the following
programs, among others, that have been proverctease quality and reduce medical costs for our lpeesn

ConditionCareandFutureMomsare care management and maternity management preghat serve as excellent adjuncts to physician
care. Skilled nurse professionals with added sugpam our team of dietitians, social workers, phacists, health educators and other health
professionals help participants understand theidition, their doctor’s orders and how to beconieetier self-manager of their condition.

24/7 NurseLineffers access to qualified, registered nurses argytihis allows our members to make informed dexngsabout the
appropriate level of care and avoid unnecessaryywhis program also includes
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a referral process to the nearest urgent caratjaalrobust audiotape library, accessible by ghavith more than 400 health and wellness
topics, as well as oline health education topics designed to educarabees about symptoms and treatment of many comrealthhconcerns

ComplexCaras an advanced care management program that reashe&sparticipants with multiple health care issuvho are at risk for
frequent and high levels of medical care in ordesfter support and assistance in managing theilttheare need€omplexCarédentifies
candidates through claims analysis using predictieeleling techniques, the use of health risk agsessdata, utilization management reports
and referrals from a physician or one of our offregrams, such as tf2d/7 NurseLine

MyHealth Advantagetilizes integrated information systems and soptdastd data analytics to help our members imprbeé t
compliance with evidence-based care guidelinesjigirtg personal care notes that alert members terpial gaps in care, enable more prudent
health care choices, and assist in the realizationember out-opocket cost savings. Key opportunities are alsoeshaith physicians throug
Avalility ®at the time of membership eligibility véidation. Availity ® is an electronic data interchangystem that allows for the exchange of
health information among providers over a secute/or.

MyHealth Coactprovides our members with a professional guide iwlps them navigate the health care system and betier
decisions about their well-beinglyHealth Coaclproactively reaches out to people who are at gslsérious health issues or have complex
health care needs. Our health coaches help paniiiunderstand and manage chronic conditionsdang health and wellness related
services they need and make smart lifestyle choices

HealthyLifestylefielps employees transform unhealthy habits intétigesones by focusing on behaviors that can hapesitive effect o
their health and their employer’s financial wellfige HealthyLifestyleprograms include smoking cessation, weight manageragess
management, physical activity and diet and nutxitio

MyHealth@Anthens our secure web-based solution, complementingrgitograms by reinforcing telephonic coaching arzd
campaigns. The website engages participants inaggassessing their health status, gives themibf@ek about their progress, and tracks
important health measures such as blood presseightiand blood glucose levels.

Employee Assistance Prograp®vide many resources that allow members to balamark and personal life by providing quick andye
access to confidential resources to help meettihlemiges of daily life. Examples of services aafalit in person as well as via telephone or
internet are counseling for child care, health aetiness, financial issues, legal issues, adoiwhdaily living.

Health Care Quality Initiatives

Increasingly, the health care industry is abledbrg quality health care based on preventive heatasurements, outcomes of care and
optimal care management for chronic disease. At@ur success has been our ability to work withratwork physicians and hospitals to
improve the quality and outcomes of the health sargices provided to our members. Our abilityrianpote quality medical care has been
recognized by the NCQA, the largest and most réegdetational accreditation program for managed bagdth plans.

Several quality health care measures, includindHtbalthcare Effectiveness Data and Information @EDIS® , have been
incorporated into the NCQA'’s accreditation proces$tEDIS® measures range from preventive services$, as screening mammography and
pediatric immunization, to elements of care, inglgddecreasing the complications of diabetes anmaring treatment for patients with heart
disease. For health plans, NCQA'’s highest accrémlitatatus of Excellent is granted only to thokp that demonstrate levels of service and
clinical quality that meet or exceed NCQA's rigosaequirements for consumer protection and
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quality improvement. Plans earning this accreditatevel must also achieve HED#Sesults that are in the highest range of nationatgiona
performance. Details for each of our plans’ acdegidin levels can be found at www.ncga.org

We have committed to measuring our progress inawipg the quality of care that our members andoamummunities receive through ¢
proprietary Member Health Index, or MHI, and Stidesalth Index, or SHI. The MHI is comprised of 28ally relevant measures for our
health plan members and combines prevention, carmgement, clinical outcome and patient safetyioseffhe SHI measures the health o
the residents in our BCBSA licensed states, natgus members, using public data from the CentmrPisease Control and Prevention.

Our wholly-owned clinical research and health outcomes relsesantesidiary, HealthCore, has supported biopharotmed manufacturer
health professionals, and health plans by enabtioge effective medical management and increasesigibg adherence to evidence-based
care, and creating new knowledge on the valueinical therapies, resulting in better care decision

Our wholly-owned specialty benefit management glibsy, AIM, has supported quality by implementidopical appropriateness and
patient safety programs for advanced imaging pracedand specialty pharmaceuticals, including aapypobdrugs, covered under the medical
benefit, that are based on widely accepted clirgo@delines. These programs promote the most apptepuse of these procedures to improve
the quality of overall health care delivered to members and members of other health plans thatoaered under AIM’s programs. In
addition to its clinical appropriateness prograriyiAas also implemented a network assess@gtiNet® program, which promotes more
informed selection of diagnostic imaging facilitieg providing cost and facility information to phgisins at the point that a procedure is
ordered. In 2011, we leveraged AIM’s network assesg information to proactively educate our memladrsut imaging site choices based on
site capabilities and cost differences. This progimanother example of how we facilitate improvatsen the quality of care provided to our
members and promote cost effective medical carel &ko provides education on radiation exposure@ated with advanced diagnostic
procedures to members and physicians to improvergand provider safety.

Our wholly-owned analyticslriven personal health care guidance subsidiargpR&on Health, Inc., has supported quality bypired our
members take action to get healthy, stay healtlybatter manage chronic illness. Our analysis dhdividual member’s health data identifies
opportunities to improve health care quality anfgtya we then send personalized messages to theberetheir doctor and care manager to
take action. For example, our drug safety messiaf@sn a member’s doctor, pharmacist or care manafpotentially dangerous drug-drug,
drug-condition, drug-age, or drug-dose interactidestified in our Drug Safety Scan. This helps ioye safety, drug effectiveness and
medication adherence.

Pricing and Underwriting of Our Products

We price our products based on our assessmentreintinealth care claim costs and emerging health cost trends, combined with
charges for administrative expenses, risk and p\dfe continually review our product designs andipg guidelines on a national and regio
basis so that our products remain competitive amsistent with our profitability goals and stratgi

In applying our pricing to each employer group andtomer, we maintain consistent, competitive¢stiderwriting standards. We
employ our proprietary accumulated actuarial datdetermining underwriting and pricing paramet@vbere allowed by law and regulation,
we underwrite individual policies based upon thelita history of the individual applying for covei® small groups based upon case specific
underwriting procedures and large groups basedoh group’s aggregate claim experience. Also, weleyrcredit underwriting procedures
with respect to our self-funded products.

In most circumstances, our pricing and underwritliegisions follow a prospective rating process lvicl a fixed premium is determined
at the beginning of the contract period. For fuligured business, any deviation,
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favorable or unfavorable, from the medical cossua®ed in determining the premium is our resporigibifome of our larger groups employ
retrospective rating reviews, where positive exgmese is partially refunded to the group, and negatkperience is charged against a rate
stabilization fund established from the group’sdieable experience, or charged against future fdbleraxperience.

BCBSA Licenses

We are a party to license agreements with the BCB@Aentitle us to the exclusive, and in certagaa, non-exclusive use of the Blue
Cross and Blue Shield names and marks in assigeegtaphic territories. BCBSA is a national tradgoafation of Blue Cross and Blue Shield
licensees, the primary function of which is to paieand preserve the integrity of the BCBS namesnaarks, as well as provide certain
coordination among the member companies. Each BCRBAsee is an independent legal organizationiendt responsible for obligations of
other BCBSA member organizations. We have no tigimarket products and services using the BCBS samé marks outside of the state
which we are licensed to sell BCBS products. Werageiired to pay an annual license fee to the BCB&ged on enrollment and also to
comply with various operational and financial start$ set forth in the licenses.

We believe that we and our licensed affiliatesameently in compliance with these standards. Taadards under the license agreem
may be modified in certain instances by the BCBSée Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this FormKR@or additional details of our licensit
requirements and the impact if we were not to cgmpth these license agreements.

Regulation
General

Our operations are subject to comprehensive arallelétstate, federal and international regulatfmoughout the jurisdictions in which
we do business. As discussed below, the regulaspgcts of the U.S. health care system have bekewiliitontinue to be significantly
affected by Health Care Reform legislation. Supsamy agencies, including state health, insurandecarporation departments, have broad
authority to:

» grant, suspend and revoke licenses to transaaidrs

» regulate many aspects of our products and services;

e monitor our solvency and reserve adequacy;

» scrutinize our investment activities on the basiguality, diversification and other quantitativeteria.

To carry out these tasks, these regulators pedtidiexamine our operations and accounts.
Regulation of Insurance Company and HMO Businesisif\c

The governments of the states in which we condusiness, as well as the federal government, haweted laws and regulations that
govern our business activities in various waystier federal Health Care Reform legislation hasilted in increased federal regulation that is
likely to have a significant impact on our businélsese laws and regulations, which vary signifigafiom state to state and on the federal
level, may restrict how we conduct our businessraag result in additional burdens and costs tdAusas of governmental regulation include
but are not limited to:

* medical loss ratios;

» tax deductibility of certain compensation;
* licensure;

e premium rates;

» underwriting and pricing
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benefits;

eligibility requirements;

guaranteed renewabilit

service areas;

market conduct

sales and marketing activities;

quality assurance procedur

plan design and disclosures, including mandateefiien

underwriting, marketing and rating restrictions $onall group products;
utilization review activities

prompt payment of claims;

member rights and responsibilitie

collection, access or use of protected health imé&tion;

data reporting, including financial data and stadddor electronic transactior
payment of dividends;

provider rates of paymer

surcharges on provider payments;

provider contract forms

provider access standards;

premium taxes, assessments for the uninsured amaderinsured and insolvency guaranty payme
member and provider complaints and appe

financial condition (including reserves and minimaapital or risk based capital requirements andstments);
reimbursement or payment levels for government égnlousiness; ar

corporate governance.

These state and federal laws and regulations &jectito amendments and changing interpretatioesuah jurisdiction.

States generally require health insurers and HMQbtain a certificate of authority prior to comroémy operations. If we were to
establish a health insurance company or an HMOynjarisdiction where we do not presently operate,generally would have to obtain such
a certificate. The time necessary to obtain sucérgficate varies from jurisdiction to jurisdictioEach health insurer and HMO must file
periodic financial and operating reports with tkegtes in which it does business. In addition, e@lsurers and HMOs are subject to state
examination and periodic license renewal. The hd@hefits business also may be adversely impéstedurt and regulatory decisions that
expand the interpretations of existing statutesragdlations. It is uncertain whether we can rectlupugh higher premiums or other
measures, the increased costs of mandated bemrefitser increased costs caused by potential sl regulation or court rulings. See Pa
Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Form 10-K.
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Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act

The ACA, signed into law on March 23, 2010, hasitrd significant changes and will continue to eresgnificant changes for health
insurance markets for the next several years. $palbj, many of the near-term changes were eféector certain groups and individuals on
their first renewal on or after September 23, 20i€luding a prohibition on lifetime limits, certaannual limits, member cost-sharing on
specified preventive benefits, pre-existing comditexclusions for children, increased restrictiongescinding coverage and extension of
coverage of dependents to the age of 26. Certgirirements for insurers were also effective in 20ddluding the minimum medical loss ratio
provision that requires insurers to pay rebatesisitomers when insurers do not meet or exceedhtwfied medical loss ratio, or MLR,
thresholds, and changes to Medicare Advantage patgnmidost of the provisions of ACA with more sigoént effects on the health insurance
marketplace go into effect on January 1, 2014 udliclg a requirement that insurers guarantee thaigse of coverage to all individuals
regardless of health status, strict rules on hoaithénsurance is rated, the assessment of news te fees (including annual fees on health
insurance companies and excise taxes on high preinisurance policies), the creation of new insueagxchanges for individuals and small
groups, and substantial expansions in eligibility Medicaid.

Many of the details of the law require additionaldance and specificity to be provided by the Depant of Health and Human Servic
or HHS, the Department of Labor, CMS and the Depant of the Treasury. In certain cases, these a&myl agencies were directed to accept
recommendations from external groups, such as #tmial Association of Insurance CommissionerdArC. Some provisions have final
rules available for review and comment, while sgraposed regulations have yet to be released dugtlsodre in-process. We are evaluating
each of these rules carefully; and, thereforegiitinues to be too early to fully understand thpacts of the legislation on our overall business.
Some of the more significant considerations of A&A described below:

* MLR regulations were issued by HHS in December 2@bWever, significant changes could still occuttte MLR requirements
through additional regulatory guidance and/or miodtfon of the regulation. The minimum MLR threstt®by line of business are as

follows:
Line of Business %
Large Groug 85%
Small Groug 80
Individual 80

New York state regulations require us to meet aemestrictive MLR threshold of 82% for both SmatioBp and Individual lines ¢
business. Certain other states have received agipgrom HHS to phase-in the MLR requirements in limgividual markets in those
states and, as a result, are currently using lohwvesholds for determination of potential rebafés minimum MLR thresholds
disclosed above are based on definitions of an MalRulation provided by HHS, or specific statesapglicable, and differ from
our calculation of “benefit expense ratio” basedboamium revenue and benefit expense as reportecciordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, or GARe definitions of the lines of business may difieader the various state and
federal regulations.

» ACA requires states to establish health insurarchanges by January 1, 2014 through which qualifidd/ziduals and qualified
small employers may access coverage. If a stdtetfaestablish a health insurance exchange, trerdégovernment will establish a
health insurance exchange in that state. Whilestaave some flexibility over the design and im@atation of these health
insurance exchanges, during 2011 HHS releasedes séiproposed regulations outlining more detailglirements for the state
establishment of exchanges. As of January 1, 2012 states in which we conduct business have pdsgéslation establishing
health insurance exchanges (California, Coloradmn@cticut and Nevade

18



Table of Contents

* Regulations became effective in September 201 lrdloptire filings for premium rate increases for Brgeoup and individua
products above specified thresholds, generally 10%e reviewed. The regulations provide for stiaseirance regulators to conduct
the reviews, except for cases where a state dadsame an “effective” rate review program, in whicdse HHS will conduct the
reviews for any rate filec

* ACA includes three “risk adjuster” programs thallwitroduce new requirements beginning in 2014efefing on the risk mix of
individuals enrolled in the individual and smalbgp markets. Among other things, these programgineinsurers enrolling lower-
risk individuals to pay into funds to compensateuirers enrolling higher-risk individuals. Detailstioese programs in the form of
proposed regulations have begun to emerge andavitinue to be finalized during 2012 and 2013.&tatill be given some
flexibility to tailor their risk adjustment prograr

» Depending on the laws in each state, health inswaer currently allowed to consider factors suchesdth status, gender and ag:
determining the appropriate premium for productthindividual and small group markets. Some sthtese currently adopted rules
that limit the variation between the highest anddst premium for the identical insurance policye ifferential in pricing is
commonly referred to as “ratings bands”. The preadaising these rating bands allows health insureappropriately price for
products and to spread the risk more broadly aabgw®licyholders. Beginning in 2014, the ACA pitgiies health insurers from
using health status and gender in the determinafitime appropriate insurance premium. In additrating bands for age cannot vi
by more than 3 to 1 and the rating bands for tobase cannot vary by more than 1.5 to 1. This chavif likely have a significant
impact on the majority of individual and small gpocustomers and could lead to adverse selectitireimarket

* Medicare Advantage reimbursement rates will notdase as much as they would otherwise due to gpagment formula
promulgated by ACA that is expected to significamdduce reimbursements in the future. We also @xXpether and ongoing
regulatory guidance on a number of issues relatddedicare, including the Medicare Advantage ML®&leing methodology for
ratings and quality bonus payments and potenti@mon an audit methodology to review data suleditinder “risk adjuster”
programs

Recent federal court decisions questioning thet@atisnality of all or portions of the federal HeaCare Reform legislation add further
uncertainty to our ability to understand the ultimenpacts of the legislation on our business. dialenges primarily deal with the
requirement that most individuals purchase heatitiiance and whether that provision is severabta fsther areas of the ACA. The United
States Supreme Court, or Supreme Court, will heapgeal of several of the federal court decisinidarch 2012 and it is expected that the
Supreme Court will render its opinion by the cloés term near the end of June 2012. The Sup@met could rule in several ways,
including that the law is constitutional in its eety, allowing for continued implementation of tlaev’s requirements. The Supreme Court
could determine that a portion of the law is cdniinal, resulting in implementation of certainrfions of the law with the remaining
requirements being disallowed. Finally, the Supr&uoart could determine that the law is unconstigi in its entirety, which would result in
the reversal of the law’s requirements.

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Prodechict

During 2010, the U.S. Congress passed and thedergsigned into law the Dodd-Frank Wall StreetdR@afand Consumer Protection
Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act regents a far-reaching overhaul of the frameworkHerU.S. financial services industry.
Even though we are primarily a health benefits canyp our business may be impacted by the Dodd-FaahkMany of its provisions require
the adoption of rules for implementation, includihgse that govern which non-bank financial comesamnay become subject to the oversight
of the Federal Reserve. The Dodd-Frank Act ideegtifion-bank financial companies that may becomestio Federal Reserve oversight as
those that could pose a threat to financial stgkgither due to the potential of material finahcistress at the company or due to the
company’s ongoing
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activities. The Financial Stability Oversight Coiinor the Council, published proposed criteria anflamework for determining which non-
bank financial companies meet these definitiongs€tcriteria and framework are subject to a puddioment period and will then result in
final rules that may or may not be different frame proposals. The Council announced that it widibevaluating companies against the final
rules shortly thereafter. Although unlikely, we ibgk that we might be considered a riamk financial company and it is possible that weld
become subject to additional oversight by the Fadeeserve under the final rules.

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act creates a Fedarsilitance Office, with limited powers that includéormation-gathering and subpoena
authority. Although the Federal Insurance Officeslaot have authority over health insurance, it heaye authority over other parts of our
business, such as life insurance.

HIPAA and Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act

The federal Health Insurance Portability and Acc¢ability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, imposes obligatiofsr issuers of health insurance
coverage and health benefit plan sponsors. Thigéauires guaranteed renewability of health caxex@ge for most group health plans and
certain individuals. Also, the law limits exclus®hased on preexisting medical conditions.

The Administrative Simplification provisions of HNA imposed a number of requirements on coverediestfincluding insurers, HMC
group health plans, providers and clearinghouddse requirements include uniform standards ofrcomelectronic health care transactions;
privacy and security regulations; and unique idemtrules for employers, health plans and prowdédditional federal privacy and security
requirements, including breach notification, imprdwenforcement and additional limitations on usg dieclosure of protected health
information were passed through the Health InforomaTechnology for Economic and Clinical Health, HITECH, provisions of the Americe
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and corredipgnmplementing regulations. CMS posted the intdfinal Rule with Comment, or
IFC, adopting operating rules for two electronarsactions: eligibility for a health plan and hlealare claims status. Based on the comments
received on the IFC, CMS has decided not to changeof the policies established in the rule. Thias,interim final rule is the final rule that is
in effect; industry implementation should be undeyvior the January 1, 2013 compliance date.

The federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act generally placestrictions on the disclosure of non-public imfiation to non-affiliated third
parties, and requires financial institutions, imtthg insurers, to provide customers with noticeardgng how their non-public personal
information is used, including an opportunity tteut” of certain disclosures. State departmehtasurance and certain federal agencies
adopted implementing regulations as required bgrf@daw. A number of states have adopted datarisgtaws and/or regulations, regulating
data security and/or requiring security breachfivation, which may apply to us in certain circuarstes.

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

The provision of services to certain employee weltzenefit plans is subject to the Employee Ret@nincome Security Act of 1974, as
amended, or ERISA, a complex set of laws and réiguksisubject to interpretation and enforcementhieyinternal Revenue Service and the
Department of Labor. ERISA regulates certain aspefthe relationships between us, the employers whintain employee welfare benefit
plans subject to ERISA and participants in suchgl&ome of our administrative services and otbtiviies may also be subject to regulation
under ERISA. In addition, certain states requicenisure or registration of companies providingtipiarty claims administration services for
benefit plans. We provide a variety of products serices to employee welfare benefit plans thatcavered by ERISA. Plans subject to
ERISA can also be subject to state laws and thstiqureof whether and to what extent ERISA preenamtate law has been, and will continue
to be, interpreted by many courts.
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HMO and Insurance Holding Company Laws, includingkFBased Capital Requirements

We are regulated as an insurance holding compashy@nsubject to the insurance holding companydaddtse states in which our
insurance company and HMO subsidiaries are dordicilaese acts contain certain reporting requiresasitwell as restrictions on transacti
between an insurer or HMO and its affiliates. Thieskeling company laws and regulations generallyiregnsurance companies and HMOs
within an insurance holding company system to tegisith the insurance department of each stateeviey are domiciled and to file with
those states’ insurance departments certain regestsibing capital structure, ownership, financiahdition, certain intercompany transactions
and general business operations. In addition, uanmtice and reporting requirements generallyyafgptransactions between insurance
companies and HMOs and their affiliates within masuirance holding company system, depending onizbeand nature of the transactions.
Some insurance holding company laws and regulatiequsire prior regulatory approval or, in certaircemstances, prior notice of certain
material intercompany transfers of assets as watkatain transactions between insurance compatid€s, their parent holding companies
and affiliates. Among other provisions, state iasiwe and HMO laws may restrict the ability of cegulated subsidiaries to pay dividends.

Additionally, the holding company acts of the ssatewhich our subsidiaries are domiciled resttiet ability of any person to obtain
control of an insurance company or HMO without prigulatory approval. Under those statutes, witlsogh approval (or an exemption), no
person may acquire any voting security of an insceaholding company, which controls an insurancegamny or HMO, or merge with such a
holding company, if as a result of such transacsioch person would “control” the insurance holdiegnpany. “Control” is generally defined
as the direct or indirect power to direct or catigedirection of the management and policies ofragn and is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or markthe voting securities of another person.

The states of domicile of our regulated subsidiahiave statutory risk-based capital, or RBC, resgménts for health and other insurance
companies and HMOs based on the RBC Model Act. @ REC requirements are intended to assess thekagéquacy of life and health
insurers and HMOs, taking into account the riskrabiristics of a company’s investments and praduotgeneral, under these laws, an
insurance company or HMO must submit a reportooRIBC level to the insurance department or inswa&oeenmissioner of its state of domi
for each calendar year. The law requires increasaggees of regulatory oversight and interventma aompany’s RBC declines. As of
December 31, 2011, the RBC levels of our insuramceHMO subsidiaries exceeded all RBC thresholds.

Guaranty Fund Assessments

Under insolvency or guaranty association laws isinstates, insurance companies can be assessaddants paid by guaranty funds
policyholder losses incurred when an insurance @myfpecomes insolvent. Most state insolvency orantg association laws currently
provide for assessments based upon the amounéwiippms received on insurance underwritten withithsstate (with a minimum amount
payable even if no premium is received). Under mafrthese guaranty association laws, assessmegitssagisurance companies that issue
policies of accident or sickness insurance are maitlespectively. Some states permit insurers¢ower assessments paid through full or
partial premium tax offsets or through future pgtiolder assessments.

While the amount and timing of any future assessmegmnot be predicted with certainty, we beliha future guaranty association
assessments for insurer insolvencies will not feaweaterial adverse effect on our liquidity and tapiesources with the exception of potential
exposure related to the Penn Treaty Network Amdrisarance Company and its subsidiary American Ngtwnsurance Company insolven
as discussed in Note 14, “Commitments and Conticigsh to our audited consolidated financial staata as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2011, included in this Form 10-K.
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Employees

At December 31, 2011, we had approximately 37,70pleyees. Our employees are an important assetvarsdek to develop them to
their full potential. We believe that our relatibis with our employees is good.

Available Information

We are a large accelerated filer (as defined ireR@b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934mended, or Exchange Act) and are
required, pursuant to Item 101 of Regulation SeKprovide certain information regarding our websitel the availability of certain documents
filed with or furnished to the SEC. Our Internethsite is www.wellpoint.com We have included our Internet website addressutiirout this
Annual Report on Form 10-K as textual reference.ofihe information contained on our Internet websdtnot incorporated into this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. We make available, free ofrghaby mail or through our Internet website, omnfal Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8r€, amendments to those reports filed or furnigheduant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practiefiielewe electronically file such material withfarnish it to the SEC. We also include on
our Internet website our Corporate Governance Giniglg our Standards of Ethical Business Condudttha charter of each standing
committee of our Board of Directors. In additiore wtend to disclose on our Internet website angradments to, or waivers from, our
Standards of Ethical Business Conduct that areinedjto be publicly disclosed pursuant to ruleshef SEC and the New York Stock
Exchange, or NYSE. WellPoint, Inc. is an Indiangoooation incorporated on July 17, 2001.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following factors, among others, could caugaaaesults to differ materially from those contd in forward-looking statements
made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and presgeisewhere by management from time to time. $aatbrs, among others, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, finar@atlition, and results of operations and you shoatefully consider them. It is not possible
predict or identify all such factors. Consequengiyu should not consider any such list to be a detagstatement of all our potential risks or
uncertainties. Because of these and other fagiast,performance should not be considered an itialicaf future performance.

Federal Health Care Reform legislation, as well asxpected additional changes in federal or state retations, could adversely
affect our business, cash flows, financial conditioand results of operation.

The passage of Health Care Reform legislation du2i 0 represents significant changes to the cutteh health care system. The
legislation is far-reaching and is intended to expaccess to health insurance coverage over tiniecbgasing the eligibility thresholds for
most state Medicaid programs and providing cerétier individuals and small businesses with taxitseo subsidize a portion of the cost of
health insurance coverage. The legislation incledesjuirement that most individuals obtain hemigturance coverage beginning in 2014 and
also a requirement that certain large employersr afdverage to their employees or pay a finanaahfty. In addition, the new laws include
certain new taxes and fees, including an excisemaligh premium insurance policies, limitationstba amount of compensation that is tax
deductible and new fees on companies in our industime of which will not be deductible for incota& purposes.

The legislation also imposes new regulations orh#adth insurance sector, including, but not lihite, guaranteed coverage
requirements, prohibitions on some annual andfatihe limits on amounts paid on behalf of or tor members, increased restrictions on
rescinding coverage, establishment of minimum nadass ratio requirements, a requirement to cpveventive services on a first dollar
basis, the establishment of state insurance exelsaangyd essential benefit packages and greateatians on how we price certain of our
products. The legislation also reduces the reingiment levels for health plans participating in Medicare Advantage program over time.
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Some of the provisions of the Health Care Reforgislation became effective immediately upon enaatmehile other provisions will
become effective over the next several years. Ttleaeges could impact us through potential disoumptdo the employer-based market,
potential cost shifting in the health care deliveygtem to health insurance companies and limitatam the ability to increase premiums to
meet costs. We will need to dedicate material nessuand incur material expenses to implement antpty with Health Care Reform at both
the state and federal levels, including implemen&nd complying with the future regulations thall wiovide guidance on and clarification of
significant portions of the legislation. The Healthre Reform law and regulations are likely to hsigaificant effects on our future operations,
which, in turn, could impact the value of our besis model and results of operations, includingmi@kimpairments of our goodwill and ott
intangible assets.

There are currently constitutional challenges tokltealth Care Reform legislation. If certain pars®f the legislation are declared
unconstitutional, such as the individual obligatiorpurchase insurance, while other portions akeelg such as the guaranteed coverage
requirements and the greater limitations on howpriee certain of our products, this could adversdfgct our business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

In addition, federal and state regulatory agenciag further restrict our ability to obtain new puatl approvals, implement changes in
premium rates or impose additional restrictionglarmew or existing laws that could adversely dftec business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

Changes in the regulation of our business by statnd federal regulators may adversely affect our busess, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our insurance, managed health care and HMO subigisliare subject to extensive regulation and siugiervby the insurance, managed
health care or HMO regulatory authorities of eaettesin which they are licensed or authorized tddsiness, as well as to regulation by
federal and local agencies. We cannot assureuhaefregulatory action by state insurance or HM@aerities or federal regulatory authorities
will not have a material adverse effect on the ipabflity or marketability of our health benefits managed care products or on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. didiion, because of our participation in governmgmansored programs such as Medicare and
Medicaid, changes in government regulations orcgohith respect to, among other things, reimbursdrevels, eligibility requirements and
additional governmental participation could alseexdely affect our business, financial conditiod assults of operations. In addition, we
cannot ensure that application of the federal arstate tax regulatory regime that currently agpleeus will not, or future tax regulation by
either federal and/or state governmental authsri@ncerning us could not, have a material adwffset on our business, operations or
financial condition.

State legislatures will continue to focus on heaklire delivery and financing issues in the wakeledilth Care Reform. Most states are
very focused on how to manage and reduce theirditadmd are exploring ways to mitigate costs. Af sthey are contemplating significant
reform of their health insurance markets to inclpdevisions affecting both public programs and atély-financed health insurance
arrangements. As these proposals are still beibgtdd in the various legislatures, we cannot asguehat, if enacted into law, these
proposals would not have a negative impact on asinless, operations or financial condition. In &ddj California continues to consider
legislative proposals to require prior regulatopp®val of premium rate increases or establishmimh benefit expense ratio thresholds. Tt
proposals include a potential ballot propositiogareling prior regulatory approval of rate increa®egshe individual and small group products,
which, if passed, could prevent us from securingessary rate and benefit changes. This initiataseriot yet qualified to be included on the
ballot. If enacted, these state proposals coul@ lsawmaterial adverse impact on our business, task,ffinancial condition or results of
operations. States also continue to engage inhstéder discussions around the establishment ofangds, although some states that appeared
to be considering options in this regard in earnest seem to be waiting to advance proposals thdfke is additional clarity given by the
Supreme Court about the constitutionality of He&lttre Reform.
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From time to time, Congress has considered vafimuss of managed care reform legislation whictadbpted, could fundamentally al
the treatment of coverage decisions under ERISAlithahally, there have been legislative attemptbniit ERISA’s preemptive effect on state
laws and litigants’ ability to seek damages beythedbenefits offered under their plans. If adopgeath limitations could increase our liability
exposure, could permit greater state regulatioouofoperations, and could expand the scope of dasyagcluding punitive damages, litigants
could be awarded. While we cannot predict if anyhefe initiatives will ultimately become effectigg if enacted, what their terms will be,
their enactment could increase our costs, expose expanded liability or require us to revise Weys in which we conduct business. Further,
as we continue to implement our e-business initati uncertainty surrounding the regulatory autii@ind requirements in this area may make
it difficult to ensure compliance.

Our inability to contain health care costs, implemat increases in premium rates on a timely basis, niatain adequate reserves for
policy benefits, maintain our current provider agreements or avoid a downgrade in our credit ratings ray adversely affect our business
and profitability.

Our profitability depends in large part on accusafgedicting health care costs and on our abilitynanage future health care costs
through underwriting criteria, medical managempriduct design and negotiation of favorable provamtracts. Government-imposed
limitations on Medicare and Medicaid reimbursenmente also caused the private sector to bear aggra@re of increasing health care costs.
Changes in health care practices, demographic deaistics, inflation, new technologies, the cdsp@scription drugs, clusters of high cost
cases, changes in the regulatory environment antraus other factors affecting the cost of headtie enay adversely affect our ability to
predict and manage health care costs, as wellrdsusiness, financial condition and results of aiens. Relatively small differences between
predicted and actual health care costs as a pageeof premium revenues can result in significiainges in our results of operations. If it is
determined that our assumptions regarding costisrand utilization are significantly different thactual results, our income statement and
financial position could be adversely affected.

In addition to the challenge of managing healtte @arsts, we face pressure to contain premium r@igscustomer contracts may be
subject to renegotiation as customers seek to itothtair costs. Alternatively, our customers mayweto a competitor to obtain more favore
premiums. Further, federal and state regulatoryneige may restrict our ability to implement changegremium rates. For example, ACA
includes an annual rate review requirement to fibbinreasonable rate increases. Fiscal concegasdiag the continued viability of prograi
such as Medicare and Medicaid may cause decressimgursement rates or a lack of sufficient incesiasreimbursement rates for
government-sponsored programs in which we partieip& limitation on our ability to increase or meiim our premium or reimbursement
levels or a significant loss of membership resglfiom our need to increase or maintain premiumeonbursement levels could adversely
affect our business, cash flows, financial condiémd results of operations.

The reserves that we establish for health insurpotiey benefits and other contractual rights aaddjits are based upon assumptions
concerning a number of factors, including trendBealth care costs, expenses, general economidtiomsdand other factors. To the extent the
actual claims experience is less favorable thamagtd based on our underlying assumptions, owriad losses would increase and future
earnings could be adversely affected.

Our profitability is dependent in part upon ourlégpito contract on favorable terms with hospitgdbysicians and other health care
providers. The failure to maintain or to securet-@fective health care provider contracts may ltéawa loss of membership or higher medical
costs, which could adversely affect our busingsaddition, our inability to contract with provideror the inability of providers to provide
adequate care, could adversely affect our busiiéesdo not have contracts with all providers tlegider services to our members and, as a
result, do not have a pre-established agreemenit #b® amount of compensation those out-of-netvpookiders will accept for the services
they render, which can result in significant litiga or arbitration proceedings.
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Claims-paying ability and financial strength rasngy nationally recognized statistical rating ofigations are an important factor in
establishing the competitive position of insuranompanies and health benefits companies. Eacteafrtit rating agencies reviews its rati
periodically and there can be no assurance thatuent credit ratings will be maintained in theure. We believe our strong credit ratings
an important factor in marketing our products tetomers, since credit ratings information is brgatisseminated and generally used
throughout the industry. If our credit ratings dmvngraded or placed under review, with possibgatiee implications, such actions could
adversely affect our business, financial condiiod results of operations. These credit ratingeeeéach credit rating agency’s opinion of our
financial strength, operating performance and ghidi meet our obligations to policyholders anddit@'s, and are not evaluations directed
toward the protection of investors in our commackt

A significant reduction in the enrollment in our health benefits programs could have an adverse effeonh our business and
profitability.

A significant reduction in the number of enrollée®ur health benefits programs could adverselgafbur business, financial condition
and results of operations. Factors that could dmute to a reduction in enrollment include: redot in workforce by existing customers;
general economic downturn that results in busifeiges; employers no longer offering certain tleahre coverage as an employee benefit or
electing to offer this coverage on a voluntary, Eyee-funded basis; state and federal regulatoapgés; failure to obtain new customers or
retain existing customers; premium increases anéfiiechanges; our exit from a specific market;atege publicity and news coverage; and
failure to attain or maintain nationally recognizeztreditations.

There are various risks associated with participatig in Medicare and Medicaid programs, and contractig with CMS to provide
Medicare Part C and Medicare Part D Prescription Diug benefits.

We offer Medicare approved prescription drug plévisdicare Part D) nationally and Medicare Advantplzas (Medicare Part C) in
select states and/or counties where we are liceinseske the “Blue” brands to market our plans talMare eligible individuals. In addition, we
provide various administrative services for othatitees offering medical and/or prescription drdgrs to their Medicare eligible employees
and retirees through our affiliated companies. l8e participate in Medicare fiscal intermediary aviddicaid programs and receive revenues
from the Medicare and Medicaid programs to providaefits under these programs.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programsi@pendent, in whole or in part, upon annual fogdiom the federal government
and/or applicable state governments. Funding feselprograms is dependent upon many factors ouwsilér control including general
economic conditions and budgetary constraintseaf@tieral or applicable state level and generafipall issues and priorities. An unexpected
reduction or inadequate government funding foreél®grams may adversely affect our revenues aaddial results.

Risks associated with the Medicare Advantage andidaee prescription drug plans include potentiadaliectability of receivables
resulting from processing and/or verifying enroliteénadequacy of underwriting assumptions, ingbtt receive and process correct
information (including inability due to systemstgs by the federal government, the applicable giaternment or us), uncollectability of
premiums from members, increased medical or phagutmal costs, and the underlying seasonality isflithisiness. While we believe we have
adequately reviewed our assumptions and estimegesding these complex and wide-ranging prograndsuiedicare Part C and D,
including those related to collectability of recalives and establishment of liabilities, the actaaults may be materially different than our
assumptions and estimates and could have a madsiatse effect on our business, financial condiéiod results of operations.

CMS is currently conducting competitive procurenseotreplace the current fiscal intermediary amdigacontracts with contracts that
conform to the Federal Acquisition Regulations. S&haew contracts, referred to as Medicare Admatist Contracts, or MACs, will combine
most of the administrative activities currently
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performed by the existing intermediaries and cesriat year end 2011, NGS held two MACs as a primetractor and supported two MACs
a subcontractor. If NGS fails to be awarded new MAS a result of this competitive procurement msgcthis could have a material adverse
effect on our business, cash flows, financial cbodiand results of operations.

The laws and regulations governing participatioMidicare and Medicaid programs are complex andabgct to regular change and
interpretation, which can expose us to penaltiesém-compliance. Of note, and consistent withpgrexeding sentence, CMS has been
conducting audits of our Medicare Advantage hegliiims to validate the diagnostic data and patilins that are submitted to CMS. These
audits may result in retrospective adjustmentsaynpents made to our health plans. In addition gffail to correct errors discovered during an
audit or otherwise fail to comply with the applitalaws and regulations we could be subject toic@irfines, civil penalties or other sanctions
which could have a material adverse effect on bilityto participate in these programs, and onfinencial condition, cash flows and results
of operations. In addition, legislative or regulgtohanges to these programs could have a maseharse effect on our business, cash flows,
financial condition and results of operations.

Adverse securities and credit market conditions magignificantly affect our ability to meet liquidity needs.

The securities and credit markets have in the @gstrienced higher than normal volatility, althowginrent market conditions are more
stable. In some cases, the markets have exerteavelnd pressure on availability of liquidity and ditecapacity for certain issuers. We need
liquidity to pay our operating expenses, make paymsen our indebtedness and pay capital expenditlitee principal sources of our cash
receipts are premiums, administrative fees, investrincome, other revenue, proceeds from the sateaturity of our investment securities,
proceeds from borrowings and proceeds from theceseepf stock options.

Our access to additional financing will depend oragety of factors such as market conditions,géeeral availability of credit, the
volume of trading activities, the overall availatyilof credit to our industry, our credit ratingsdacredit capacity, as well as the possibility that
customers or lenders could develop a negative pgoceof our long- or short-term financial prospeimilarly, our access to funds may be
impaired if regulatory authorities or rating agessctake negative actions against us. If one omeawation of these factors were to occur, our
internal sources of liquidity may prove to be irfesiént, and in such case, we may not be able ¢oesssfully obtain additional financing on
favorable terms. One of our sources of liquiditpis $2,500.0 million commercial paper program jvdi#99.8 million and $336.2 million
outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respéctShould commercial paper issuance be unavajlale intend to use a combination of
cash on hand and/or our $2,000.0 million senioolkgrg credit facility to redeem our commercial papvhen it matures. While there is no
assurance in the current economic environment,elieve the lenders participating in our senior gr&tility will be willing and able to
provide financing in accordance with their legaligétions.

The value of our investments is influenced by varyig economic and market conditions, and a decrease value may result in a los:
charged to income.

The market values of our investments vary from tim#me depending on economic and market conditiéior various reasons, we may
sell certain of our investments at prices thatl@se than the carrying value of the investmentsdidition, in periods of declining interest rates,
bond calls and mortgage loan prepayments genenallgase, resulting in the reinvestment of thesed$uat the then lower market rates. In
periods of rising interest rates, the market vabhfesur fixed maturity securities will generallyaease, which could result in material
unrealized or realized losses on investments uréuperiods. In addition, defaults by issuers, grity from investments in corporate and
municipal bonds, who fail to pay or perform theligations, could reduce net investment income chwvould adversely affect our
profitability. We cannot assure you that our inwestt portfolios will produce positive returns irtite periods.
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Current and long-term available-for-sale investnssdurities were $17,376.8 million at December21,1 and represented 33% of our
total consolidated assets at December 31, 20ldcdardance with FASB guidance for debt and equitg$tments, we classify fixed maturity
and equity securities in our investment portfokd‘available-for-sale” or “trading” and report tlosecurities at fair value.

In accordance with applicable accounting standavdseview our investment securities to determirteclines in fair value below cost
are other-than-temporary. This review is subjecéind requires a high degree of judgment. We corttiiscteview on a quarterly basis
analyzing both quantitative and qualitative fact@sch factors considered include the length oétand the extent to which market value has
been less than cost, financial condition and rexan prospects of the issuer, recommendations estnvent advisors and forecasts of
economic, market or industry trends.

Changes in the economic environment, includinggueriof increased volatility of the securities maskean increase the difficulty of
assessing investment impairment and the same idfagetend to increase the risk of potential impairhof these assets. We believe we have
adequately reviewed our investment securitiesrfgrairment and we believe that we have appropriasifiynated the fair values of our
investment securities. However, over time, the eotin and market environment may provide additiansight, which could change our
judgment regarding the fair value of certain seamsiand/or impairment. Given the current marketditions and the significant judgmel
involved, there is continuing risk that further tilees in fair value may occur and material othearitemporary impairments may be charged to
income in future periods, resulting in realizedsles

Regional concentrations of our business may subjeas to economic downturns in those regions.

The national economy has continued to experierdimaanturn, with the potential for continued high om@oyment. Most of our revenues
are generated in the states of California, Color&@tmnecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Mainésdduri, Nevada, New Hampshire, New
York, Ohio, Virginia and Wisconsin. Due to this cemtration of business in these states, we aresexipto potential losses resulting from the
risk of a more severe economic downturn in theastest If economic conditions do not improve, we reggerience a reduction in existing and
new business, which could have a material advdfset@n our business, cash flows, financial cdnditand results of operations.

The health benefits industry is subject to negativeublicity, which can adversely affect our businesand profitability.

The health benefits industry is subject to negagtivilicity. Negative publicity may result in inciead regulation and legislative review of
industry practices, which may further increaseaasts of doing business and adversely affect afitability by: adversely affecting our
ability to market our products and services; raqgius to change our products and services; oe&sing the regulatory burdens under which
we operate.

In addition, as long as we use the Blue Cross dud 8Bhield names and marks in marketing our hédwgttefits products and services, any
negative publicity concerning the BCBSA or otherESA licensees may adversely affect us and thec$alar health benefits products and
services. Any such negative publicity could advigragfect our business, cash flows, financial coindi and results of operations.

We face competition in many of our markets and cusimers and brokers have flexibility in moving betwee competitors.

As a health benefits company, we operate in a highinpetitive environment and in an industry tisaturrently subject to significant
changes from legislative reform, business constitida, new strategic alliances, aggressive marggginactices by other health benefits
organizations and market pressures brought aboahlgformed and organized customer base, partlgidanong large employers. This
environment has produced and will likely continagotoduce significant pressures on the profitabdithealth benefits companies.
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We are currently dependent on the non-exclusiwaces of independent agents and brokers in the etiagkof our health care products,
particularly with respect to individuals, seniorelasmall employer group members. We face intensgetition for the services and allegiance
of these independent agents and brokers, who rsaynadrket the products of our competitors. Outtieahip with our brokers and
independent agents could be adversely impactedhéyges in our business practices to address Heatth Reform legislation, including
potential reductions in commissions and consultées paid to agents and brokers. We cannot ensateve will be able to compete
successfully against current and future competitorthat competitive pressures faced by us willmaterially and adversely affect our
business, cash flows, financial condition and tssofl operations.

We face intense competition to attract and retainmployees. Further, managing Chief Executive Officeand key executive
succession and retention is critical to our success

We are dependent on retaining existing employedsatiracting additional qualified employees to mmaetent and future needs and
achieving productivity gains from our investmemtgeéchnology. We face intense competition for digaiemployees, and there can be no
assurance that we will be able to attract andmesach employees or that such competition amongngiat employers will not result in
increasing salaries. An inability to retain exigtiemployees or attract additional employees coaicla material adverse effect on our busii
cash flows, financial condition and results of @tiems.

We would be adversely affected if we fail to adeglyaplan for succession of our Chief Executivei€df, and senior management and
retention of key executives. While we have sucogsplans in place and we have employment arrangesméth certain key executives, these
do not guarantee that the services of these exesutiill continue to be available to us.

A change in our health care product mix may impacbur profitability.

Our health care products that involve greater gatensk generally tend to be more profitable thedministrative services products and
those health care products where the employer grasgume the underwriting risks. Individuals andlsemployer groups are more likely to
purchase our higher-risk health care products tsscauch purchasers are generally unable or ungiidirbear greater liability for health care
expenditures. Typically, government-sponsored @ogralso involve our higher-risk health care preslug shift of enrollees from more
profitable products to less profitable productsiddave a material adverse effect on our finanmgldition and results of operations.

As a holding company, we are dependent on dividendiom our subsidiaries. These dividends are necesyao pay our
outstanding indebtedness. Our regulated subsidiargeare subject to state regulations, including restctions on the payment of dividends
maintenance of minimum levels of capital and restdtions on investment portfolios.

We are a holding company whose assets includé #ibooutstanding shares of common stock of ousislidries including our
intermediate holding companies and regulated imagrand HMO subsidiaries. Our subsidiaries areragpéegal entities. As a holding
company, we depend on dividends from our subsiBafurthermore, our subsidiaries are not obligatedake funds available to us, and
creditors of our subsidiaries will have a supediaim to certain of our subsidiaries’ assets. Amotiger restrictions, state insurance and HMO
laws may restrict the ability of our regulated sdizsies to pay dividends. In some states we haadatspecial undertakings that may limit the
ability of our regulated subsidiaries to pay divids. In addition, our subsidiaries’ ability to mak®y payments to us will also depend on their
earnings, the terms of their indebtedness, busimeddax considerations and other legal restristi@ur ability to repurchase shares or pay
dividends in the future to our shareholders andtrmeeobligations, including paying operating expesiand debt service on our outstanding
and future indebtedness, will depend upon the peodidividends from our subsidiaries. An inabildf/our subsidiaries to pay dividends in the
future in an amount sufficient for us to meet doafcial obligations may materially adversely affear business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.
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Most of our regulated subsidiaries are subjectB&Rtandards, imposed by their states of domitiese laws are based on the RBC
Model Act adopted by the NAIC and require our regedl subsidiaries to report their results of tisised capital calculations to the departm
of insurance and the NAIC. Failure to maintain thieimum RBC standards could subject our regulatéxigliaries to corrective action,
including state supervision or liquidation. Ourukgded subsidiaries are currently in compliancéntlie risk-based capital or other similar
requirements imposed by their respective statelowficile. As discussed in more detail below, weaparty to license agreements with the
BCBSA which contain certain requirements and retitms regarding our operations, including minimeapital and liquidity requirements,
which could restrict the ability of our regulatadbsidiaries to pay dividends.

Our regulated subsidiaries are subject to state &wd regulations that require diversification of mvestment portfolios and limit the
amount of investments in certain riskier investmeategories, such as below-investment-grade fixatlirity securities, mortgage loans, real
estate and equity investments, which could gendiigteer returns on our investments. Failure to dgmyith these laws and regulations might
cause investments exceeding regulatory limitattorige treated as non-admitted assets for purpdseeasuring statutory surplus and risk-
based capital, and, in some instances, requireaieeof those investments.

We have substantial indebtedness outstanding and méancur additional indebtedness in the future. Suctindebtedness could also
adversely affect our ability to pursue desirable bginess opportunities.

As of December 31, 2011, we had indebtedness adiisiz of approximately $9,795.4 million and haditalde borrowing capacity of
approximately $2,000.0 million under our senioraleing credit facility, which expires on Septemi2&, 2016. Our debt service obligations
require us to use a portion of our cash flow to imégrest and principal on debt instead of for ott@rporate purposes, including funding future
expansion. If our cash flow and capital resourcesrssufficient to service our debt obligations, may be forced to seek extraordinary
dividends from our subsidiaries, sell assets, seleltional equity or debt capital or restructure debt. However, these measures might be
unsuccessful or inadequate in permitting us to reele¢duled debt service obligations.

We may also incur future debt obligations that migibject us to restrictive covenants that couldcafour financial and operational
flexibility. Our breach or failure to comply wittng of these covenants could result in a defauleawdr credit agreement. If we default under
our credit agreement, the lenders could cease ke fioather extensions of credit or cause all of outstanding debt obligations under our
credit agreement to become immediately due andgpeytmgether with accrued and unpaid intereshdfindebtedness under our notes or our
credit agreement is accelerated, we may be unalepay or finance the amounts due. Indebtednedd atso limit our ability to pursue
desirable business opportunities, and may affecability to maintain an investment grade ratingdar indebtedness.

We face risks related to litigation.

We are, or may in the future, be a party to a waieé legal actions that affect any business, agkmployment and employment
discrimination-related suits and administrativergieas before government agencies, employee beteifits; breach of contract actions, tort
claims and intellectual property-related litigatidm addition, because of the nature of our busineg are subject to a variety of legal actions
relating to our business operations, includingdesign, management and offering of our productssendices. These could include claims
relating to the denial of health care benefits;rsrission of health insurance policies; develagme application of medical policy; medical
malpractice actions; allegations of anti-competitand unfair business activities; provider dispotesr compensation; provider tiering
programs; termination of provider contracts; salided business; disputes over co-payment calcoitieimbursement of out-of-network
claims; the failure to disclose certain businessasporate governance practices; and customersaait contract performance, including
government contracts. We also may be required rticfate in state
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insurance guaranty association programs, whichdo@guire us to pay a portion of policyholder claiaf insolvent insurers. These actions or
proceedings could have a material adverse effecuotusiness, cash flows, financial condition egglilts of operations.

In addition, we are also involved in, or may in fbure be party to, pending or threatened litigatdf the character incidental to the
business transacted, arising out of our operatormsir 2001 demutualization, including, but notitexd to, breaches of security and violations
of privacy requirements, shareholder actions, c@anpk with federal and state laws and regulationsales and acquisitions of businesses or
assets, and are from time to time involved as typawvarious governmental investigations, audigsjews and administrative proceedings.
These investigations, audits and reviews includéime and special investigations by various staseiiance departments, state attorneys ge
and the U.S. Attorney General. Such investigatmmdd result in the imposition of civil or criminfihes, penalties and other sanctions.
Liabilities that may result from these actions cblbve a material adverse effect on our cash flosgsilts of operations or financial position.

Recent court decisions and legislative activity rimyease our exposure for any of these typesaifngl. In some cases, substantial non-
economic, treble or punitive damages may be soMgatcurrently have insurance coverage for sombeaxfe potential liabilities. Other
potential liabilities may not be covered by insur@ninsurers may dispute coverage or the amounsafance may not be enough to cover the
damages awarded. In addition, certain types of desyasuch as punitive damages, may not be covgretsirance, and insurance coverage
all or certain forms of liability may become undahie or prohibitively expensive in the future. Aagiverse judgment against us resulting in
such damage awards could have an adverse effextrarash flows, results of operations and finanoasidition.

There are various risks associated with providing alth care services.

Many states in which we operate our CareMore sidrgidimit the practice of medicine to licensediwiduals or professional
organizations comprised of licensed individualssiBass corporations generally may not exerciserabover the medical decisions of
physicians (“corporate practice of medicine”) anelave not licensed to practice medicine. Rulesragdlations relating to the practice of
medicine, fee-splitting between physicians andrrafesources, and similar issues vary from statgdte. Further, certain federal and state laws
prohibit the offer, payment, solicitation, or rqutedf any form of remuneration to induce, or iruretfor, the referral of patient care
opportunities, including, but not limited to, Medie patients, (“anti-kickback rules”) and also gatig prohibit physicians from making
referrals to any entity providing certain desigdatealth services if the referring physician oatetl person has an ownership or financial
interest in the entity (“self-referral rules”).

We believe that our health care service operattonsply with applicable rules and regulations regaydhe corporate practice of
medicine, fee-splitting, anti-kickback, self-ref@rand similar issues. However, any enforcemendrsty governmental officials alleging non-
compliance with these rules and regulations codiceesely affect our business, cash flows, finanodsidition or results of operations.

The direct provision of health care services atswlves risks of additional litigation arising fromedical malpractice actions based on
our treatment decisions or brought against us opbusician associates for alleged malpracticerofgssional liability claims arising out of tl
delivery of health care and related services. bhitamh, liability may arise from maintaining healthre premises that serve the public. If we fail
to maintain adequate insurance coverage for thsiities, or if such insurance is not availalites resulting costs could adversely affect our
cash flows, financial condition or results of ofenas.
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We are a party to license agreements with the BCBSthat entitle us to the exclusive and in certain aas non-exclusive use of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and marks in oureggraphic territories. The termination of these liense agreements or changes in
the terms and conditions of these license agreemsrdould adversely affect our business, financial odition and results of operations.

We use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield names ankkraaridentifiers for our products and servicesentidenses from the BCBSA. Our
license agreements with the BCBSA contain certguirements and restrictions regarding our operatémd our use of the Blue Cross and
Blue Shield names and marks, including: minimumitedgnd liquidity requirements imposed by the B@B$&nrollment and customer service
performance requirements; participation in progrémas provide portability of membership betweempleadisclosures to the BCBSA relating
enrollment and financial conditions; disclosurescathe structure of the Blue Cross and Blue Stsgktem in contracts with third parties an
public statements; plan governance requirememneg@irement that at least 80% (or, in the caselaé Bross of California, substantially all)
a licensee’s annual combined local net revenudefised by the BCBSA, attributable to health bern@fins within its service areas must be
sold, marketed, administered or underwritten utideBlue Cross and Blue Shield names and marlej@rement that at least 66 2/3% of a
licensee’s annual combined national net revenudefised by the BCBSA, attributable to health bérmgans must be sold, marketed,
administered or underwritten under the Blue CrossBlue Shield names and marks; a requiremenniititer a plan nor any of its licensed
affiliates may permit an entity other than a plaradicensed affiliate to obtain control of theplar the licensed affiliate or to acquire a
substantial portion of its assets related to liebles services; a requirement that we divide our@oé Directors into three classes serving
staggered three-year terms; a requirement thatwaeagtee certain contractual and financial oblayetiof our licensed affiliates; and a
requirement that we indemnify the BCBSA against elayms asserted against it resulting from the remtial and financial obligations of any
subsidiary that serves as a fiscal intermediaryigog administrative services for Medicare Partarfl B. Failure to comply with the
foregoing requirements could result in a termimratdthe license agreements.

The standards under the license agreements mapdiéied in certain instances by the BCBSA. For eglanfrom time to time there
have been proposals considered by the BCBSA tofsntith terms of the license agreements to restadbus potential business activities of
licensees. These proposals have included, amomeg thtings, a limitation on the ability of a licelesi® make its provider networks available to
insurance carriers or other entities not holdirgjuee Cross or Blue Shield license. To the exteat fuch amendments to the license agreer
are adopted in the future, they could have a rnedtadverse effect on our future expansion planesuilts of operations. Further, BCBS
licensees have certain requirements to perform ridtrative services for members of other BCBS l#zs. If we or another BCBS licensee is
not in compliance with all legal requirements ag anable to perform administrative services asireduthis could have an adverse effect on
our members and our ability to maintain our licensehich could have a material adverse effect arbasginess, cash flows, financial condit
and results of operations.

Upon the occurrence of an event causing terminatidhe license agreements, we would no longer fzeeight to use the Blue Cross
and Blue Shield names and marks in one or moreio$ervice areas. Furthermore, the BCBSA would®e fo issue a license to use the Blue
Cross and Blue Shield names and marks in thes&seameas to another entity. Events that coulde#us termination of a license agreement
with the BCBSA include failure to comply with minim capital requirements imposed by the BCBSA, aaghaf control or violation of the
BCBSA ownership limitations on our capital stoakpending financial insolvency and the appointméra tustee or receiver or the
commencement of any action against a licenseersgékidissolution. We believe that the Blue Crasd Blue Shield names and marks are
valuable identifiers of our products and servicethe marketplace. Accordingly, termination of lisense agreements could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

Upon termination of a license agreement, the BCB®AId impose a “Re-establishment Fee” upon us, whiould allow the BCBSA to
“re-establish” a Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield pre® in the vacated service area. Through Decegih@011 the fee was set at $98.33 per
licensed enrollee. As of December 31, 2011 we
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reported 29.0 million Blue Cross and/or Blue Shietdollees. If the Re-establishment Fee was appdiedir total Blue Cross and/or Blue
Shield enrollees, we would be assessed approxiynb2ed billion by the BCBSA.

Large-scale medical emergencies may have a mater&dverse effect on our business, cash flows, finaakccondition and results of
operations.

Large-scale medical emergencies can take many fami€an cause widespread illness and death. Bor@g, federal and state law
enforcement officials have issued warnings abotgni@l terrorist activity involving biological amather weapons. In addition, natural disas
such as hurricanes and the potential for a wideagsppandemic of influenza coupled with the lackwilability of appropriate preventative
medicines can have a significant impact on thethexdlthe population of wide-spread areas. If thététl States were to experience widespread
bioterrorism or other attacks, large-scale natdigdsters in our concentrated coverage areasavge-kcale pandemic or epidemic, our covered
medical expenses could rise and we could experiamsaterial adverse effect on our business, casisflfinancial condition and results of
operations or, in the event of extreme circumstgnaer viability could be threatened.

We have built a significant portion of our current business through mergers and acquisitions, joint véures and strategic alliance:
and we expect to pursue such opportunities in theufure.

The following are some of the risks associated wilrgers and acquisitions, joint ventures andegiatalliances (collectively, “business
combinations”) that could have a material advefeceon our business, financial condition and hssof operations:
» some of the acquired businesses may not achieigpated revenues, earnings or cash flow;

* we may establish goodwill or other intangible asset a result of a future business combinationchviriay be incorrectly valued
become no-recoverable

* we may assume liabilities that were not disclogedstor which were under-estimated;

* we may be unable to integrate acquired businesmegssfully, or as quickly as expected, and realigeipated economi
operational and other benefits in a timely manmich could result in substantial costs and detaysther operational, technical or
financial problems

* business combinations could disrupt our ongoingrass, distract management, divert resources akd ihdifficult to maintain ou
current business standards, controls and procec

» we may finance future business combinations byirigscommon stock for some or all of the purchasespmwhich could dilute the
ownership interests of our sharehold:

* we may also incur additional debt related to futmsiness combinations; a

* we would be competing with other firms, some ofethinay have greater financial and other resoutoes;quire attractive
companies

The value of our intangible assets may become impad.

Due largely to our past mergers and acquisitionedwill and other intangible assets represent ataabial portion of our assets.
Goodwill and other intangible assets were approtetye$21,790.4 million as of December 31, 2011respnting approximately 42% of our
total assets and 94% of our consolidated sharef®ldguity at December 31, 2011. If we make adddlacquisitions it is likely that we will
record additional intangible assets on our conatdid balance sheets.

In accordance with applicable accounting standavdsperiodically evaluate our goodwill and othdairgible assets to determine whe
all or a portion of their carrying values may nader be recoverable, in which case a charge tavieamay be necessary. This impairment
testing requires us to make assumptions and
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judgments regarding the estimated fair value ofrepprting units, including goodwill and other ingable assets (with indefinite lives).
addition, certain other intangible assets with firdie lives, such as trademarks, are also testedrately. Estimated fair values developed
based on our assumptions and judgments might bdisantly different if other reasonable assumpsi@md estimates were to be used. If
estimated fair values are less than the carryihgegaof goodwill and other intangible assets wittiefinite lives in future impairment tests, o
significant impairment indicators are noted relatio other intangible assets subject to amortimati@ may be required to record impairment
losses against future income.

Any future evaluations requiring an impairment af goodwill and other intangible assets could maligraffect our results of operatio
and shareholders’ equity in the period in whichithpairment occurs. A material decrease in shadshiel equity could, in turn, negatively
impact our debt ratings or potentially impact oampliance with existing debt covenants.

In addition, the estimated value of our reportimiisimay be impacted as a result of business desisie make associated with the
implementation of the various Health Care Reforgulations. Such decisions, which could unfavoraffgct our ability to support the
carrying value of certain goodwill and other intdolg assets, could result in impairment chargdstiuore periods.

We may not be able to realize the value of our defed tax assets.

In accordance with applicable accounting standavesseparately recognize deferred tax assets dadeld tax liabilities. Such deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities repredentax effect of temporary differences betweenrfaia reporting and tax reporting measured at
tax rates enacted at the time the deferred taxt asfiability is recorded.

At each financial reporting date, we evaluate mfeded tax assets to determine the likely reatinadf the benefit of the temporary
differences. Our evaluation includes a review eftypes of temporary differences that created #ferced tax asset; the amount of taxes paid
on both capital gains and ordinary income in ppieriods and available for a carry-back claim; re¢asted future taxable income, and
therefore, the likely future deduction of the dedertax item; and any other significant issues thigiht impact the realization of the deferred
tax asset. If it is “more likely than not” that alt a portion of the deferred tax asset may natehézed, we establish a valuation allowance.
Significant judgment is required in determiningagpropriate valuation allowance.

Any future increase in the valuation allowance wdo@sult in additional income tax expense and asdese in shareholdersquity, whick
could materially affect our financial position arabults of operations in the period in which theréase occurs. A material decrease in
shareholders’ equity could, in turn, negatively &opour debt ratings or potentially impact our ctiemre with existing debt covenants.

An unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confideimal member information could have an adverse efféaon our business,
reputation and profitability.

As part of our normal operations, we collect, psscand retain sensitive and confidential memberinétion. We are subject to various
federal, state and international laws and ruleandigg the use and disclosure of sensitive or dentiial member information, including
HIPAA and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. Despite tleegrity measures we have in place to help ensunpliance with applicable laws and
rules, our facilities and systems, and those oftloiud party service providers, may be vulnerablsécurity breaches, acts of vandalism,
computer viruses, misplaced or lost data, progrargrand/or human errors or other similar events.ddorpliance with any privacy or security
laws and regulations or any security breach invigithe misappropriation, loss or other unauthoridiedlosure of sensitive or confidential
member information, whether by us or by one ofwvandors, could result in enforcement actions, neténes and penalties, litigation or ott
actions which could have a material adverse effeatur business, reputation and results of operatio

33



Table of Contents

The failure to effectively maintain and upgrade ourinformation systems could adversely affect our busess.

Our business depends significantly on effectiverimfation systems, and we have many different inédiom systems for our various
businesses. As a result of our merger and acansittivities, we have acquired additional systegng. information systems require an
ongoing commitment of significant resources to rteaimand enhance existing systems and develop ystems in order to keep pace with
continuing changes in information processing tetdog evolving industry and regulatory standarasnpliance with legal requirements (such
as a new set of standardized diagnostic codes, ikmeWwCD-10), and changing customer preferenceaddiition, we may from time to time
obtain significant portions of our systems-relateather services or facilities from independeirttiparties, which may make our operations
vulnerable to such third parties’ failure to penfoadequately.

Our failure to maintain effective and efficientanfnation systems, or our failure to efficiently agféectively consolidate our information
systems to eliminate redundant or obsolete apitsit could have a material adverse effect on asimess, financial condition and results of
operations. If the information we rely upon to ur business were found to be inaccurate or utneliar if we fail to maintain our informatic
systems and data integrity effectively, we couldeha decrease in membership, have problems inndieielg medical cost estimates and
establishing appropriate pricing and reserves, llisutes with customers and providers, have régylgroblems, sanctions or penalties
imposed, have increases in operating expensedfer sther adverse consequences. In addition, &degulations require that we begin using
ICD-10 by October 2013, which will require signdiat information technology investment. If we failddequately implement ICD-10, we may
incur losses with respect to the resources invesmtedchave other material adverse effects on ounéss and results of operations. Also, as we
convert or migrate members to our more efficiert effective systems, the risk of disruption in customer service is increased during the
migration or conversion process and such disruptarid have a material adverse effect on our bssineash flow, financial condition and
results of operations.

We are working towards becoming a premier e-busioeganization by modernizing interactions withtousers, brokers, agents,
providers, employees and other stakeholders thrawgghenabling technology and redesigning interpalrations. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to fully realize our e-businessatis The failure to maintain successful e-busiregmbilities could result in competitive and
cost disadvantages to us as compared to our cdogeti

We are dependent on the success of our relationshigth a large vendor for a significant portion of aur information system
resources and certain other vendors for various otbr services.

We have an agreement with International Businesshiias Corporation, or IBM, pursuant to which wesourced a significant portion
of our data center operations and certain cordagijfiins development. We are dependent upon IBMHhfese support functions. The IBM
agreement includes service level agreements, osStefated to issues such as performance and sobpdion, with significant financial
penalties if these SLAs are not met, as well asitetion assistance provisions obligating IBM toyide services during periods following
transitions or terminations. If our relationshighviBM is significantly disrupted for any reasone way not be able to find an alternative
partner in a timely manner or on acceptable firgrterms. As a result, we may not be able to nfeetiemands of our customers and, in turn,
our business, cash flows, financial condition aeglits of operations may be harmed. We may notlbguately indemnified against all
possible losses through the terms and conditiotiseofBM agreement. In addition, some of our temtion rights are contingent upon payment
of a fee, which may be significant.

We entered into a ten-year contract for Expresgp&cto provide PBM services to our members in @mtion with the sale of our PBM
business to Express Scripts in December 2009. BgBeripts is now the exclusive provider of cersgiacified pharmacy benefits manager
services, such as pharmacy network management, delivery, pharmacy customer service, claims prsiogs rebate management, drug
utilization
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and specialty pharmaceutical management servigasordingly, the agreement contains certain findreoia operational requirements
obligating both Express Scripts and us. The faibfreither party to meet the respective agreemmmikl potentially serve as a basis for early
termination of the contract. If this relationshipswterminated for any reason, we may not be alfiadalternative partners in a timely manner
or on acceptable financial terms. As a result, veg mot be able to meet the full demands of ourasusts, which could have a material adv
effect on our business, reputation and resultgpefations. In addition, our failure to meet certaiimimum script volume requirements may
result in financial penalties that could have aeriat adverse effect on our results of operations.

We have also entered into agreements with cereiders pursuant to which we have outsourced cevtaik-office functions. If any of
these vendor relationships were terminated forraagon, we may not be able to find an alternataréngr in a timely manner or on acceptable
financial terms. In addition, if for any reasonrnés a business continuity interruption resulfirggn loss of access to or availability of data, the
physical location, technological resources andd@gaate human assets, we may not be able to neeftiitdemands of our customers and, in
turn, our business, cash flow, financial conditiansl results of operations may be unfavorably irtgzhc

Indiana law, and other applicable laws, and our aricles of incorporation and bylaws, may prevent or écourage takeovers and
business combinations that our shareholders mightomsider in their best interest.

Indiana law and our articles of incorporation agthtvs may delay, defer, prevent or render moreatiff a takeover attempt that our
shareholders might consider in their best interégis instance, they may prevent our shareholders feceiving the benefit from any premii
to the market price of our common stock offeredallyidder in a takeover context. Even in the absehegtakeover attempt, the existence of
these provisions may adversely affect the prevailivarket price of our common stock if they are \@8evas discouraging takeover attempts in
the future.

We are regulated as an insurance holding compashg@ject to the insurance holding company acteettates in which our insurance
company subsidiaries are domiciled, as well aslairprovisions included in the health statutes mgilations of certain states where these
subsidiaries are regulated as managed care comspamitMOs. The insurance holding company acts egdlations and these similar health
provisions restrict the ability of any person tdaib control of an insurance company or HMO withprtibr regulatory approval. Under those
statutes and regulations, without such approvahfoexemption), no person may acquire any votiegriy of a domestic insurance company
or HMO, or an insurance holding company which calstan insurance company or HMO, or merge with subblding company, if as a result
of such transaction such person would “control”itreirance holding company, insurance company o©OHM ontrol” is generally defined as
the direct or indirect power to direct or causedtrection of the management and policies of ageend is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or markthe voting securities of another person. Furttiee Indiana business corporation law
contains business combination provisions thatgimegal, prohibit for five years any business coratiam with a beneficial owner of 10% or
more of our common stock unless the holder’s adiprisof the stock was approved in advance by coar of Directors.

Our articles of incorporation restrict the benefi@wnership of our capital stock in excess of #geownership limits. The ownership
limits restrict beneficial ownership of our votisgpital stock to less than 10% for institutionaldators and less than 5% for non-institutional
investors, both as defined in our articles of ipowation. Additionally, no person may beneficiadlywn shares of our common stock
representing a 20% or more ownership interest.ifThsse restrictions are intended to ensure ouptiante with the terms of our licenses v
the BCBSA. Our articles of incorporation prohibitmmership of our capital stock beyond these ownerbimits without prior approval of a
majority of our continuing directors (as definedomr articles of incorporation). In addition, asaissed above in the risk factor describing our
license agreements with the BCBSA, such licenseeagents are subject to termination upon a changerafol and re-establishment fees
would be imposed upon termination of the licenseagents.
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Certain other provisions included in our articlésncorporation and bylaws may also have anti-take@ffects and may delay, defer or
prevent a takeover attempt that our shareholdegbteonsider in their best interests. In particuteur articles of incorporation and bylaws:
divide our Board of Directors into three classavisg staggered three-year terms (which is alsaired by our license agreement with the
BCBSA); permit our Board of Directors to determthe terms of and issue one or more series of pezfestock without further action by
shareholders; restrict the maximum number of dims¢timit the ability of shareholders to removeegdiors; impose restrictions on
shareholders’ ability to fill vacancies on our Bob&f Directors; prohibit shareholders from callsgecial meetings of shareholders; impose
advance notice requirements for shareholder prdgpasa nominations of directors to be consideradestings of shareholders; and prohibit
shareholders from amending our bylaws.

We also face other risks that could adversely affeour business, financial condition or results of perations, which include:
* any requirement to restate financial results inethent of inappropriate application of accountimigpgiples;

» asignificant failure of our internal control oviarancial reporting;

* our inability to convert to international financi@porting standards, if require

» failure of our prevention and control systems eab employee compliance with internal policiesluding data security;
» provider fraud that is not prevented or detecteatliarpacts our medical costs or those of self-induestomers;

» failure to protect our proprietary information; &

» failure of our corporate governance policies orcprures.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED SEC STAFF COMMENTS.
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our principal executive offices are located at Mdhument Circle, Indianapolis, Indiana. In additiorthis location, we have other
principal operating facilities located in each loé tL4 states where we operate as licensees ofGB&SR. A majority of these locations are

leased properties. Our facilities support our uaibusiness segments. We believe that our propentieadequate and suitable for our business

as presently conducted as well as for the foresedature.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

For information regarding our legal proceedingg, thee “Litigation” and “Other Contingencies” sectoof Note 14, “Commitments and
Contingencies” to our unaudited consolidated fimargtatements included in Part II, Item 8. of th@@m 10-K.

ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED).
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Prices

Our common stock, par value $0.01 per share,tidlisn the NYSE under the symbol “WLP.” On Februgyr012, the closing price on
the NYSE was $64.65. As of February 9, 2012, tiee 89,802 shareholders of record of our commacksfThe following table presents
high and low sales prices for our common stockhenNY SE for the periods indicated.

High Low

2011

First Quartel $70.0C $56.7¢
Second Quarte 81.92 67.3¢
Third Quartel 80.9( 56.61
Fourth Quarte 71.7¢ 60.4¢
2010

First Quartel $70.0C $56.9¢
Second Quarte 65.81 48.8¢
Third Quartel 57.4¢ 46.52
Fourth Quarte 61.0C 52.9:

Dividends

Beginning in 2011, our Board of Directors estatdla shareholder dividend, declaring a quarted cividend in the amount of $0.25
per share. On January 24, 2012, the Board of irsahcreased the quarterly shareholder cash didide $0.2875 per share.

We regularly review the appropriate use of capitadluding common stock repurchases and divideod$hareholders. The declaration
and payment of any dividends or repurchases of comstock is at the discretion of our Board of Dices and depends upon our financial
condition, results of operations, future liquiditgeds, regulatory and capital requirements and €dlotors deemed relevant by our Board of
Directors. Further, our ability to pay dividendsotar shareholders, if authorized by the Board a&Etors, is significantly dependent upon the
receipt of dividends from our subsidiaries, inchgliAnthem Insurance Companies, Inc., Anthem Sosthé&z., Anthem Holding Corp.,
WellPoint Holding Corp., WellPoint Acquisition, LLLGVellPoint Insurance Services, Inc., ATH Holdingr@pany, LLC and SellCore, Inc. T
payment of dividends by our insurance subsidiasiéisout prior approval of the insurance departmadreach subsidiary’s domiciliary
jurisdiction is limited by formula. Dividends in egss of these amounts are subject to prior applyvtide respective insurance departme

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by this Item concerningwséties authorized for issuance under our equitygensation plans is set forth in or
incorporated by reference into Part I, Item 18eturity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Mahagement and Related Stockholder
Matters” in this Form 10-K.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents information relatedtw repurchases of common stock for the periodisdtied.

Total Number Approximate
of Shares Dollar Value
Purchased as of Shares tha
Part of May Yet Be
Total Number Average Publicly Purchased
of Shares Price Paic Announced Under the
Period Purchased! per Share Programs 2 Programs
(In millions, except share and per share d¢
October 1, 2011 to October 31, 2C 2,199,20. $ 65.0¢ 2,196,101 $ 4,876.
November 1, 2011 to November 30, 2( 3,288,78| 67.8( 3,287,30! 4,653.t
December 1, 2011 to December 31, 2 4,817,66. 66.3¢ 4,817,10I 4,333.°
10,305,64 10,300,50

Total number of shares purchased includes 5,14®shkelivered to or withheld by us in connectiothvémployee payroll tax

withholding upon exercise or vesting of stock awga®tock grants to employees and directors andt &éeaed for stock option plans and
stock purchase plans in the consolidated statenoéstsareholde’ equity are shown net of these shares purchi

Represents the number of shares repurchased thoaughpurchase program authorized by our Boafdirgctors. During the year end
December 31, 2011, we repurchased approximatef/million shares at a cost of $3,039.8 million untde program. On

February 3, February 22, May 17, August 25 and&aber 29, 2011, our Board of Directors authorizemldases of $375.0 million,
$1,100.0 million $500.0 million, $250.0 million, &$5,000.0 million, respectively, in our stock reghase progran
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infdiamacompares the cumulative total return to shalagrs of our common stock for
the period from December 31, 2006 through DecerlbeP011, with the cumulative total return overtsperiod of (i) the Standard & Poor’s
500 Stock Index (the “S&P 500 Index”) and (ii) theandard & Poor's Managed Health Care Index (th&P'$anaged Health Care Index”).
The graph assumes an investment of $100 on Dece3b&006 in each of our common stock, the S&PI5@@x and the S&P Managed
Health Care Index (and the reinvestment of alldéwids).

The comparisons shown in the graph below are baséistorical data and we caution that the stoaegrerformance shown in the
graph below is not indicative of, and is not inteddo forecast, the potential future performanceuwfcommon stock. Information used in the
graph was obtained from Alliance Advisors, L.L.&source believed to be reliable, but we are reggaesible for any errors or omissions in
such information. The following graph and relatefbimation shall not be deemed “soliciting mates'iar to be “filed”with the SEC, nor she

such information be incorporated by reference artp future filing under the Securities Act of 19388,amended, or the Exchange Act, except
to the extent that we specifically incorporateyitrbference into such filing.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

5150 ~
5100
550 +
Sﬂ T T L] T 1
A 3 2 -
{pﬂ" & S {P@" s &
o A A o R -{h"ﬂ
N \'ﬁb -{ﬁb 0 N nV
—— WellPgint, Inc. ——5&P 500 Index
—i— 5&P Managed Health Care Index
December 31
2006 2007 200 200¢ 201 2011
WellPaint, Inc. $10C $111 9$54 $74 $72 385
S&P 500 Inde> 10C 10E 66 84 97 99
S&P Managed Health Care Ind 10C 11€ 52 66 72 97

Basewpon an initial investment of $100 on December28D6 with dividends reinveste
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The table below provides selected consolidatedhfiz data of WellPoint. The information has beenived from our consolidated
financial statements for each of the years in ithee year period ended December 31, 2011. You shread this selected consolidated financial
data in conjunction with the audited consolidatiedricial statements and notes as of and for thegreted December 31, 2011 included in
II, ltem 8. “Financial Statements and Supplemeni2eya”, and Part Il, ltem 7. “Management’s Discassand Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” included in this ForrKLO

As of and for the Years Ended December 31

20111 2010 20092 2008 20072

(in millions, except where indicated and exceptgeare data
Income Statement Date
Total operating revent3 $59,865.. $57,740.! $60,740.( $61,503. $60,094.(
Total revenue 60,710. 58,698.! 64,939.! 61,175.¢ 61,106.
Net income 2,646." 2,887.: 4,745.¢ 2,490.° 3,345.¢
Per Share Data
Basic net income per she $ 7.3t $ 7.0 $ 9.9¢ $ 4.7¢ $ 564
Diluted net income per sha 7.2E 6.94 9.8¢ 4.7¢€ 5.5€
Dividends per shareln whole dollare) 1.0C — — — —
Other Data (unaudited)
Benefit expense rati4 85.1% 83.2% 83.6% 84.5% 83.2%
Selling, general and administrative expense © 14.1% 15.1% 14.8% 13.7% 13.6%
Income before income taxes as a percentage of total

revenue: 6.5% 7.4% 11.4% 5.1% 8.6%
Net income as a percentage of total revel 4.4% 4.%% 7.3% 4.1% 5.5%
Medical membershipIn thousand) 34,25 33,32: 33,67( 35,04¢ 34,80¢
Balance Sheet Dat:
Cash and investmen $20,596.¢ $20,236.: $22,588.: $17,402.¢ $21,249.¢
Total asset 52,018.¢ 50,166.¢ 52,125.: 48,403.: 52,060.(
Long-term debt, less current porti 8,420.¢ 8,147.¢ 8,338.: 7,833.¢ 9,023t
Total liabilities 28,730.t 26,354.: 27,262.. 26,971.! 29,069.t
Total shareholde’ equity 23,288.. 23,812.¢ 24,863.. 21,431 22,990.:

! The net assets of and results of operations foel@are Health Group, Inc. are included from its asigion date of August 22, 201

2 The net assets of and results of operations fordbeOental, LLC and Imaging Management HoldingsCldre included from their

respective acquisition dates of April 9, 2009 angyist 1, 2007, respectively. The results of openatfor our PBM business are incluc

until its sale on December 1, 2009. The resulispafrations for the year ended December 31, 2009das pre-tax and after-tax gains

related to the sale of our PBM business of $3,7888%$2,361.2, respective

Operating revenue is obtained by adding premiuchs\jristrative fees and other reven

4 The benefit expense ratio represents benefit exgsess a percentage of premium reve

° The selling, general and administrative expense rapresents selling, general and administratigereses as a percentage of total
operating revenus
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data or As Otherw&ated Herein)

References to the terms “we”, “our” or “us” usedotighout this Management’s Discussion and AnalgEisinancial Condition and
Results of Operations, or MD&A, refer to WellPoihig., an Indiana corporation, and unless the comtherwise requires, its direct and
indirect subsidiaries.

The structure of our MD&A is as follows:
l. Executive Summar

II.  Overview

lll.  Significant Event:

IV. Membershig

V. Cost of Care

VI. Results of Operatior

VII. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimat

VIII. Liquidity and Capital Resourct

IX. Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Seculitigmtion Reform Act of 199!

This MD&A should be read in conjunction with ourdited consolidated financial statements as of andhfe year ended December 31,
2011, included in this Form 10-K.

I. Executive Summary

We are one of the largest health benefits companiessms of medical membership in the United Staserving 34.3 medical members
through our affiliated health plans and a totab6f3 individuals through all subsidiaries as of @&aber 31, 2011. We are an independent
licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Assiaciabr BCBSA, an association of independent hdadthefit plans. We serve our membel
the Blue Cross licensee for California and as thee Eross and Blue Shield, or BCBS, licensee falo€ado, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana,
Kentucky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 30 countiedlie Kansas City area), Nevada, New Hampshire, Xesk (as BCBS in 10 New York
City metropolitan and surrounding counties, an@lag Cross or BCBS in selected upstate countieg) o®hio, Virginia (excluding the
Northern Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.), &tsconsin. In a majority of these service areaslwéusiness as Anthem Blue Crc
Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield, Blue Cross alueé Bhield of Georgia, Empire Blue Cross Blue Shielr Empire Blue Cross (in our Ne
York service areas). We also serve customers thiautghe country as UniCare and in certain CalitgrArizona and Nevada markets through
our recently acquired CareMore Health Group, lacCareMore, subsidiary. We are licensed to conhstirance operations in all 50 states
through our subsidiaries.

Operating revenue for the year ended December@®1, @as $59,865.2, an increase of $2,124.7, or 3rt¥h the year ended
December 31, 2010, reflecting premium rate incre@aseur Commercial and Consumer segments designealer cost trends, as well as
increased membership in our Senior business withirConsumer segment. These increases were paditdet by fully-insured membership
declines and the conversion of two large accounts fully-insured to self-funded status during 20d@e Commercial segment. In addition,
increased reimbursement from the Federal Employegr&m, or FEP, business within our Other segmemtributed to the increased operat
revenue.
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Net income for the year ended December 31, 2011p&#816.7, a decrease of $240.4, or 8.3% from ¢tze gnded December 31, 2010.
The decrease in net income was primarily drivetoler operating results in our Consumer segmemtigtist offset by improved operating
results in our Other and Commercial segments amdriincome tax expense.

Our fully-diluted earnings per share, or EPS, for the yede@®ecember 31, 2011 was $7.25, an increase 81 $6r 4.5% from the yei
ended December 31, 2010. Our fulljuted shares for the year ended December 31, @14 365.1, a decrease of 50.7, or 12.2% compga
the year ended December 31, 2010. The increasB$resulted primarily from the lower number of glsaputstanding in 2011 due to share
buyback activity under our share repurchase progpamtially offset by the decline in net income.

Our results of operations discussed throughoutMid€A are determined in accordance with U.S. gethgiaccepted accounting
principles, or GAAP. We also calculate adjustedinedme, adjusted EPS and operating gain, whiclnaneGAAP measures, to further aid
investors in understanding and analyzing our cpexating results and comparing them among periddisisted net income and adjusted EPS
exclude realized gains and losses on investmethtst-than-temporary losses on investments recodriizencome, impairment of other
intangible assets and certain other items, if @pple, that we do not consider a part of our cperating results. Operating gain is calculate
total operating revenue less benefit expensengelfjieneral and administrative expense and cabtugls. We use these measures as a basis fol
evaluating segment performance, allocating ressys®ting incentive compensation targets andoia@casting future operating periods. This
information is not intended to be considered iaiBon or as a substitute for net income or diluERS prepared in accordance with GAAP,
may not be comparable to similarly titled measueg®rted by other companies. For additional detail®perating gain, see our “Results of
Operations” discussion included in this MD&A.

The table below reconciles net income and EPS lzémliin accordance with GAAP to adjusted net ine@nd adjusted EPS for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2

Years Ended
December 31

2011 2010 Change % Change
Net income $2,646. $2,887.: $(240.9 (8.9%
Less (net of tax)
Net realized gains on investments, net of tax egpearfi $82.3 and $68.
respectively 152.¢ 125.7 27.1
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses on investments, nebobenefit o
$32.7 and $13.9, respective (60.6) (25.5) (35.])
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assat, of tax benefit of $0.
and $7.4, respective — (13.9) 13.7
Adjusted net income $2,554.! $2,800.¢ $(246.]) (8.9
EPS $ 7.2t $ 6.9 $ 0.31 4.5
Less (net of tax)
Net realized gains on investmel 0.4z 0.2¢ 0.1z
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme (0.19) (0.0¢) (0.11)
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible as — (0.09) 0.03
Adjusted EPS $ 7.0C $ 6.74 $ 0.2€ 3.9

Operating cash flow for the year ended DecembeRB11 was $3,374.4, or 1.3 times net income. Operagsh flow for the year ended
December 31, 2010 was $1,416.7 and included a 81)28x payment in March 2010 to the Internal Rere8ervice, or IRS, related to the
gain we realized on the sale of our pharmacy benefanagement, or PBM, business on December 1, 2ZB@9ncrease in operating cash flow
from 2010 of $1,957.7 was driven primarily by tHe208.0 tax payment made in 2010.
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We intend to expand through a combination of orggnowth, strategic acquisitions and efficient aeapital in both existing and new
markets. Our growth strategy is designed to enabl® take advantage of additional economies désmwell as providing us access to new
and evolving technologies and products. In additiea believe geographic and product diversity redmar exposure to local or regional
regulatory, economic and competitive pressurespaodides us with increased opportunities for gromthhile we have achieved strong growth
as a result of strategic mergers and acquisitiweshave also achieved organic growth in our exgstirarkets over time by providing excellent
service, offering competitively priced products affictively capitalizing on the brand strengthtlué Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and
marks.

II. Overview
We manage our operations through three reportalgments: Commercial, Consumer, and Other.

Our Commercial and Consumer segments both offareagified mix of managed care products, includimgferred provider
organizations, or PPOs; health maintenance orgémiza or HMOSs; traditional indemnity benefits gmaint-of-service plans, or POS plans;
and a variety of hybrid benefit plans including somer-driven health plans, or CDHPs, hospital @mlgl limited benefit products.

Our Commercial segment includes Local Group (iniclgdUniCare), National Accounts and certain othezildary business operations
(dental, vision, life and disability and workergimpensation). Business units in the Commercial segmffer fully-insured products and
provide a broad array of managed care servicesltdunded customers, including claims processimglerwriting, stop loss insurance,
actuarial services, provider network access, médst management, disease management, wellnegsapre and other administrative
services.

Our Consumer segment includes Senior, State-Spethsod Individual businesses. Senior businessdaslservices such as Medicare
Advantage (including private fee-for-service plamsl special needs plans), Medicare Part D, andddesliSupplement, while State-Sponsored
business includes our managed care alternativédddicaid and State ChildresiHealth Insurance Plan programs. Individual bissineclude:
individual customers under age 65 and their covdeggbndents.

Our Other segment includes the Comprehensive H&alilitions business unit, or CHS, that brings togebur resources focused on
optimizing the quality of health care, the clinicaihsumer experience and cost of care managemid&tirizluded our PBM business until its
sale to Express Scripts, Inc., or Express Scriptd)ecember 1, 2009, and also includes providatiogis, care and disease management,
employee assistance programs, including behaviesath, radiology benefit management and analytiosen, evidence-based personal health
care guidance. Our Other segment also containtsdsam our Federal Government Solutions, or FR&iness. FGS business includes FEP
and National Government Services, Inc., or NGSgtvlaicts as a Medicare contractor in several regiorsss the nation. The Other segment
also includes other businesses that do not meejutetitative thresholds for an operating segmentedined in Financial Accounting Stande
Board, or FASB, guidance for disclosures about sgsof an enterprise and related information, elé as intersegment sales and expense
eliminations and corporate expenses not allocateldet other reportable segments.

Our operating revenue consists of premiums, adtnatige fees and other revenue. Premium revenuesdrom fully-insured contracts
where we indemnify our policyholders against céstovered health and life benefits. Administratfees come from contracts where our
customers are self-insured, or where the fee isan either processing of transactions or a peafaretwork discount savings realized.
Additionally, we earn administrative fee revenuesrf our Medicare processing business and from dtbalth-related businesses including
disease management programs. Other revenue wafpptin generated from member co-payments and dédes associated with the mail-
order sale of drugs by our PBM business priordsitle on December 1, 2009.
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Our benefit expense primarily includes costs oédar health services consumed by our members, asiclitpatient care, inpatient
hospital care, professional services (primarilygbian care) and pharmacy benefit costs. All famponents are affected both by unit costs
and utilization rates. Unit costs include the afsbutpatient medical procedures per visit, inpatleospital care per admission, physician fees
per office visit and prescription drug prices. z8ltion rates represent the volume of consumptfdrealth services and typically vary with the
age and health status of our members and thelsaail lifestyle choices, along with clinical protds and medical practice patterns in each of
our markets. A portion of benefit expense recoghineeach reporting period consists of actuariihegtes of claims incurred but not yet paid
by us. Any changes in these estimates are recamdbe period the need for such an adjustmentsristhile we offer a diversified mix of
managed care products, including PPO, HMO, POSCIAP products, our aggregate cost of care canufatetbased on a change in the
overall mix of these products.

We classify certain claims-related costs as bep&fiense to reflect costs incurred for our membeaditional medical care, as well as
those expenses which improve our members’ healthraedical outcomes. These claims-related costsheaymprised of expenses incurred
for: (i) medical management, including case anlization management; (ii) health and wellness,udolg disease management services for
such things as diabetes, high-risk pregnanciegesiive heart failure and asthma management ardesgslinitiatives like weight-loss
programs and smoking cessation treatments; andl{iical health policy. These types of claimsated costs are designed to ultimately lower
our members’ cost of care.

Our selling expense consists of external brokerro@sion expenses, and generally varies with preniumembership volume. Our
general and administrative expense consists ofl fatel variable costs. Examples of fixed costs apgetiation, amortization and certain
facilities expenses. Other costs are variable sgrdtionary in nature. Certain variable costs, agphremium taxes, vary directly with premium
volume. Other variable costs, such as salariedandfits, do not vary directly with changes in pram but are more aligned with changes in
membership. The acquisition or loss of a signifidalnck of business would likely impact staffingydéds, and thus associate compensation
expense. Examples of discretionary costs includéepsional and consulting expenses and adverti€itiger factors can impact our
administrative cost structure, including systenigiehcies, inflation and changes in productivity.

Our cost of drugs historically consisted of the ants we paid to pharmaceutical companies for thgglwe sold via mail order through
our PBM and specialty pharmacy companies untistide of our PBM operations on December 1, 2009 &hiount excluded the cost of drugs
related to affiliated health customers recordelenefit expense. Our cost of drugs was influengethé volume of prescriptions in our PBM
business, as well as cost changes, driven by psitdsy pharmaceutical companies and the mix agjsiseld. Following the sale of our PBM
business to Express Scripts, we no longer recoydast of drugs on our income statement.

Our results of operations depend in large partwrability to accurately predict and effectively mage health care costs through effec
contracting with providers of care to our memberd aur medical management and health and wellneggsgms. Several economic factors
related to health care costs, such as regulatondatas of coverage as well as direct-to-consumegrtising by providers and pharmaceutical
companies, have a direct impact on the volume i&f cansumed by our members. The potential effeesoélating health care costs, any
changes in our ability to negotiate competitivesawith our providers and any regulatory or madketen restrictions on our ability to obtain
adequate premium rates to offset overall inflatiohealth care costs, including increases in ustsand utilization resulting from the aging of
the population and other demographics, as welbtgareces in medical technology, may impose furtigdsrto our ability to profitably
underwrite our business, and may have a materg@adaton our results of operations.

Our future results of operations will also be imjeacby certain external forces and resulting chamg®ur business model and strategy.
In 2010, the U.S. Congress passed and the Presigeed into law the Patient Protection and AffdMdaCare Act, or ACA, as well as the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of @0dr HCERA, or collectively, Health Care Reformhieh represents significant change:
the current U.S. health care system. The legisididar-reaching and is intended to expand adrebsalth insurance coverage
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over time by increasing the eligibility threshofds most state Medicaid programs and providingaierother individuals and small businesses
with tax credits to subsidize a portion of the aafshealth insurance coverage. The legislatioruidies a requirement that most individuals
obtain health insurance coverage beginning in 20M#also a requirement that certain large employfes coverage to their employees or pay
a financial penalty. In addition, the new laws ud# certain new taxes and fees, including an exaisen high premium insurance policies,
limitations on the amount of compensation thatisdeductible and new fees on companies in oursimgusome of which will not be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The legislation also imposes new regulations orh#adth insurance sector, including, but not lihite, guaranteed coverage
requirements, prohibitions on some annual andfatirhe limits on amounts paid on behalf of or to smembers, increased restrictions on
rescinding coverage, establishment of minimum nadass ratio requirements, a requirement to cpveventive services on a first dollar
basis, the establishment of state insurance exelseengd essential benefit packages and greateatioms on how we price certain of our
products. The legislation also reduces the reingient levels for health plans participating in Medicare Advantage program over time.

These and other provisions of Health Care Refoenlilely to have significant effects on our futungerations, which, in turn, could
impact the value of our business model and reséilbperations, including potential impairments af goodwill and other intangible assets.
will continue to evaluate the impact of Health CReform as additional guidance is made available.

There are currently constitutional challenges toktealth Care Reform legislation. If certain pars®f the legislation are declared
unconstitutional, such as the individual obligatiorpurchase insurance, while other portions akelg such as the guaranteed coverage
requirements and the greater limitations on howpriee certain of our products, this could adversdfgct our business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations. For additiatiatussion regarding Health Care Reform, seelPidem 1. “Business—Regulatior@nd Par
I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Form 10-K.

In addition, federal and state regulatory agenciag further restrict our ability to obtain new puad approvals, implement changes in
premium rates or impose additional restrictionglarmew or existing laws that could adversely dffer business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

As a result of Health Care Reform, the Departméitealth and Human Services, or HHS, issued guidapecifying the types of costs
that should be included in benefit expense for pseg of calculating medical loss ratios. This d&din varied from our prior classification
under GAAP. Where appropriate, we have adopted¢vised classification effective January 1, 204 futther align our GAAP basis
classification to that used in the calculationdetermining medical loss ratios under the HHS guigaHowever, certain components of the
medical loss ratio computation as defined by HH#ho& be classified consistently under GAAP. Accogtly, benefit expense ratios shown in
our GAAP basis presentation are different thamtleelical loss ratios in accordance with HHS guiddocg@urposes of calculating rebates.
Prior period amounts have not been reclassifiedtdimmateriality.

In addition to external forces discussed in the@déng paragraphs, our results of operations apadted by levels and mix of
membership. Since 2008, we experienced membersiginds due to unfavorable economic conditionsidgincreased unemployment.
During 2011, this trend reversed and our overalniership increased. However, we expect unemploytegats will remain high throughout
2012, which will likely impact our ability to maiain current membership levels. In addition, wedadithe self-insured portion of our group
membership base will continue to increase as eepéage of total group membership. These membetsnigs could have a material adverse
effect on our future results of operations. Alse Baurt |, ltem 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Form 10-K

The National Organization of Life & Health Insur@nGuaranty Associations, or NOLHGA, is a voluntasgociation consisting of the
state life and health insurance guaranty orgamiaatiocated throughout the U.S. State life andthéasurance guaranty organizations, worl
together with NOLHGA, provide a safety net for
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their state’s policyholders, ensuring that theytoure to receive coverage even if their insurataslared insolvent. We are aware that the
Pennsylvania Insurance Commissioner, or Insurameerlissioner, has placed Penn Treaty Network Amensarance Company and its
subsidiary American Network Insurance Company,aflectively Penn Treaty, in rehabilitation, an ime=diate action before insolvency. The
Insurance Commissioner has petitioned the state tmuiquidation; however, we do not know whedecision will be made, although we
believe it is likely the state court will rule withthe next twelve months. In the event that Pereafly is declared insolvent and placed in
liquidation, we and other insurers may be requicepay a portion of their policyholder claims thghustate guaranty association assessme
future periods. Given the uncertainty around wheBenn Treaty will ultimately be declared insolvant], if so, the amount of the insolvency,
the amount and timing of any associated future gautgirfund assessments and the availability and atafuany potential premium tax and
other offsets, we currently cannot estimate ourenpbsure, if any, to this potential insolvency. Wi# continue to monitor the situation and
may record a liability and expense in future reipgrperiods, which could be material to our caslvfl and results of operations.

lll.  Significant Events

The more significant events that have occurred theetast three years that have impacted or willdot our capital structure or that have
or will influence how we conduct our business ofiers include:

» Use of Capital—Board of Directors declaration ofidends on common stock (2011) and authorizatiomdpurchases of our
common stock (2011 and pric

» Acquisition of CareMore (2011
» Sale of our PBM bhusiness to Express Scripts, brdExpress Scripts (2009)
» Acquisition of DeCare Dental, LLC, or DeCare (20

For additional information regarding these evesgg Note 3, “Business Combinations and Divestitueexl Note 15, “Capital Stock,” to
our audited consolidated financial statements asdffor the year ended December 31, 2011, includéds Form 10-K.

IV. Membership

Our medical membership includes seven differentocusr types: Local Group, National Accounts, Bluel, Individual, Senior, State-
Sponsored and Federal Employee Program, or FEPSB@8nded business generally refers to membensrisasvice areas licensed by the
BCBSA. Non-BCBS-branded business refers to memhbeyar non-BCBS UniCare and CareMore plans.

» Local Group consists of those employer custometis l@gs than 5% of eligible employees located detsif the headquarter state,
well as customers with more than 5% of eligible tappes located outside of the headquarter statewpitto 5,000 eligible
employees. In addition, Local Group includes Uni&Clacal group members. These groups are geneddthytlsrough brokers or
consultants working with industry specialists froor in-house sales force. Local Group insurancenjures may be based on claims
incurred by the group or sold on a self-insuredshdhe customer’s buying decision is typically &@sipon the size and breadth of
our networks, customer service, the quality of medical management services, the administrativeigolsided in our quoted price,
our financial stability, reputation and our abiltty effectively service large complex accounts.adldgroup accounted for 44.4%,
45.7% and 46.5% of our medical members at Dece@be2011, 2010 and 2009, respectiv:

» National Accounts generally consist of m-state employer groups primarily headquartered\iediPoint service area with at least
5% of the eligible employees located outside oftbadquarter state and with more than 5,000 eligibiployees. Some exceptions
are allowed based on broker relationships. Sewiea is defined as the geographic area in whichre/dicensed to sell BCBS
products. National Accounts are generally soldugtindependent brokers or consultants retaine
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the customer working with our-house sales force. We have a significant advanmége competing for very large Natior

Accounts due to the size and breadth of our netsvarkl our ability to access the national providdgworks of BCBS companies and
take advantage of their provider discounts in theial markets. National Accounts represented 21524 % and 20.2% of our
medical members at December 31, 2011, 2010 and, 28§®ectively

» BlueCard® host customers represent enrollees of Blue Crad®aBlue Shield plans not owned by WellPoint whoeive health ca
services in our BCBSA licensed markets. BlueCard mbership consists of estimated host members usagational BlueCard
program. Host members are generally members wider@sor travel to a state in which a WellPoinbsidiary is the Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are covereemaa employer-sponsored health plan issued byaMellPoint controlled
BCBSA licensee (i.e., the “home plan”). We perfarertain administrative functions for BlueC&d menshéor which we receive
administrative fees from the BlueC&rd members’ hptaes. Other administrative functions, includingimienance of enroliment
information and customer service, are performethbyhome plan. Host members are computed usinghyguatber things, the
average number of BlueCard claims received per m@itieCarc® host membership accounted for 14.4%, 14.1% and/d 4flour
medical members at December 31, 2011, 2010 and, 28§®ectively

» Individual consists of individual customers undge %5 (including UniCare) and their covered depatgiéndividual policies are
generally sold through independent agents and bspker in-house sales force or via the Intermetividual business is sold on a
fully-insured basis and is usually medically undeétten at the point of initial issuance. Individualstomers are generally more
sensitive to product pricing and, to a lesser dxtée configuration of the network, and the e#frety of administration. Account
turnover is generally higher with Individual as quemed to Local Groups. Individual business accalifae’5.4%, 5.7% and 6.3% of
our medical members at December 31, 2011, 201268, respectively

» Senior customers are Medicare-eligible individuaihmbers age 65 and over who have enrolled in Megliddvantage, a managed
care alternative for the Medicare program, who auwehased Medicare Supplement benefit coveragee stisabled under 65, or all
ages with End Stage Renal Disease. Medicare Supplgmolicies are sold to Medicare recipients apkmpents to the benefits they
receive from the Medicare program. Rates are filétl and in some cases approved by state insuidegartments. Most of the
premium for Medicare Advantage is paid directlytbg Federal government on behalf of the participdrd may also be charged a
small premium. Medicare Supplement and Medicareaftikge products are marketed in the same manirgriy through
independent agents and brokers. Senior businessiated for 4.3%, 3.8% and 3.6% of our medical mesbeDecember 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respective

» State-Sponsored membership represents eligible exsmbith State-Sponsored managed care alternativdedicaid and State
Children’s Health Insurance Plan programs. Totate&sSponsored program business accounted for B.53% and 5.1% of our
medical members at December 31, 2011, 2010 and, 28§8ectively

» FEP members consist of United States governmenlogegs and their dependents within our geograplaikkets through ot
participation in the national contract betweenBI@BSA and the U.S. Office of Personnel ManagemeBE business accounted for
4.4%, 4.3% and 4.1% of our medical members at Dbeedil, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectiv

In addition to reporting our medical membershipchgtomer type, we report by funding arrangementraiag to the level of risk that v
assume in the product contract. Our two principatling arrangement categories are fully-insuredsatidfunded. Fully-insured products are
products in which we indemnify our policyholdersaatst costs for health benefits. Self-funded préslace offered to customers, generally
larger employers, who elect to retain most or fithe financial risk associated with their employedweealth care costs. Some self-funded
customers choose to purchase stop-loss coverdigeitttheir retained risk.
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The following table presents our medical membergligustomer type, funding arrangement and replersdgment as of December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Also includddweés other membership by product. The medical tnership and other membership
presented are unaudited and in certain instancégdie estimates of the number of members repredéyteach contract at the end of the
period.

December 31 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200!
2011 2010 2009 Change % Change Change % Change
(In thousands
Medical Membership
Customer Type
Local Group 15,21: 15,21¢ 15,64 4 — % (427) (2.7%
National:
National Account: 7,401 7,02¢ 6,81:% 372 5.3 21€ 3.2
BlueCard® 4,93¢ 4,711 4,744 224 4.8 (33 (0.7)
Total National 12,33¢  11,74C 11,55] 59¢€ 5.1 182 1.6
Individual 1,84¢ 1,90¢ 2,131 (59 (3.1 (22€) (10.6)
Senior 1,471 1,25¢ 1,21t 212 16.€ 44 3.6
State-Sponsore( 1,86 1,75¢ 1,73¢ 111 6.2 23 1.3
FEP 1,51¢ 1,44 1,391 72 5.C 56 4.C
Total Medical Membership by Customer Ty 34,25. 33,320 33,67( 92€ 2.8 (347 (1.0)
Funding Arrangement
Self-Funded 20,50¢ 19,59( 18,23¢ 91€ 4.7 1,35¢ 7.4
Fully-Insured 13,74 13,73{ 15,43¢ 12 0.1 (1,70)) (11.0
Total Medical Membership by Funding Arrangem 34,25, 33,32 33,67( 92¢ 2.8 (349 (2.0
Reportable Segmen
Commercial 27,54t  26,95¢  27,35¢ 58¢ 2.2 (397) (1.5)
Consume 5,18¢ 4,917 4,92: 267 5.4 (6) (0.2)
Other 1,51¢ 1,44 1,397 72 5.C 56 4.C
Total Medical Membership by Reportable Segn 34,25, 33,32: 33,67( 92¢ 2.8 (347 (1.0
Other Membership
Behavioral Healtt 25,13t 23,96! 22,96t 1,17 4.9 99¢ 4.3
Life and Disability 5,01z 5,201 5,39: (189 (3.6) (192 (3.6)
Dental 4,04¢ 4,007 4,28¢ 39 1.C (277) (6.5
Managed denté 4,16: 4,27 3,94¢ (116 (2.€) 323 8.2
Vision 3,78: 3,50¢ 3,08¢ 27¢ 7.8 42C 13.€

Medicare Part [ 1,24 1,24¢ 1,50¢ (6) (0.5) (261) (17.9)
! Managed dental membership includes members forhwlgprovide administrative services or
December 31, 2011 Compared to December 31, 2010

Medical Membership (in thousands

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@tdl medical membership increased 928, or 2.8%manmily due to increases in our
National Accounts and BlueCa® membership, and to a lesser degree, increases Bemior, State-Sponsored and FEP membership. In
addition, a portion of the increase is attributabl@ew federal regulations associated with He@lhe Reform requiring coverage of depenc
up to age 26. These increases were partially offgeleclines in our Individual and Local Group mesises.
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Self-funded medical membership increased 916, #n4primarily due to increases in self-funded NagiloAccount and Local Group
membership resulting from additional sales and eosiens from fully-insured to self-funded arrangetsepartially offset by declines in self-
funded non-BCBSA-branded business.

Fully-insured membership increased 12, or 0.1%mnarily due to Senior Medicare Advantage, FEP aateSsponsored membership
increases, partially offset by conversions fronyfihsured to self-funded arrangements and declimésdividual, National and Local Group
fully-insured membership.

Local Group membership decreased 4, or less ti@#a,Jprimarily due to membership declines in our-B&2BSA-branded membership,
nearly offset by increases in BCBSA-branded menftedue to new sales.

National Accounts membership increased 372, or 5@8#harily driven by additional sales reflectiveaur extensive and cost-effective
provider networks and a broad and innovative prodadfolio. In addition, the new federal regulatsorequiring coverage of dependents up to
age 26 also contributed to the increase.

BlueCard® membership increased 224, or 4.8%, priyndue to increased utilization by other BCBSA tisee members who reside in or
travel to our licensed areas.

Individual membership decreased 59, or 3.1%, piilyndue to a decline in BCBSAranded business resulting from competitive press
and delayed product approvals for new Health Cafef compliant products in California.

Senior membership increased 212, or 16.8%, prigndtik to increases in our Medicare Advantage piangjding additional Medicare
Advantage membership resulting from our acquisitb@areMore, and to a lesser extent, increasesrimedicare Supplement membership.

State-Sponsored membership increased 111, or @38tarily due to growth in Indiana, South Carolikansas and California.
FEP membership increased 72, or 5.0%, primarilytdueew federal regulations requiring coverageegfehdents up to age 26.

Other Membership (in thousands)

Our Other products are often ancillary to our Hehlisiness, and can therefore be impacted by gameing changes in our medical
membership.

Behavioral health membership increased 1,172 ,984primarily due to new sales to several majopaats in our National Accounts
business, increased Medicare Advantage and StatesSped medical membership and a change in methgyglof how we report certain
portions of the behavioral health membership.

Life and disability membership decreased 189, 6%@3.primarily due to lapses in our National Accaubtisiness. Life and disability
products are generally offered as a part of Comialemeedical fully-insured membership sales.

Dental membership increased 39, or 1.0%, primaitky to new sales resulting from the introductiom@dv product offerings and, to a
lesser extent, our acquisition of a dental benefdas in December 2011.

Managed dental membership decreased 110, or 263arndy due to the termination of a contract i tNorth Carolina market.
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Vision membership increased 275, or 7.8%, primatig to strong sales and market penetration oBtue View vision product within
the Local Group markets and embedding of visiorefitmin certain of our Consumer products, patiaffset by lapses.

Medicare Part D membership decreased 6, or 0.5%aply due to lapses in Low Income Subsidy memhigrgn 2011, largely offset by
new membership associated with the increase iMeulicare Advantage medical membership, includindjtamhal Medicare Advantage
medical membership resulting from our acquisitibiCareMore.

December 31, 2010 Compared to December 31, 2009

Medical Membership (in thousands

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@t8l mmedical membership decreased 347, or 1.0%gpily due to decreases in
Local Group (including UniCare) and Individual nBIEGBSA-branded membership resulting from the trémsiof certain UniCare members to
Health Care Service Corporation, or HCSC, begindaxguary 1, 2010. These declines were partialgedthy increases in our National
Accounts, FEP, Senior and State Sponsored mempershi

Self-funded medical membership increased 1,35%,4%0, primarily due to the conversions from fulhsured to self-funded status of
both a large municipal account and a large staj@@rar account in April and July 2010, respectivelgd an increase in self-funded National
Accounts membership driven by additional salesigdgr offset by declines in self-funded non-BCB®#fanded Local Group membership.

Fully-insured membership decreased 1,701, or 11@#barily due to the conversions from fully-insdre self-funded status of both a
large municipal account and a large state emplageount in April and July 2010, respectively, trensition of certain UniCare members to
HCSC (both Local Group and Individual membershipd declines in fully-insured Local Group memberdiyen by lapses.

Local Group membership decreased 427, or 2.7% gpilyrdue to membership declines in our non-BCBSarAtled membership,
including the impact of the transition of certainiGare members to HCSC, and a decline in BCBSAdwdrbusiness associated with the
unfavorable economic conditions.

National Accounts membership increased 216, or 3@¥marily driven by additional sales, reflectioBour extensive and cost-effective
provider networks and a broad and innovative prbgadfolio, and favorable in-group enrollment chas in several large accounts. These
increases were partially offset by lapses duedautifavorable economic conditions.

BlueCard® membership decreased 33, or 0.7%, priynduié to decreased utilization by other BCBSA lgmsmmembers who reside in or
travel to our licensed areas.

Individual membership decreased 226, or 10.6%, gmilgndue to the transition of certain UniCare memsto HCSC.

Senior membership increased 44, or 3.6%, primditily to increases in our Medicare Advantage plamsiglly offset by lower
membership in our Medicare Supplement plans.

State-Sponsored membership increased 23, or 1.8¥anly due to growth in Virginia, South Carolind/isconsin and Indiana, partially
offset by lower membership in California resultingm product changes and competition.

FEP membership increased 56, or 4.0%, following2®E0 open enrollment period.
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Other Membership (in thousands)

Our Other products are often ancillary to our Hehlisiness, and can therefore be impacted by gameing changes in our medical
membership.

Behavioral health membership increased 998, or 4@#¥harily due to new sales to several major antgartially offset by higher
unemployment resulting from the current economieditions.

Life and disability membership decreased 192, 6%43.primarily due to the transition of certain Uai€ members to HCSC beginning
January 1, 2010. Life and disability products aeaegally offered as a part of Commercial mediclyfinsured membership sales.

Dental membership decreased 277, or 6.5%, primduéy/to lapses and net unfavorable in-group enesitrchanges due to the current
economic conditions and the transition of certamQare members to HCSC.

Managed dental membership increased 323, or 8.8#%aply due to new sales to two large accounts.

Vision membership increased 420, or 13.6%, primatile to strong sales and market penetration oBtug View vision product within
the Local Group markets and embedding of visioreliemin certain of our Consumer products, pastiaffset by the transition of certain
UniCare members to HCSC and lapses.

Medicare Part D membership decreased 261, or 1h88barily reflecting the loss of certain 2010 Partow Income Subsidy
membership.

V. Cost of Care

The following discussion summarizes our aggregatketlying cost of care trends for the rolling 12ntits ended December 31, 2011 for
our Local Group fully-insured business only.

Our cost of care trends are calculated by compdhagear-over-year change in average per membengeth claim costs, including
member co-payments and deductibles. While ourafostre trend varies by geographic location, basednderlying medical cost trends, we
estimate that our aggregate cost of care trendagpoximately 7% for the full year of 2011.

Overall, our medical cost trend was driven by goit. Inpatient hospital trend was in the very iouble digit range and was primarily
related to increases in cost per admission. Elevaterage case acuity (intensity) continues toridmrnit as do our rate increases with hospitals.
While provider rate increases are a primary drofarnit cost trends, we continually negotiate withspitals to manage these cost trends. We
remain committed to optimizing our reimbursememgsaand strategies to help address the cost pesstaaed by employers and consumers.
Inpatient admission counts per thousand members lwerer than prior year; however, inpatient dayrdeyper thousand members were slic
higher reflecting increased acuity. As a result, dlrerage length of inpatient stays increased coedpa prior year levels. Clinical managen
and re-contracting efforts are in place to helggate the inpatient trend. Focused review effootstioue in key areas, including inpatient
behavioral health stays and spinal surgery casesn@ others. Additionally, we have introduced paogs related to readmission management,
focused utilization management at high cost faegditand post-discharge follow-up care.

Outpatient trend was in the high single digit rangd was 70% cost driven and 30% utilization driv@atpatient costs are a collection of
different types of expenses, such as outpatiefiities, labs, x-rays, emergency room, and occupei and physical therapy. Per visit costs are
still the largest contributor to overall outpatiérgnd, influenced largely by price increases wittértain provider contracts. Outpatient
utilization
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(visits per thousand members) was only slighthheigthan the prior year. We continue to work wigimgdors and providers to help optimize

of service decisions including key areas such asrgemcy room vs. urgent care, laboratory servication (hospital vs. free-standing lab), and
surgery settings (hospital vs. ambulatory surgieaiter). As an example, we recently launched anganey room program and education
campaign using Google Maps to make it easier thdimd use retail health clinics and urgent careéetcstior non-emergency conditions when
regular physicians are not available. Programsthig along with continued expansion and optiméabf our utilization management
programs, are serving to moderate trend. Additlgnale continued to see the positive impact of npooating the technology of our American
Imaging Management, Inc., or AIM, subsidiary. Ttashnology is allowing us to achieve greater eéficies in the high trend area of radiolc
while ensuring that consumers receive the quaditystthey need. Leveraging AIM’s platform and etperin areas such as nuclear cardiology
management and specialty pharmacy reviews is amlingfforts to mitigate trend increases.

Physician services trend was in the mid singletdagige and was 60% unit cost related and 40%zatiéin related. Increases in the
physician care category were partially driven bgtcacting changes. We continue to collaborate wifitysicians to improve quality of care
through pay-for-performance programs.

Pharmacy trend was in the mid-to-high single digitge and was 75% unit cost (cost per prescriptielajed and 25% utilization
(prescriptions per member per year) driven. Ret#lattion in the average wholesale price of drugyapplying upward pressure to the overall
cost per prescription as is the increased useetfiaity drugs. Specialty drugs, also known as biotrugs, are generally higher cost and are
being utilized more frequently. The increase int@as prescription measures continues to be méiyay improvements in our generic usage
rates and benefit plan design changes. We arencanusly evaluating our drug formulary to ensurertieest effective pharmaceutical therapies
are available to our members.

In response to cost trends, we continue to pursn&acting and plan design changes, promote anttimgnt performance-based
contracts that reward clinical outcomes and qugadihd expand our radiology management, diseasegearent and advanced care
management programs. We are taking a leaderst@prrohe area of payment reform, introducing a neindf new reimbursement models. We
are currently working with provider organizationsdevelop accountable care organization pilot @ogr. These programs are designed to
enhance coordination of care throughout the hegittem, appropriately align incentives and encaaragponsibility among patients, payors
and providers to enhance member health outcomesr@also advancing patient-centered medical hoograms in the majority of our states
to help modernize and increase the scope of timegpyi care practices throughout our markets. Ea$gssment of these programs demonst
a favorable effect on the quality and cost of Heedtre, and we will continue to evaluate their itssédditionally, our value-based contracting
initiative continues to underscore our commitmenpartnering with providers to improve quality doder cost.

Additionally, we are fully integrating our Resoloi Health, Inc., or RHI, subsidiary’s suite of puats designed to improve health care
quality and reduce health care costs. As an exarivhldealth Advantage is an RHI product that useskat-leading technology to analyze
medical claims, pharmacy claims, lab results, bepkfn information and personal health informationdentify opportunities to help close
gaps between recommended care and the care thdiereactually receive.

As evidenced by the recent acquisition of CareMaeeremain committed to providing accdsssed health care products and service
are simple to use and that customers can truseMZae’s mission is to improve the overall lives amellbeing of seniors by providing
innovative, focused health care approaches todhgplex problems of aging, while protecting finamheesources of seniors and the Medicare
Program. CareMore’s model is focused on diseasegament programs that provide Medicare membersanlithnds-on approach to care
coordination and intensive treatment of chronicditions.
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VI. Results of Operations

Our consolidated results of operations for the yesmded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are destirsthe following section.

Total operating revent

Net investment incom

Gain on sale of busine

Net realized gains on investmel

Otherthar-temporary impairmer
losses on investmen

Total revenues

Benefit expens

Selling, general and administrati
expense

Other expenst

Total expenses

Income before income tay
expense

Income tax expens

Net income

Average diluted shares outstand

Diluted net income per sha

Benefit expense rati2

Selling, general and administrati
expense rati¢

Income before income taxes as &

percentage of total reven

Net income as a percentage of t(

revenue

Years Ended December 31

2011 vs. 2010

2010 vs. 2009

2011 2010 2009 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
$59,865.: $57,740.! $60,740.( $2,124." 3.7% $(2,999.9) (4.9%
703.7 803.: 801.( (99.6) (12.2) 2.2 0.2
— — 3,792. — — (3,792.)  (100.0
235.1 194.1 56.4 41.C 21.1 137.% 244.1
(93.9) (39.4) (450.2) (53.9) 136.¢ 410.¢ (91.2)

60,710. 58,698.! 64,939.! 2,012.: 3.4 (6,241.0) (9.6)
47,647 44,930.: 47,122 2,717.: 6.C (2,191.9 4.7
8,435.¢ 8,732.¢ 9,019.: (297.0) (3.4) (286.7) (3.2)
669.7 681.7 1,394.¢ (12.0) (1.8) (713.9) (51.1)
56,752. 54,344, 57,536.! 2,408.. 4.4 (3,191.9 (5.5
3,957.¢ 4,353 7,403.( (395.9) (9.1) (3,049.) (41.2)
1,311.c 1,466. 2,657. (155.5) (10.6) (1,190.9 (44.¢)
$ 2,646  $2887.  $4,745.¢  $ (240.) (8.9) $(1,858.9) (39.2)
365.1 415.¢ 480.f (50.7) (12.2) (64.7) (13.5)
$ 728 $ 69/ $ 9.8 $ 0.31 45 $ (2.99 (29.9)
85.1% 83.2% 83.6% 19Chp 3 (40)bp 3
14.1% 15.1% 14.6% (100)bp 3 3Cbp3
6.5% 7.4% 11.2% (90)bp3 (400)bp3
4.4% 4.9% 7.2% (50)bp3 (240)bp 3

Certain of the following definitions are also apgplble to all other results of operations tablethis discussion:

A W N P
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Reportable Segmen

We use operating gain to evaluate the performahoeraeportable segments, which are CommerciahsGmer and Other. Operating
gain is calculated as total operating revenuebesgfit expense, selling, general and adminisegaikpense and cost of drugs. It does not
include net investment income, gain on sale ofriess, net realized gains/losses on investmentst-tithn-temporary impairment losses
recognized in income, interest expense, amortiratfmther intangible assets, impairment of goodawid other intangible assets or income
taxes, as these items are managed in a corpomdsbervice environment and are not the respdibsidsi operating segment management.
For additional information, see Note 20, “Segmeafibimation,” to our audited consolidated finanatdtements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2011 included in this Form 10-K. Tiseussion of segment results for the years endegmbeer 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
presented below are based on operating gain, aslied above, and operating margin, which is caked as operating gain divided by
operating revenue. Our definitions of operatinghgaid operating margin may not be comparable tdasimtitied measures reported by other
companies.

Our Commercial, Consumer, and Other segments’ suinegaresults of operations for the years endeceBéer 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 are as follows:

Years Ended December 3 2011 vs. 201 2010 vs. 200!
% %

2011 2010 2009 $ Change Chaonge $ Change Chaonge
Commercial
Operating revenu $34,498.( $34,559.: $37,274.i $ (61.9) (0.2)% $(2,715.5 (7.9%
Operating gait 3,090.¢ 3,085." 2,430.: 4.8 0.2 655.4 27.C
Operating margi 9.C% 8.2% 6.5% 1Cbp 24(Cbp
Consumer
Operating revenu $17,784. $16,092.( $16,141.4 $1,692. 10.5% $ (49.9 (0.9%
Operating gait 623.1 1,000.¢ 1,279. (377.5 (37.9) (279.7) (21.¢)
Operating margi 3.5% 6.2% 7.€% (270Qbp (A70bp
Other
Operating revenu $ 7,5682. $ 7,088.¢ $ 7,323 $ 493.7 7.C% $ (234.9) (3.2)%
Operating gain (loss 68.t (8.9 469.4 77.5 878.2 (478.2) (101.9

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2010
Consolidated Results

Total operating revenue increased $2,124.7, or 3tG%59,865.2 in 2011, primarily due to premiurteriacreases in our Local Group
and Individual businesses designed to cover cestlf, increased fully-insured membership in oui@évedicare Advantage business and
increased reimbursement in the FEP business. Thesases were partially offset by fully-insuredmieership declines in our Local Group
and National Accounts businesses resulting fronutifavorable economic conditions and the convessadriwo large accounts from fully-
insured to self-funded status in 2010. Administafiees also increased due to higher self-fundedhmeeship in our Local Group and National
Accounts businesses, including the impact of casigas from fully-insured to self-funded membership.

Net investment income decreased $99.6, or 12.4%7@8.7 in 2011, primarily due to lower yields oréstment balances and a decline
in dividend income from a cost method investment.

Benefit expense increased $2,717.1, or 6.0%, tg68Z75 in 2011, primarily due to higher medicaltsam our Local Group business,
higher Senior Medicare Advantage membership, advazkection in certain Medicare Advantage prodantsincreased membership in the
FEP business. In addition, an estimated $247.0gbieh than anticipated favorable prior year reseleeclopment and an estimated $67.7 of
lower targeted margin for adverse deviation weoegaized as reductions of benefit expense durirdg 2@th no comparable amounts
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recognized in 2011. The increases in benefit exen2011 were partially offset by fully-insured migership declines in our Local Group and
National Accounts businesses and the conversiotwofarge accounts from fu-insured to self-funded status in 2010.

Our benefit expense ratio increased 190 basis pwrd5.1% in 2011, primarily due to higher mediadts in our Senior, Local Group
and State-Sponsored businesses, the reduced aofdawnbrable prior year reserve development betwberiwo periods and the impact of
minimum medical loss ratio requirements in 2011.

Selling, general and administrative expense deete$297.0, or 3.4%, to $8,435.6 in 2011, primadile to lower incentive compensat
costs, cost reductions associated with our ongeffigiency initiatives and the norecurrence of asset impairments, partially offseincrease
premium tax expense, selling, general and admatigér expenses associated with our newly acquiael@ore subsidiary and increased
advertising expenses.

Our selling, general and administrative expende odcreased 100 basis points to 14.1% in 201fngsify due to increased operating
revenue and reduced selling, general and admitiigraxpenses.

Other expense decreased $12.0, or 1.8%, to $66201i1, reflecting the non-recurrence of an impairtrof other intangible assets and
reduced amortization of certain other intangibleets acquired in prior years, partially offset bgreased interest expense due to higher av
outstanding debt balances.

Income tax expense decreased $155.5, or 10.6%4,34 %2 in 2011, primarily due to lower income lreflmcome tax expense. The
effective tax rates in 2011 and 2010 were 33.1%3%d%, respectively. The effective tax rate desedgprimarily due to prior tax year federal
and state audit settlements during 2011.

Reportable Segments Resu
Commercial

Operating revenue decreased $61.3, or 0.2%, t@$84) in 2011, primarily due to fully-insured merdlép declines in our Local Group
and National Accounts businesses resulting fronaworable economic conditions and the conversiawoflarge accounts from fully-insured
to self-funded status. The decreases in premiumes paztially offset by premium rate increases inloacal Group business designed to cover
cost trends and increased administrative feesalbigher self-funded membership in our Local Granpg National Accounts businesses.

Operating gain increased $4.8, or 0.2%, to $3,0802011, primarily due to improved results in dational Accounts business and
lower selling, general and administrative expengbsse increases were partially offset by an esich$180.0 of operating gain recognized in
the Commercial segment during 2010 as a resulighiel than anticipated favorable prior year res@leeelopment and lower targeted margin
for adverse deviation with no comparable amounteggized in 2011 and the impact of minimum medigss ratio requirements on 2011
operating gain.

The operating margin in 2011 was 9.0%, a 10 basig increase from 2010, primarily due to the fastdiscussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Consumer

Operating revenue increased $1,692.3, or 10.5%17¢784.9 in 2011, primarily due to increases in®enior and State-Sponsored
businesses. The increase in Senior revenue wasiggirdue to increased Medicare Advantage memberameluding increased membership
resulting from our acquisition of CareMore, whiteetincrease in State-Sponsored revenue reflectbdrireased pricing and membership.
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Operating gain decreased $377.5, or 37.7%, to $682011, primarily due to lower operating gairour Senior Medicare Advantage
business. This decline was a result of higher nadiosts in 2011 due to increased membership avelsel selection in certain of our Medic
Advantage products. We have refined our Medicareafithge product strategy and service areas for. Z0i&higher than expected medical
costs in 2011 were partially offset by higher tlaaticipated risk score revenue as a result of gmmaxred risk score estimation process and
lower selling, general and administrative expenbeaddition, an estimated $135.0 of operating ges recognized in the Consumer segment
during 2010 as a result of higher than anticip&edrable prior year reserve development and ldengreted margin for adverse deviation with
no comparable amounts recognized in 2011.

The operating margin in 2011 was 3.5%, a 270 hasig decrease from 2010, primarily due to thedextliscussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Other

Operating revenue increased $493.7, or 7.0%, ®8%73 in 2011, primarily due to growth in the FERiIDness as FEP membership
increased 5.0% during 2011.

Operating gain increased $77.3 to $68.5 in 201ifngrily due to growth in the FEP business and losedling, general and administrati
expenses.

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2009
Consolidated Results

Total operating revenue decreased $2,999.5, or,4®%57,740.5 in 2010, primarily due to fully-imed membership declines in our
Local Group and National Accounts businesses liaguiitom the unfavorable economic conditions, thewersions of a large municipal
account and a large state employer account frolyrifusured to self-funded status in April and JABAL0, respectively, certain UniCare
members transitioning to HCSC beginning JanuaB010 and the loss of a portion of the 2010 Mediétae D Low Income Subsidy
membership within our Senior business. These dsesga premiums were partially offset by highempitens designed to cover expected cost
trends, increased reimbursement in the FEP prograhincreased membership in our Senior MedicareaAthge business. In addition, other
revenue decreased due to the sale of our PBM ssindecember 2009, resulting in the non-recugeém@010 of co-payments and
deductibles associated with the sale of mail-opdescription drugs.

Gain on sale of business recognized in 2009 raséiten the sale of our PBM business to Expresgp&cim December 2009.

Benefit expense decreased $2,191.9, or 4.7%, t®3%@4! in 2010, primarily due to the conversionsa ¢drge municipal account and a
large state employer account from fully-insuredetf-funded status in April and July 2010, respasti, fully-insured membership declines in
our Local Group and National Accounts businesdagetJniCare members transitioning to HCSC begigrianuary 1, 2010 and the loss of a
portion of the 2010 Medicare Part D Low Income Sd§psnembership within our Senior business. Theseadeses were partially offset by
increases in benefit costs in our Local Group BCB8&nded business, which were driven primarily lghbr unit costs. In addition, our
Senior Medicare Advantage and FEP businesses kp#rienced increased benefit costs. The MedicaraAtdge and FEP related increase
benefit expense were due to both higher membeegstdpunit costs. We receive reimbursement for FERsqulus a fee.

In 2010, we lowered our targeted margin for adveesgation in our medical claims payable balanoenfthe high single digit range to
the mid-to-upper single digit range. This resuited reduction of benefit expense of $67.7 in 20t@&ddition, we recognized $247.0 of higher
than expected reserve releases during 2010 compa$262.0 in 2009. For a discussion about our oadiaims reserving methodologies, see
“Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” withinis MD&A.

56



Table of Contents

Our benefit expense ratio decreased 40 basis poi®3.2% in 2010, due to improvements in our Conumaésegment, partially offset by
increases in our Consumer segment. ImprovemerteiCommercial segment were primarily related tolacal Group BCBSA-branded
business, which reflected disciplined pricing amér flu-related costs and a positive impact frowa ¢change in reserves discussed above. Our
Consumer segment increases were related to beosf# in our Senior Medicare Advantage businesdaltree reduction in federal
reimbursement rates for 2010, and a less favoraigact from the change in reserves described above.

Selling, general and administrative expense deetk$286.7, or 3.2%, to $8,732.6 in 2010. Our sgllgeneral and administrative
expense decreased due to lower base compensatits) peemium taxes and other fees, advertisingresqs selling expenses and other
operating expenses, partially offset by increasésdentive compensation expenses, outside sere@sts and asset impairments. Our 2010
general and administrative expenses also no ldangkrde the administrative expenses formerly inedroy our PBM business.

While our selling, general and administrative exggedecreased, our selling, general and adminigtraiipense ratio increased 30 basis
points to 15.1% in 2010, primarily due to a deciim@perating revenue, increased incentive compEmseosts, outside services costs and i
impairments, partially offset by lower base compgios costs and premium taxes and other fees.

Other expenses decreased $713.2, or 51.1%, to®882010, primarily due to the sale of our PBMibess in 2009. Following the sale
of our PBM business, we do not record any costofsl on our income statement as we no longer marigsell prescription drugs. In
addition, a decrease in impairments of other intalagassets also contributed to the decrease r etkpenses during 2010.

Income tax expense decreased $1,190.4, or 44.8%4,466.7 in 2010. This decrease was due to loneemie before income tax expense
in 2010 as compared to 2009, primarily due to thie gn sale from our PBM business recorded in 2008. effective tax rates in 2010 and
2009 were 33.7% and 35.9%, respectively. The deergaeffective tax rates resulted primarily frdme impact of the PBM sale in 2009 which
produced a higher effective tax rate.

Reportable Segments Resu
Commercial

Operating revenue decreased $2,715.5, or 7.3%84%%9.3 in 2010, primarily due to the conversioha large municipal account and
state employer account from fully-insured to selfided status during 2010. Operating revenue als@dsed due to fully-insured membership
declines in our Local Group BCBSA-branded busirses National Accounts business due to unfavoratd@@mic conditions. In addition,
operating revenue decreased due to certain Uni@ambers transitioning to HCSC beginning JanuaB010. These decreases were partially
offset by higher premiums designed to cover expkctst trend, increased revenue in our self-furidigtibnal Accounts and Local Group
businesses and managed dental administrative regenu

Operating gain increased $655.4, or 27.0%, to $70® 2010, primarily due to higher margins in dorcal Group BCBSA-branded
business, partially offset by fully insured memlihgosdeclines. The higher margins in our Local Gr&EBSA-branded business reflected
higher premiums designed to cover cost trend awdrdohan expected medical costs, due primarilpteer than expected utilization and lower
flu-related costs. The operating gain also improapgroximately $99.0 due to additional favorabkerge releases in 2010 as compared to
20009.

The operating margin in 2010 was 8.9%, a 240 hasig increase over 2009, primarily due to thedestiscussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.
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Consumer

Operating revenue decreased $49.2, or 0.3%, t®$24 in 2010, primarily due to our loss of certa@10 Medicare Part D Low Income
Subsidy membership and, to a lesser degree, lowaerharship in our Individual and Medicare Supplentrsinesses and a change during
2010 in the provider of pharmacy benefits for thdidna Medicaid program included in our State-Spoet programs. These decreases were
partially offset by increases in our Medicare Adeaye business due to higher membership.

Operating gain decreased $279.1, or 21.8%, to $160A 2010, primarily due to lower operating geirour Medicare Advantage
business due to the reduction in federal reimbuesgmates for 2010 and overall higher administeatigsts, which included asset impairments.
Approximately $46.0 of the decline was due to lofesorable reserve releases in 2010 as compar2@0®. These operating gain declines
were partially offset by improved results in ourditzare Part D and Medicare Supplement businesses.

The operating margin in 2010 was 6.2%, a 170 hasig decrease from 2009, primarily due to thedextliscussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Other

Operating revenue decreased $234.8, or 3.2%, 68878 in 2010, primarily due to the sale of the PBliness on December 1, 2009
and lower administrative fees in our NGS Medicassihess, partially offset by growth in our FEP bess.

Operating gain decreased $478.2 to an operatirsgoio$8.8 in 2010, primarily due to the sale of B&M business on December 1, 2009
and higher unallocated operating expenses.

VII.  Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsirformity with GAAP. Application of GAAP requiresanagement to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoepésted in our consolidated financial statementsaamtompanying notes and within this
MD&A. We consider our most important accountingipiels that require significant estimates and manegge: judgment to be those policies
with respect to liabilities for medical claims paj@ income taxes, goodwill and other intangibleets, investments and retirement benefits,
which are discussed below. Our other significacbaating policies are summarized in Note 2, “BafiBresentation and Significant
Accounting Policies,” to our audited consolidatethhcial statements as of and for the year endegmber 31, 2011, included in this Form
10-K.

We continually evaluate the accounting policies astiimates used to prepare the consolidated fiabsigitements. In general, our
estimates are based on historical experience, &vatuof current trends, information from third gaprofessionals and various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable uhdémown facts and circumstances.

Medical Claims Payabl

The most subjective accounting estimate in our alichsted financial statements is our liability foedical claims payable. At
December 31, 2011, this liability was $5,489.0 eeygtesented 19% of our total consolidated liak#itiWe record this liability and the
corresponding benefit expense for incurred butpadd claims including the estimated costs of preicgssuch claims. Incurred but not paid
claims include (1) an estimate for claims thatinceirred but not reported, as well as claims regzbtd us but not yet processed through our
systems, which approximated 97.2%, or $5,335.8uototal medical claims liability as of Decembdr, 2011; and (2) claims reported to us
and processed through our systems but not yet whidh approximated 2.8%, or $153.7, of the totabinal claims payable as of
December 31, 2011. The level of claims payablegssed through our systems but not yet paid mayuthbe from one period end to the next,
from 1% to 5% of our total medical claims liabiligue to timing of when claim payments are made.
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Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repedtand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate,
employing actuarial methods that are commonly uselealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaraidétrds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim ligddl be appropriate under moderately adverse mistances. We determine the amount of the
liability for incurred but not paid claims by folldng a detailed actuarial process that entailsgubth historical claim payment patterns as
as emerging medical cost trends to project our ésgnate of claim liabilities. Under this procesistorical paid claims data is formatted into
“claim triangles,” which compare claim incurred e&to the dates of claim payments. This informaicemalyzed to create “completion
factors” that represent the average percentagatalfincurred claims that have been paid througtvan date after being incurred. Completion
factors are applied to claims paid through theqeeend date to estimate the ultimate claim expersered for the period. Actuarial estimates
of incurred but not paid claim liabilities are théetermined by subtracting the actual paid clairomfthe estimate of the ultimate incurred
claims.

For the most recent incurred months (typically st recent two months), the percentage of claiang for claims incurred in those
months is generally low. This makes the completamtor methodology less reliable for such monthseréfore, incurred claims for recent
months are not projected from historical completiod payment patterns; rather they are projectezsbgnating the claims expense for those
months based on recent claims expense levels aiith leare trend levels, or “trend factors.”

Because the reserve methodology is based uponib@tmformation, it must be adjusted for knownsomspected operational and
environmental changes. These adjustments are nyaoler lactuaries based on their knowledge and #gtimate of emerging impacts to ben
costs and payment speed. Circumstances to be eoedith developing our best estimate of reservdade changes in utilization levels, unit
costs, mix of business, benefit plan designs, gervweimbursement levels, processing system coiovesrand changes, claim inventory levels,
claim processing patterns, claim submission pattand operational changes resulting from businesgbinations. A comparison of prior
period liabilities to re-estimated claim liabiliidvased on subsequent claims development is atsidesed in making the liability
determination. In our comparison of prior year, thethods and assumptions are not changed as resee/eecalculated; rather the availability
of additional paid claims information drives oulaciges in the re-estimate of the unpaid claim lighilo the extent appropriate, changes in
such development are recorded as a change to tpegad benefit expense.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardirs) trends and utilization when initially estabirgnclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims activitys determined that our assumptions
regarding cost trends and utilization are signiftbadifferent than actual results, our incomeestatnt and financial position could be impacted
in future periods. Adjustments of prior year estiesamay result in additional benefit expense @duction of benefit expense in the period an
adjustment is made. Further, due to the considenadiability of health care costs, adjustmentsléim liabilities occur each period and are
sometimes significant as compared to the net inc@oerded in that period. Prior period developnmgmnecognized immediately upon the
actuary’s judgment that a portion of the prior pdriiability is no longer needed or that an additibliability should have been accrued. That
determination is made when sufficient informatisravailable to ascertain that the re-estimate efittbility is reasonable.

While there are many factors that are used astaptre estimation of our medical claims payaldéility, the two key assumptions
having the most significant impact on our incurbed not paid liability as of December 31, 2011 wine completion and trend factors. As
discussed above, these two key assumptions carflbericed by other operational variables includiggtem changes, provider submission
patterns and business combinations.

There is variation in the reasonable choice of detigm factors by duration for durations of threenths through 12 months where the
completion factors have the most significant impAst previously discussed, completion factors tenle less reliable for the most recent
months and therefore are not specifically utilized
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for months one and two. In our analysis for thénelBabilities at December 31, 2011, the variabilit months three to five was estimated to be
between 40 and 90 basis points, while months southh twelve have much lower variability rangingrfr O to 30 basis points.

The difference in completion factor assumptionsuyasng moderately adverse experience, resultsriahifity of 2%, or approximately
$126.0, in the December 31, 2011 incurred but aat plaim liability, depending on the completiorttiars chosen. It is important to note that
the completion factor methodology inherently asssithat historical completion rates will be refleetiof the current period. However, it is
possible that the actual completion rates for tiveemit period will develop differently from histoél patterns and therefore could fall outside
the possible variations described herein.

The other major assumption used in the establishofehe December 31, 2011 incurred but not paiihtlliability was the trend factors.
In our analysis for the period ended December 8112there was a 320 basis point differential tiigh and low trend factors assuming
moderately adverse experience. This range of ti@etdrs would imply variability of 5%, or approxiredy $250.0, in the incurred but not paid
claims liability, depending upon the trend factosed. Because historical trend factors are oftémepwesentative of current claim trends, the
trend experience for the most recent six to ninatim plus knowledge of recent events likely affegturrent trends, have been taken into
consideration in establishing the incurred butpaitl claim liability at December 31, 2011.

See Note 12, “Medical Claims Payable,” to our aadlitonsolidated financial statements as of anthioyear ended December 31, 2011
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, faregonciliation of the beginning and ending balafuzenedical claims payable for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. Compoogkitits total incurred claims for each year inclaseounts accrued for current year
estimated claims expense as well as adjustmeptsaoyear estimated accruals. In Note 12, “Medieims Payable,” the line labeled “Net
incurred medical claims: Prior years redundancéesbunts for those adjustments made to prior y&anates. The impact of any reduction of
“Net incurred medical claims: Prior years redundasicmay be offset as we establish the estimat&lef incurred medical claims: Current
year” Our reserving practice is to consistently recagrthe actuarial best estimate of our ultimateilitglfor our claims. When we recognize a
release of the redundancy, we disclose the ambahtg not in the ordinary course of business,aterial. Further, while we believe we have
consistently applied our methodology in determining best estimate for unpaid claims liability atle reporting date, starting in 2010 we
began using a lower level of targeted margin fareaske deviation, which resulted in a benefit to@@tcome before taxes of $67.7.

The ratio of current year medical claims paid aeent of current year net medical claims incumed 88.8% for 2011, 89.6% for 2010
and 88.9% for 2009. The decline in 2011 reflectsithpact of processing a claims inventory backlad accumulated at the end of 2010. The
increase in 2010 reflects acceleration in procgssliaims that occurred in 2010 due to higher leeélButomatic claims adjudication and faster
claims payment.

We calculate the percentage of prior years’ rednoi@s in the current period as a percent of preary’ net incurred claims payable less
prior years’ redundancies in the current periodrifer to demonstrate the development of the peargreserves. This metric was 4.5% for
year ended December 31, 2011, reflecting a lowesl lef targeted reserve for adverse deviation arebaltant lower level of prior ye?
redundancies. This metric was 15.3% for the yededrbecember 31, 2010 and 15.2% for the year eDdedmber 31, 2009.

We calculate the percentage of prior years’ redooi@s in the current period as a percent of prearg’ net incurred medical claims to
indicate the percentage of redundancy includeterpteceding year calculation of current year metiired medical claims. We believe this
calculation measure indicates the reasonableness gfrior year estimate of incurred medical claamg the consistency in our methodology.
For the year ended December 31, 2011, this meag&®5%, which was calculated using the redundah®209.7. This metric was 1.5% for
full year 2010 and 1.7% for 2009.
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The following table shows the variance between to¢&incurred medical claims as reported in N&g“Medical Claims Payabletd oul
audited consolidated financial statements as offanthe year ended December 31, 2011 includebdignAnnual Report on Form 10-K, for
each of 2010 and 2009 and the incurred claimsufoln gears had it been determined retrospectiveinfrited as the difference between “net
incurred medical claims—current year” for the yslhown and “net incurred medical claims—prior yegadundancies” for the immediately
following year):

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009
Total net incurred medical claims, as reported $44,359.. $46,507.¢
Retrospective basis, as described at 44,867 .- 46,597..
Variance $ (508.9 $ (89.9
Variance to total net incurred medical claims,egorted (1.1% (0.2%

Given that our business is primarily short taildw variance to total net incurred medical claiassreported above, is used to assess the
reasonableness of our estimate of ultimate incurredical claims for a given calendar year withltkeefit of one year of experience. We
expect that substantially all of the developmerthef2011 estimate of medical claims payable vélkbhown during 2012.

The 2010 variance to total net incurred medicahtdaas reported of (1.1)% is greater than the 2@¥8entage of (0.2)%. The 2010
variance was driven by the lower level of prior yesdundancies in 2011 associated with 2010 clayments, including the impact of a lower
level of targeted margin for adverse deviationc@spared to the previous two years.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with FABBance, which requires, among other thingss#éparate recognition of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. Such defetax assets and deferred tax liabilities repriethe tax effect of temporary differences
between financial reporting and tax reporting meagat tax rates enacted at the time the defeabeddset or liability is recorded. A valuation
allowance must be established for deferred taxtsiffiséis “more likely than not” that all or a piion may be unrealized. Our judgment is
required in determining an appropriate valuatidovehnce.

At each financial reporting date, we assess thguatsy of the valuation allowance by evaluating ezfobur deferred tax assets based on
the following:
+ the types of temporary differences that createdi#éferred tax asse

» the amount of taxes paid in prior periods and atwéél for a carry-back claim;
» the forecasted future taxable income, and therghtuady future deduction of the deferred tax iteamd
» any significant other issues impacting the likedglization of the benefit of the temporary differes.

We, like other companies, frequently face challenfgem tax authorities regarding the amount of sackee. These challenges include
guestions regarding the timing and amount of dedastthat we have taken on our tax returns. Inugatailg any additional tax liability
associated with various positions taken in ourréurn filings, we record additional liabilitiesrfpotential adverse tax outcomes. Based on our
evaluation of our tax positions, we believe we happropriately accrued for uncertain tax beneéisstequired by the guidance. To the extent
we prevail in matters we have accrued for, ourrutffective tax rate would be reduced and netrireavould increase. If we are required to
pay more than accrued, our future effective ta@ veduld increase and net income would decreaseefirative tax rate and net income in any
given future period could be materially impacted.
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In the ordinary course of business, we are reguéartlited by federal and other tax authorities, fanch time to time, these audits resul
proposed assessments. We believe our tax posg@nply with applicable tax law and we intend toedef our positions vigorously through
federal, state and local appeals processes. Wevbelie have adequately provided for any reasorial#seeable outcome related to these
matters. Accordingly, although their ultimate regmn may require additional tax payments, we dbamticipate any material impact on our
results of operations from these matters.

For additional information, see Note 8, “Income &sX to our audited consolidated financial stateimas of and for the year ended
December 31, 2011, included in this Form 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Our consolidated goodwill at December 31, 2011 $&%858.7 and other intangible assets were $7,93h& sum of goodwill and other
intangible assets represented 42% of our totalatmfaded assets and 94% of our consolidated shigtetsd equity at December 31, 2011.

We follow FASB guidance for business combinationd goodwill and other intangible assets, which Bpescthe types of acquired
intangible assets that are required to be recodrand reported separately from goodwill. Underghielance, goodwill and other intangible
assets (with indefinite lives) are not amortizedl éme tested for impairment at least annually. lkemrhore, goodwill and other intangible assets
are allocated to reporting units for purposes efgdhnual impairment test. Our impairment testsirequs to make assumptions and judgments
regarding the estimated fair value of our reportings, which include goodwill and other intangilalgsets. In addition, certain other intangible
assets with indefinite lives, such as trademankesakso tested separately.

We complete our annual impairment tests of exisgiogdwill and other intangible assets with indeérives during the fourth quarter of
each year. These tests involve the use of estimaliied to the fair value of the goodwill repogtinnit and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives, and require a significant degoéenanagement judgment and the use of subjectsgngstions. Certain interim impairment
tests are also performed during interim periodsiwgatential impairment indicators exist or otheares in our business occur.

Fair value is estimated using the income and maptoaches for our goodwill reporting units anelitttome approach for our indefir
lived intangible assets. Use of the income and etaafproaches for our goodwill impairment testee# our view that both valuation
methodologies provide a reasonable estimate of/édire.

The income approach is developed using assumpaiomst future revenue, expenses and net incomeedkfiom our internal planning
process. These estimated future cash flows aredisenunted. Our assumed discount rate is basediimdustry’s weighted average cost of
capital. Market valuations are based on observdtptas of certain measures including memberstggenue and EBITDA (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization)iaadide market comparisons to publicly traded cames in our industry.

While we believe we have appropriately allocateslfghrchase price of our acquisitions, this allaratequires many assumptions to be
made regarding the fair value of assets and lteslacquired. In addition, estimated fair valuesedoped based on our assumptions and
judgments might be significantly different if otherasonable assumptions and estimates were tcede ligstimated fair values are less tl
the carrying values of goodwill and other intangibWith indefinite lives in future annual impairnéasts, or if significant impairment
indicators are noted relative to other intangildsets subject to amortization, we may be requobeddord impairment losses against future
income.
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For additional information, see Note 10, “Goodwitid Other Intangible Assetdd our audited consolidated financial statementsf asc
for the year ended December 31, 2011, includedignRorm 10-K.

Investments

Current and long-term available-for-sale investnssdurities were $17,376.8 at December 31, 201Teprésented 33% of our total
consolidated assets at December 31, 2011. Wefgldizsid maturity and equity securities in our isteent portfolio as “available-for-sale” or
“trading” and report those securities at fair valGertain fixed maturity securities are availallestipport current operations and, accordingly,
we classify such investments as current assetoutittegard to their contractual maturity. Investisarsed to satisfy contractual, regulatory or
other requirements are classified as long-termhout regard to contractual maturity.

We review investment securities to determine iflides in fair value below cost are other-than-terapp. This review is subjective and
requires a high degree of judgment. We conductréhi;ew on a quarterly basis, using both qualigtind quantitative factors, to determine
whether a decline in value is other-than-tempor8nch factors considered include the length of tme the extent to which a security’s
market value has been less than its cost, themedsothe decline in value (i.e., credit event pamed to liquidity, general credit spread
widening, currency exchange rate or interest rtéofs), financial condition and near term prospetthe issuer, including the credit ratings
and changes in the credit ratings of the issuegmenendations of investment advisors, and foreacdstssonomic, market or industry trends. In
addition, for equity securities, we determine wieetlve have the intent and ability to hold the siégdior a period of time to allow for a
recovery of its fair value above its carrying amioufany declines of equity securities are detedito be other-thatemporary, we charge tl
losses to income when that determination is made.

Certain FASB other-than-temporary impairment, olSBAOTTI, guidance applies to fixed maturity seéesitand provides guidance on
the recognition and presentation of other-than-taauy impairments. In addition, this FASB OTTI gaitte requires disclosures related to
other-than-temporary impairments. If a fixed magusiecurity is in an unrealized loss position arelhave the intent to sell the fixed maturity
security, or it is more likely than not that we Miave to sell the fixed maturity security befoeeavery of its amortized cost basis, the decline
in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary amddorded to other-than-temporary impairment lsseognized in income in our
consolidated income statements. For impaired fimaturity securities that we do not intend to selt @ more likely than not that we will not
have to sell such securities, but we expect thatillenot fully recover the amortized cost baslse tredit component of the other-than-
temporary impairment is recognized in other-tiemporary impairment losses recognized in incomauinconsolidated income statements
the non-credit component of the other-than-tempgoirapairment is recognized in other comprehensioeime. Furthermore, unrealized losses
entirely caused by non-credit related factors egldd fixed maturity securities for which we expexfully recover the amortized cost basis
continue to be recognized in accumulated other cehgmsive income.

The credit component of an other-than-temporaryaimpent is determined by comparing the net pregaloe of projected future cash
flows with the amortized cost basis of the fixectumigy security. The net present value is calcwdig discounting our best estimate of
projected future cash flows at the effective irserate implicit in the fixed maturity securitytate date of acquisition. For mortgalgacked an
asset-backed securities, cash flow estimates aedlan assumptions regarding the underlying coflhtecluding prepayment speeds, vintage,
type of underlying asset, geographic concentratidetault rates, recoveries and changes in valorealFother debt securities, cash flow
estimates are driven by assumptions regarding pilityaof default, including changes in credit rags, and estimates regarding timing and
amount of recoveries associated with a default.

We have a committee of certain accounting and invest associates and management that is respofwibfeanaging the impairment
review process. The current economic environmedtvatetility of securities markets increase thdidifity of assessing investment impairm
and the same influences tend to increase the figltential impairment of these assets.
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We believe we have adequately reviewed our investisecurities for impairment and that our investthegrturities are carried at fair
value. However, over time, the economic and magketronment may provide additional insight regagdine fair value of certain securities,
which could change our judgment regarding impainméhis could result in other-than-temporary impant losses on investments being
charged against future income. Given the curremketaonditions and the significant judgments iweal, there is continuing risk that further
declines in fair value may occur and additionalterial other-than-temporary impairment losses aestments may be recorded in future
periods.

In addition to available-for-sale investment setbesi we held additional long-term investments H0$3.7, or 2% of total consolidated
assets, at December 31, 2011. These long-termtineass consist primarily of real estate, cash sulee value of corporate-owned life
insurance policies and certain other equity and @thod investments. Due to their less liquid retthese investments are classified as long-
term.

Through our investing activities, we are exposefinancial market risks, including those resultingm changes in interest rates and
changes in equity market valuations. We managentimiet risks through our investment policy, whishablishes credit quality limits and
limits on investments in individual issuers. Inetfiee management of these risks could have an itrgraour future earnings and financial
position. Our investment portfolio includes fixediturity securities with a fair value of $16,159tD&cember 31, 2011. The weighted-average
credit rating of these securities was “A” as of Beber 31, 2011. Included in this balance are imvests in fixed maturity securities of states,
municipalities and political subdivisions, mortgaogcked securities and corporate securities ofég212 $18.5 and $7.7, respectively, that are
guaranteed by third parties. With the exceptiothofeen securities with a fair value of $16.3,shaecurities are all investmagrade and can
a weighted-average credit rating of “AA” as of Dex®er 31, 2011 with a guarantee by a third party 3écurities are guaranteed by a number
of different guarantors and we do not have anyiggmt exposure to any single guarantor (neithelirect through the guarantees, nor direct
through investment in the guarantor). Further, ude high underlying credit rating of the issy¢he weighted-average credit rating of these
securities without the guarantee was “AA” as of &mber 31, 2011 for the securities for which sudarination is available.

Fair values of available-for-sale fixed maturitydaaquity securities are based on quoted market¢qrighere available. These fair values
are obtained primarily from third party pricing giees, which generally use Level | or Level Il inptior the determination of fair value in
accordance with FASB guidance for fair value measients and disclosures. We have controls in ptaceview the third party pricing
services’ qualifications and procedures used terdghe fair values. In addition, we periodicallyiev the third party pricing services’ pricing
methodologies, data sources and pricing inputsisore the fair values obtained are reasonable.

We obtain only one quoted price for each securiynfthird party pricing services, which are deritecbugh recently reported trades for
identical or similar securities making adjustmeht®ugh the reporting date based upon availabl&ehabservable information. For securities
not actively traded, the third party pricing seedganay use quoted market prices of comparablaimsints or discounted cash flow analyses,
incorporating inputs that are currently observablthe markets for similar securities. Inputs tha often used in the valuation methodologies
include, but are not limited to, broker quotes,dienark yields, credit spreads, default rates arggyment speeds. As we are responsible for
the determination of fair value, we perform montahalysis on the prices received from third partiledetermine whether the prices are
reasonable estimates of fair value. Our analysisiites a review of month-to-month price fluctuasoli unusual fluctuations are noted in this
review, we may obtain additional information fromier pricing services to validate the quoted prideere were no adjustments to quoted
market prices obtained from third party pricingvéeges during the years ended December 31, 2012@0hd.

In certain circumstances, it may not be possibléetidve pricing model inputs from observable madettvity, and therefore, such inputs
are estimated internally. Such securities are daségl Level 11l in accordance with FASB guidancec@ities designated Level Il at
December 31, 2011 totaled $284.8 and representedf bir total assets measured at fair value ortarneg basis. Our Level Il securities
primarily
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consist of certain inverse floating rate securjt@gictured securities and municipal bonds thaewnly traded or not traded at all due to
concerns in the securities markets and the regubick of liquidity. Consequently, observable irputere not always available and the fair
values of these securities were estimated usiegriat estimates for inputs including, but not lxitto, prepayment speeds, credit spreads,
default rates and benchmark yields.

For additional information, see Part Il, Item 7Qantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaiRisk” in this Form 10-K, and
Note 2,"Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountirgié®es,” Note 5, “Investments,” and Note 7, “F&falue,” to our audited
consolidated financial statements as of and foy#e ended December 31, 2011, included in thisnF®-K.

Retirement Benefit:
Pension Benefits

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for sohoeioemployees. These plans are accounted fazdardance with FASB guidance
for retirement benefits, which requires that ameuratognized in financial statements be determamedn actuarial basis. As permitted by the
guidance, we calculate the value of plan assedessibed below. Further, the difference betweeregpected rate of return and the actual
performance of plan assets, as well as certainggdsaim pension liabilities, are amortized over fatperiods.

An important factor in determining our pension engeis the assumption for expected long-term retarplan assets. As of our
December 31, 2011 measurement date, we selected)dadrm rate of return on plan assets of 8.00%ligslans, which is consistent with our
prior year assumption of 8.00%. We use a totalfplastreturn analysis in the development of ourumsption. Factors such as past market
performance, the long-term relationship betweeadimaturity and equity securities, interest ratétation and asset allocations are considered
in the assumption. The assumption includes an agtiwf the additional return expected from actianagement of the investment portfolio.
Peer data and an average of historical returnalagereviewed for appropriateness of the seleddsdraption. We believe our assumption of
future returns is reasonable. However, if we loau@r expected long-term return on plan assets, éutantributions to the pension plan and
pension expense would likely increase.

This assumed longerm rate of return on assets is applied to a tatled value of plan assets, which recognizes chwaimghe fair value ¢
plan assets in a systematic manner over three, ymaxducing the expected return on plan assetssliatluded in the determination of pension
expense. The difference between this expectedrana the actual return on plan assets is defamddimortized over the average remaining
service of the workforce as a component of pensigense. The net deferral of past asset gainssesaaffects the calculated value of plan
assets and, ultimately, future pension expense.

The discount rate reflects the current rate at vttie pension liabilities could be effectively kdtat the end of the year based on our
most recent measurement date (December 31, 20Aé )sdlected weighted-average discount rate fqiatls is 4.29%, which was developed
using a yield curve approach. Using yields avadai high-quality fixed maturity securities withriaus maturity dates, the yield curve
approach provides a “customized” rate, which isméamatch the expected cash flows of our speb#ieefit plans. The net effect of changes
in the discount rate, as well as the net effectbér changes in actuarial assumptions and exmpesi¢rave been deferred and amortized as a
component of pension expense in accordance witgufdance.

In managing the plan assets, our objective is ta tEsponsible fiduciary while minimizing financi&@k. Plan assets include a diversified
mix of investment grade fixed maturity securitiequity securities and alternative investments acaosnge of sectors and levels of
capitalization to maximize the long-term return &oprudent level of risk. In addition to producimgeasonable return, the investment strategy
seeks to minimize the volatility in our expense aadh flow.
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Other Postretirement Benefits

We provide most associates with certain medicalpwiand dental benefits upon retirement. We usewsactuarial assumptions
including a discount rate and the expected trerftealth care costs to estimate the costs and bemdifiations for our retiree benefits.

At our December 31, 2011 measurement date, thetsdldiscount rate for all plans was 4.36% (congbéoea discount rate of 5.24% for
2011 expense recognition). We developed this rsitggla yield curve approach as described above.

The assumed health care cost trend rates usedasuneethe expected cost of other benefits at ouelber 31, 2011 measurement dates
was 7.50% for 2012 with a gradual decline to 5.08#the year 2017. These estimated trend rateubject to change in the future. The health
care cost trend rate assumption has a signifidéettteon the amounts reported. For example, areas® in the assumed health care cost trend
rate of one percentage point would increase thgtaement benefit obligation as of December 3, Pby $52.6 and would increase service
and interest costs by $2.5. Conversely, a dectieabe assumed health care cost trend rate of ereptage point would decrease the
postretirement benefit obligation by $44.7 as ot@&uaber 31, 2011 and would decrease service aneétteosts by $2.1.

For additional information regarding our retirembghefits, see Note 11, “Retirement Benefits,”uo audited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended Decemb@031, included in this Form 10-K.

New Accounting Pronouncemen

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Statgldipdate No. 2010-06nproving Disclosures about Fair Value Measuremermts
ASU 2010-06. ASU 2010-06 amends Accounting Starsl@atification, or ASC, Topic 82Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuries,
require a number of additional disclosures regayéiir value measurements. Effective January 11288U 201006 requires that informatic
in the reconciliation of recurring Level Il measuanents about purchases, sales, issuances andsetidebe provided on a gross basis. The
adoption of ASU 2010-06 only required additionadaidsures and did not have an impact on our catetelil financial position or results of
operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-B4jr Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.Re#l IFRSsor ASU 2011-04. ASU 2011-04 amends ASC Topic &20r Value
Measurements and Disclosurito provide guidance on how fair value measuremieotilsl be applied where existing GAAP already resgimr
permits fair value measurements. In addition, ASW1204 requires expanded disclosures regardingydie measurements. ASU 2011-04
became effective for us on January 1, 2012. Ealbpton was not permitted. The adoption of ASU 20%1is not expected to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position asulés of operations.

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-O8her Expenses (Topic 720): Fees Paid to the Feédeoaernment by Health Insurers
(a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Forc&SU 2011-06. ASU 2011-06 addresses how fees ataddy Health Care Reform
should be recognized and classified in the incotaements of health insurers. Health Care Reforposas a mandatory annual fee on health
insurers for each calendar year beginning on er déinuary 1, 2014. ASU 2011-06 stipulates thaliahdity incurred for that fee be amortized
to expense over the calendar year in which it y@pke. This ASU is effective for calendar yearsibeing after December 31, 2013, when the
fee initially becomes effective. The adoption oflA8011-06 is not expected to have a material impaatur consolidated financial position or
results of operations.

There were no other new accounting pronouncemeatsmere issued or became effective during the geded December 31, 2011 that
had, or are expected to have, a material impactofinancial position, operating results or distices.
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VIII.  Liquidity and Capital Resources
Introduction

Our cash receipts result primarily from premiundmanistrative fees, investment income, other reeemuoceeds from the sale or
maturity of our investment securities, proceedsiflrrowings, and proceeds from exercise of st@tlons. Cash disbursements result mainly
from claims payments, administrative expenses stgxerchases of investment securities, interestresgy payments on borrowings, capital
expenditures and repurchases of our common stadh Gutflows fluctuate with the amount and timifigettlement of these transactions. Any
future decline in our profitability would likely k@ some negative impact on our liquidity.

We manage our cash, investments and capital steustuwe are able to meet the short and long-téligations of our business while
maintaining financial flexibility and liquidity. Wéorecast, analyze and monitor our cash flows ebéninvestment and financing within the
overall constraints of our financial strategy.

A substantial portion of the assets held by ouulegd subsidiaries are in the form of cash antl egsiivalents and investments. After
considering expected cash flows from operatingvaigts, we generally invest cash that exceeds ear term obligations in longer term
marketable fixed maturity securities, to improve ouerall investment income returns. Our investngtritegy is to make investments
consistent with insurance statutes and other regylaequirements, while preserving our asset b@se.investments are generally available-
for-sale to meet liquidity and other needs. Ours@liaries pay out excess capital annually in thenfof dividends to their respective parent
companies for general corporate use, as permittegbplicable regulations.

The availability of financing in the form of debt equity is influenced by many factors including puofitability, operating cash flows,
debt levels, debt ratings, contractual restrictisagulatory requirements and market condition® 3écurities and credit markets have in the
past experienced higher than normal volatilityhaltgh current market conditions are more stableinguecent years, the Federal government
and various governmental agencies have taken aewufilsteps to restore liquidity in the financiadmkets and to help relieve the credit crisis
and strengthen the regulation of the financial isesyrmarket. In addition, governments around thedimave developed their own plans to
provide liquidity and security in the credit markaind to ensure adequate capital in certain fim&imstitutions.

We have a $2,500.0 commercial paper program. Stamutdnercial paper issuance be unavailable, we dnigise a combination of cash
on hand and/or our $2,000.0 senior revolving criadiility to redeem our commercial paper when itumes. While there is no assurance in the
current economic environment, we believe the lemgarticipating in our credit facility will be willg and able to provide financing in
accordance with their legal obligations. In additto the $2,000.0 senior revolving credit facilitye expect to receive approximately $2,392.4
of dividends from our subsidiaries during 2012, ethalso provides further operating and financiexitbility.

The table below outlines the cash flows provideabwysed in operating, investing and financingwtigis for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years Ended December 3

2011 2010 2009
Cash flows provided by (used it
Operating activitie: $ 3,374.¢ $1,416. $ 3,038.¢
Investing activities (942.0 (1,271.% 3,002.¢
Financing activitie: (2,019.) (3,169.9 (3,402.9
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and casivaents (0.9) 3.2 (6.7)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: $ 412¢ $(3,027.)  $2,632.:
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Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Hridecember 31, 2010

During the year ended December 31, 2011, net dashpfrovided by operating activities was $3,374@mpared to $1,416.7 for the year
ended December 31, 2010, an increase of $1,95Mig ificrease resulted primarily from tax paymerit$19208.0 to the IRS during 2010
related to the gain we realized on the 2009 satmioPBM business.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $04furing the year ended December 31, 2011, cordpgar$l,271.5 for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The decrease in cash flow usedésting activities of $329.5 between the twdqus primarily resulted from changes in
securities lending collateral and increases irpneteeds from the sale of investments, partialiyedfby the purchase of CareMore and an
increase in the net purchases of property and eggnp

Net cash flow used in financing activities was 38.@ during the year ended December 31, 2011, cardpa $3,169.3 for the year
ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in cashufiedin financing activities of $1,150.1 primarigsulted from decreases in share
repurchases, increases in net proceeds from coriahpaper borrowings and changes in bank overdrnaétdially offset by changes in
securities lending payable, cash dividends paidamithcrease in repayments of debt borrowings.

Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Bridecember 31, 2009

During 2010, net cash flow provided by operatintivittes was $1,416.7, compared to $3,038.9 in 2@08ecrease of $1,622.2. This
decrease resulted primarily from tax payments ¢283.0 to the IRS related to the gain we realizethe 2009 sale of our PBM business and
increased incentive compensation payments in 2010.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $1,8 in 2010, compared to cash flow provided byesiing activities of $3,002.8 in
2009. The increase in cash flow used in investotyidies of $4,274.3 between the two periods prifgaesulted from the cash proceeds from
the sale of our PBM business to Express Scrip2009 and increases in securities lending collaterateases in net purchases of property and
equipment and increases in other investing adjtpartially offset by decreases in net purchases/estments and decreases in purchases of
subsidiaries.

Net cash flow used in financing activities was $8.B in 2010 compared to $3,402.8 in 2009. Theeadss in cash flow used in financi
activities of $233.5 primarily resulted from incses in the net proceeds from debt issuances, seséa securities lending payable, decreases
in bank overdrafts and increases in cash proceedsémployee stock plans, partially offset by ises in the repurchase of common stock.

Financial Condition

We maintained a strong financial condition andiliify position, with consolidated cash, cash eglgints and investments, including
long-term investments, of $20,596.9 at DecembefB1]1. Since December 31, 2010, total cash, casita@gnts and investments, including
long-term investments, increased by $360.7 primaitle to cash generated from operations, incredsletbalances and proceeds from our
employee stock plans, partially offset by commartktrepurchases, the acquisition of CareMore, fiexggkt purchases and dividends to
shareholders.

Many of our subsidiaries are subject to variousaegonrnent regulations that restrict the timing anaant of dividends and other
distributions that may be paid to their respecpigeent companies. In addition, we have agreedrtainaundertakings to regulatory authorities,
including the requirement to maintain certain caggvels in certain of our subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2011, we held at the parent com@ari§34.4 of cash and cash equivalents and invessmehich is available for
general corporate use, including investment inbusinesses, acquisitions, potential future shamerobhases and shareholder dividends and
debt and interest payments.
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We calculate a non-GAAP measure, our consolidagdd-tb-capital ratio, which we believe assists stoes and rating agencies in
measuring our overall leverage and additional wimg capacity. In addition, our bank covenantsgatk a maximum debt-tiotal capital ratic
that we cannot exceed. Our targeted range of detjital ratio is 25% to 35%. Our debt-to-capitdlo is calculated as the sum of debt
divided by the sum of debt plus shareholders’ gq@iur debt-to-capital ratio may not be comparablsimilarly titled measures reported by
other companies. Our consolidated debt-to-totaitabmtio was 29.6% and 27.3% as of December 8112nd December 31, 2010,
respectively.

Our senior debt is rated “A-" by Standard & Poot’;” by Fitch, Inc., “Baal” by Moody’s Investor $eéce, Inc. and “bbb+” by AM
Best Company, Inc. We intend to maintain our sedat investment grade ratings. A significant doraxg in our debt ratings could adversely
affect our borrowing capacity and costs.

Future Sources and Uses of Liquidity

On December 9, 2011, we filed an updated shelbtedion statement with the SEC to register amuitdid amount of any combination
debt or equity securities in one or more offerirggecific information regarding terms and secuwsibieing offered will be provided at the time
of an offering. Proceeds from future offerings expected to be used for general corporate purpsagding, but not limited to, the
repayment of debt, investments in or extensiongedit to our subsidiaries and the financing ofgildie acquisitions or business expansion.

We have a senior credit facility, or the facilityith certain lenders for general corporate purpo$ke facility, as amended, provides
credit up to $2,000.0 and matures on Septembe2@9. The interest rate on the facility is baseeitmer, (i) the LIBOR rate plus a
predetermined percentage rate based on our cegitigjrat the date of utilization, or (ii) a baseeras defined in the facility agreement plus a
predetermined percentage rate based on our catitifjrat the date of utilization. Our ability torbmw~ under the facility is subject to
compliance with certain covenants. There were nouants outstanding under the facility as of Decen#der2011.

We have an authorized commercial paper progranp @6 $2,500.0, the proceeds of which may be useddberal corporate purposes.
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, $799.8 and $336spectively, were outstanding under our commepagker program. Commercial paper
borrowings have been classified as long-term debeaember 31, 2011 and 2010 as our practice dedtiis to replace short-term commercial
paper outstanding at expiration with additionalrsiterm commercial paper for an uninterrupted pegstending for more than one year or
through our ability to redeem our commercial papith borrowings under the senior credit facilitysdebed above.

We are a member, through certain subsidiariedhye@federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis and #@eFal Home Loan Bank of
Cincinnati, collectively, the FHLBs, and as a memlve have the ability to obtain short-term cashaambes subject to certain minimum
collateral requirements. At December 31, 2011 &1D2$100.0 and $100.0, respectively, were outstgnehder our short-term FHLBs
borrowings. On January 18, 2012 we repaid the $100tstanding balance of the short-term FHLBs haimg that was outstanding at
December 31, 2011. On January 25, 2012, we borramnedtditional $100.0 from the FHLBs with a threenth term at a fixed interest rate of
0.070%.

At maturity on January 17, 2012, we repaid the $3%@itstanding balance of our 6.375% senior unsecootes.

On August 15, 2011, we issued $400.0 of 2.375%osemsecured notes due 2017 and $700.0 of 3.708¥rsensecured notes due 2(
under our shelf registration statement. A portibthe proceeds from this debt issuance was us&dtbthe purchase price of our acquisitiol
CareMore and the remaining proceeds may be
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used for working capital and for general corpotgposes, including, but not limited to repaymefrgtart-term and long-term debt. The notes
have a call feature that allows us to redeem thesnat any time at our option and a put featureahaws a note holder to require us to
repurchase the notes upon the occurrence of bothrege of control event and a ratings downgradeeohotes.

As discussed in “Financial Condition” above, mafipor subsidiaries are subject to various goverrtmegulations that restrict the
timing and amount of dividends and other distribngi that may be paid. Based upon these requirenveaitare currently estimating
approximately $2,392.4 of dividends to be paichi parent company during 2012. During 2011, weivede$2,915.9 of dividends from our
subsidiaries.

We regularly review the appropriate use of capitaluding common stock repurchases and divideadhéareholders. The declaration
and payment of any dividends or repurchases otommmon stock is at the discretion of our Board o&Etors and depends upon our financial
condition, results of operations, future liquiditgeds, regulatory and capital requirements and fdleors deemed relevant by our Board of
Directors. Historically our common stock repurchpsegram has been our primary use of capital. Beggin 2011, our Board of Directors
established a quarterly shareholder dividend. Ther no dividends paid during 2010 or 2009.

A summary of the cash dividend activity for the yeaded December 31, 2011 is as follows:

Declaration Record Payment DiSi?jSe?\d
Date Date Date per Share Total
February 22, 201 March 10, 201 March 25, 201 $ 0.25 $ 9238
May 17, 201 June 10, 201 June 24, 201 0.25 91.1
July 26, 201 September 9, 20: September 23, 20 0.25 88.2
October 25, 201 December 9, 20! December 23, 20: 0.25 85.7

On January 24, 2012, the Board of Directors in@édbe quarterly shareholder cash dividend to $h2fr share on the outstanding
shares of our common stock. This increased quaréridend will be paid on March 23, 2012 to theustholders of record as of March 9,
2012.

A summary of Board of Director share repurchaséaigations for the year ended December 31, 204% fellows:

Authorization Date Amount

February 3, 201 $  375.
February 22, 201 1,100.(
May 17, 2011 500.(
August 25, 201: 250.(
September 29, 201 5,000.(

We expect to utilize unused authorization remairsih®ecember 31, 2011 over a multi-year periodjemlio market and industry
conditions. Our stock repurchase program is dignraty as we are under no obligation to repurcishsees. We repurchase shares when we
believe it is a prudent use of capital.

A summary of share repurchases for the period Jgriy@2012 through February 9, 2012 (subsequebetember 31, 2011) and for the
year ended December 31, 2011 is as follc

Year Ended
January 1, 2012 December 31
Through

February 9, 201: 2011
Shares repurchased 4.9 44.¢
Average price per sha $ 67.71 $ 68.3¢
Aggregate cos $ 333.¢ $ 3,039.¢
Authorization remaining at the end of each pe $ 3,999.! $ 4,333/
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Our current retirement benefits funding strategipifund an amount at least equal to the minimuguired funding as determined under
ERISA with consideration of maximum tax deductiteounts. We may elect to make discretionary camiobs up to the maximum amount
deductible for income tax purposes. For the yededrbecember 31, 2011, no material contributiongwecessary to meet ERISA required
funding levels. However, during the year ended Demer 31, 2011, we made tax deductible discretionangributions to the pension benefit
plans and other benefit plans of $57.7 and $3@dgpactively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
Our estimated contractual obligations and commitsias of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

More than
Less than

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Debt, including capital leasés $15,197..  $1,849. $1,750..  $2,599.°  $8,997.0
Operating lease commitmet 695.¢ 110.¢ 204.¢ 151.( 229.¢
Projected other postretirement bene 532.t 40.€ 125.( 132.¢ 234.(

Purchase obligation

IBM outsourcing agreemen? 784.1 259t 473.1 51.t —
Other purchase obligatio? 1,688.¢ 829.( 692.¢ 140.¢ 25.¢
Other lon¢-term liabilities4 1,109.¢ — 435.] 4215 253.(
Venture capital commitmen 263.¢ 126.: 91.k 36.1 10.C
Total contractual obligations and commitme $20,272.( $3,216.: $3,772.: $3,5633.! $9,750.(

1

, Includes estimated interest exper

Relates to agreements with International Busineashifes Corporation, or IBM, to provide informatiehnology infrastructur
services. See Note 14, “Commitments and Contingehteethe audited consolidated financial statermastof and for the year ended
December 31, 2011 included in this Forn-K for further information

Includes obligations related to r-IBM information technology service agreements alddommunication contract

Estimated future payments for funded pension benkéive been excluded from this table as we hddmding requirements under
ERISA at December 31, 2011 as a result of the vafidlee assets in the plans. In addition, amoutitisles other obligations resulting
from thircd-party service contract

The above table does not contain $117.9 of grabdities for uncertain tax positions and interestwhich we cannot reasonably estin
the timing of the resolutions with the respectiaring authorities. See Note 8, “Income Taxes,’h® audited consolidated financial statements
as of and for the year ended December 31, 201tdedlin this Form 10-K for further information.

In addition to the contractual obligations and cdtnmants discussed above, we have a variety of athetractual agreements related to
acquiring materials and services used in our ojpersitHowever, we do not believe these other agee¢srcontain material noncancelable
commitments.

We believe that funds from future operating casw$, cash and investments and funds available undegenior credit facility or from
public or private financing sources will be suféint for future operations and commitments, andatégital acquisitions and other strategic
transactions.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemieatsmll require funding in future periods.
Risk-Based Capital

Our regulated subsidiaries’ states of domicile heteg¢utory risk-based capital, or RBC, requiremémtdealth and other insurance
companies largely based on the National Associatfdnsurance Commissioners, or NAIC, RBC Model Adtese RBC requirements are
intended to measure capital adequacy, taking iotownt the risk characteristics of an insurer’'sstments and products. The NAIC sets forth
the formula for calculating the RBC requirementhjak are designed to take into account asset risgsrance risks, interest rate risks and
other relevant risks with respect to an individmalurance company’s business. In general, unde@tt, an insurance company must submit a
report of its RBC level to the state insurance d@pant or insurance commissioner, as appropriatideaend of each calendar year. Our risk-
based capital as of December 31, 2011, which wasibst recent date for which reporting was requines in excess of all mandatory RBC
thresholds. In addition to exceeding the RBC regqunts, we are in compliance with the liquidity @agital requirements for a licensee of the
BCBSA and with the tangible net worth requiremegplicable to certain of our California subsidiarie

IX. Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Seaities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

This document contains certain forward-looking miation about us that is intended to be coverethbysafe harbor for “forward-
looking statements” provided by the Private Se@sititigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-lookis@tements are statements that are not
generally historical facts. Words such“expect(s),” “feel(s),” “believe(s),” “will,” “may, " “anticipate(s),” “intend,” “estimate,” “project”
and similar expressions are intended to identifylrd-looking statements, which generally are nigtdrical in nature. These statements
include, but are not limited to, financial projemtis and estimates and their underlying assumptistagements regarding plans, objectives and
expectations with respect to future operationsdpigis and services; and statements regarding fyteréormance. Such statements are subject
to certain risks and uncertainties, many of whicé difficult to predict and generally beyond oumtml, that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed in, or iraglor projected by, the forward-looking informatiand statements. These risks and
uncertainties include: those discussed and idextifn our public filings with the SEC; increasedsgmment participation in, or regulation or
taxation of health benefits and managed care opamnat including, but not limited to, the impactlé Patient Protection and Affordable Care
Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliatiet of 2010; trends in health care costs andzsilon rates; our ability to secul
sufficient premium rates including regulatory appabfor and implementation of such rates; our apito contract with providers consistent
with past practice; competitor pricing below markesnds of increasing costs; reduced enrollmentyvell as a negative change in our health
care product mix; risks and uncertainties regardigdicare and Medicaid programs, including thoskated to non-compliance with the
complex regulations imposed thereon and fundirigsnigith respect to revenue received from partiégratherein; a downgrade in our
financial strength ratings; litigation and inveséitions targeted at health benefits companies arrchbility to resolve litigation ant
investigations within estimates; medical malpraetir professional liability claims or other riskslated to health care services provided by
our subsidiaries; our ability to repurchase shamdour common stock and pay dividends on our constamk due to the adequacy of our cash
flow and earnings and other considerations; -compliance by any party with the Express Scripis, pharmacy benefit management services
agreement, which could result in financial penaltieur inability to meet customer demands, and tiame imposed by governmental entities,
including the Centers for Medicare and Medicaidvg&s; events that result in negative publicitydsror the health benefits industry; failure
to effectively maintain and modernize our informatsystems and e-business organization and to aiaigbod relationships with third party
vendors for information system resources; everasrtiay negatively affect our license with the Bluess and Blue Shield Association;
possible impairment of the value of our intangibésets if future results do not adequately supgoodwill and other intangible assets; intet
competition to
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attract and retain employees; unauthorized disctesaf member sensitive or confidential informatiohanges in the economic and market
conditions, as well as regulations that may negdyiaffect our investment portfolios and liquidipgssible restrictions in the payment of
dividends by our subsidiaries and increases in mregbminimum levels of capital and the potentiadatve effect from our substantial amount
of outstanding indebtedness; general risks assediatith mergers and acquisitions; various laws anavisions in our governing documents
that may prevent or discourage takeovers and bssicembinations; future public health epidemics eaéstrophes; and general economic
downturns. Readers are cautioned not to place umelience on these forward-looking statements Hpetak only as of the date hereof. Except
to the extent otherwise required by federal semgitaw, we do not undertake any obligation to @i revised forwardeoking statements 1
reflect events or circumstances after the date dfeveto reflect the occurrence of unanticipate@ms. Readers are also urged to carefully
review and consider the various disclosures in 8HC reports.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data or As Otherw&ated Herein)

As a result of our investing and borrowing actasti we are exposed to financial market risks, tholy those resulting from changes in
interest rates and changes in equity market valnatiPotential impacts discussed below are baseu sgnsitivity analyses performed on our
financial position as of December 31, 2011. Acteallts could vary from these estimates. Our pynodjectives with our investment portfo
are to provide safety and preservation of cagstaficient liquidity to meet cash flow requiremeritse integration of investment strategy with
the business operations and an attainment of a etitinp after-tax total return.

Investments
Our investment portfolio is exposed to three prigrasurces of risk: credit quality risk, interesteraisk and market valuation risk.

The primary risks associated with our fixed magusiécurities are credit quality risk and interegéerisk. Credit quality risk is defined as
the risk of a credit downgrade to an individuakfixmaturity security and the potential loss attable to that downgrade. Credit quality risk is
managed through our investment policy, which efghbk credit quality limitations on the overall ffolio as well as diversification and
percentage limits on securities of individual igsud@he result is a well-diversified portfolio akéd maturity securities, with an average credit
rating of approximately “A.” Interest rate riskdefined as the potential for economic losses oedfimaturity securities due to a change in
market interest rates. Our fixed maturity portfadnvested primarily in U.S. government secusitieorporate bonds, asset-backed bonds,
mortgage-related securities and municipal bondisfabhich represent an exposure to changes ifethed of market interest rates. Interest rate
risk is managed by maintaining asset duration withband based upon our liabilities, operatinggrerdnce and liquidity needs. Additionally,
we have the capability of holding any security tatamity, which would allow us to realize full paalue.

Our portfolio includes corporate securities (apjpmately 39% of the total portfolio at December 3@11), which are subject to
credit/default risk. In a declining economic enwvineent, corporate yields will usually increase préedpby concern over the ability of
corporations to make interest payments, thus cgusithecrease in the price of corporate securdigs the decline in value of the corporate
fixed maturity portfolio. This risk is managed thgh fundamental credit analysis, diversificationssuers and industries and an average credit
rating of the corporate fixed maturity portfolio approximately “BBB.”

Our equity portfolio is comprised of large capitalion and small capitalization domestic equitiesgign equities and index mutual
funds. Our equity portfolio is subject to the vdit inherent in the stock market, driven by comeeover economic conditions, earnings and
sales growth, inflation, and consumer confidendeesE systemic risks cannot be managed throughsifiecation alone. However, more routi
risks, such as stock/industry specific risks, asmaged by investing in a diversified equity poitfol
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As of December 31, 2011, approximately 93% of ouatilable-for-sale investments were fixed maturggrities. Market risk is
addressed by actively managing the duration, dilmcand diversification of our investment porttnlWe have evaluated the impact on the
fixed maturity portfolios fair value considering an immediate 100 basiatpddiange in interest rates. A 100 basis poinease in interest rat
would result in an approximate $730.4 decreasaimvilue, whereas a 100 basis point decreasedrest rates would result in an approximate
$750.3 increase in fair value. While we classify fixed maturity securities as “available-for-safef accounting purposes, we believe our «
flows and duration of our portfolio should allow tashold securities to maturity, thereby avoidihg tecognition of losses should interest rates
rise significantly.

Our available-for-sale equity securities portfolig, of December 31, 2011, was approximately 7%ipfrivestments. An immediate 10%
decrease in each equity investment'’s value, arisorg market movement, would result in a fair vatlezrease of $121.7. Alternatively, an
immediate 10% increase in each equity investmenatiise, attributable to the same factor, would reisuh fair value increase of $121.7.

For additional information regarding our investngsiee Note 5, “Investmentsd, our audited consolidated financial statemenisf asd
for the year ended December 31, 2011, and “Invesshevithin “Critical Accounting Policies and Estates” in Part Il, Item 7. “Managemest’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” included in this Form 10-K.

Long-Term Debt

Our total long-term debt at December 31, 2011 va695.4, and included $799.8 of commercial papdr&i0.0 outstanding from a
Federal Home Loan Bank, or FHLB, borrowing. Theryiag values of the commercial paper approximatevi@ue as the underlying
instruments have variable interest rates at maskee. The carrying value of the FHLB borrowing epgimates fair value due to the relatively
short-nature of the note and its collateralizatibime remainder of the debt includes senior unsecooges and subordinated surplus notes by
one of our insurance subsidiaries. This debt igestilbo interest rate risk as these instrumente lfixed interest rates and the fair value is
affected by changes in market interest rates. Thes®r unsecured notes had combined carrying stmdated fair value of $8,768.3 and
$9,740.7, respectively, at December 31, 2011. Bneying value and estimated fair value of the susplotes were $24.9 and $28.6,
respectively, at December 31, 2011.

Should interest rates increase or decrease inutheef the estimated fair value of our fixed radédtdvould decrease or increase
accordingly. For additional information regardingr dong-term debt, see Note 13, “Debt” to our aedlitonsolidated financial statements as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2011, inclidéds Form 10-K.

Derivatives

We have exposure to economic losses due to intextestisk arising from changes in the level oratitity of interest rates. We attempt to
mitigate our exposure to interest rate risk throtighuse of derivative financial instruments. Theisategies include the use of interest rate
swaps and forward contracts, which are used toilodkterest rates or to hedge (on an economicshasierest rate risks associated with
variable rate debt. We have used these types wliinents as designated hedges against specifititiesh

Changes in interest rates will affect the estiméairdvalue of these derivatives. As of DecemberZl11, we recorded an asset of $86.6,
the estimated fair value of the swaps at that d@have evaluated the impact on the intereststaggp’s fair value considering an immediate
100 basis point change in interest rates. A 10Ghpmsnt increase in interest rates would resuétirapproximate $26.6 decrease in fair value,
whereas a 100 basis point decrease in interestwateld result in an approximate $26.6 increadaiimvalue.

We also utilize put and call options on the S&P tifex to hedge (on an economic basis) the expasfurar equity security portfolio to
fluctuations in the equity markets. While the imipaicfluctuations in the equity
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markets on these derivatives are largely offsathgnges in the fair values of our equity securdstfplio, the change in fair value of the
derivatives is recognized immediately in our incostegement, whereas the change in fair value oéquity securities is recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income. Accordjregtiecrease in the S&P 500 index of 10% wouldlr@san approximate increase of
$28.6 in the fair value of these derivatives. Acr@ase in the S&P 500 index of 10% would resuétrirapproximate decrease of $26.0 in the
fair value of these derivatives.

For additional information regarding our derivasyeee Note 6, “Derivatives” to our audited cordatied financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2011, includebignRorm 10-K. Also for accounting related to sétes in our equity portfolio, see “Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates—Investments” initPart Il, Item 7. “Management Discussion and Amsal of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” included in this Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
WellPoint, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of WellPoint, Inc. (the “Company”) aPetember 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shatelsilequity, and cash flows for each of the thyea&rs in the period ended December 31,
2011. Our audits also included the financial staenschedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a).sEhénancial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements and schedule based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of WellPoint,
Inc. at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the catadeli results of its operations and its cash flimveach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with U.Sagally accepted accounting principles. Also, in opinion, the related financial statem
schedule, when considered in relation to the fasgmcial statements taken as a whole, presentyg faiall material respects the information
set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@inited States), WellPoint, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2011, based on criteria establishedt@rial Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report datdauzey 22, 2012 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s ERNST & Y OUNGLLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
February 22, 2012

77



Table of Contents

(In millions, except share dat
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale, at fair value

WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $13,83and $15,545.¢

Equity securities (cost of $937.7 and $86:
Other invested assets, curr
Accrued investment incorr
Premium and se-funded receivable
Other receivable
Income taxes receivab
Securities lending collater
Deferred tax assets, r
Other current asse
Total current asse
Long-term investments availal-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $24n8 $215.8
Equity securities (cost of $28.4 and $3:
Other invested assets, lc-term
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Other intangible asse
Other noncurrent asse
Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Policy liabilities:
Medical claims payabl
Reserves for future policy benef
Other policyholder liabilitie!
Total policy liabilities
Unearned incom
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Security trades pending payal
Securities lending payab
Shor-term borrowings
Current portion of lon-term debt
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current porti
Reserves for future policy benefits, noncurt
Deferred tax liabilities, ne
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenc—Note 14

Shareholde’ equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autec—100,000,000; shares issued and outsta—none

Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authc—900,000,000; shares issued and outstanding: 3388F2nd 377,736,92

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive incc

Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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December 31

December 31

2011 2010
$ 2,201.¢ $ 1,788.¢
15,913.: 16,069.!
1,188.: 1,236.:
14.¢ 21.1
172.( 177.¢
3,402.¢ 3,041.¢
943.¢ 878.€
105.¢ 32.¢
871.¢ 900.2
424.¢ 460.¢
1,859.( 1,534.;
27,097 .« 26,140.¢
246.¢ 221.¢
28.8 33.4
1,003.7 865.4
1,418.: 1,155t
13,858. 13,264.¢
7,931.° 7,996.¢
433.¢ 488.:
$  52,018.¢ $  50,166.¢
$ 5,489.( $ 4,852.4
55.1 56.4
2,278.: 1,909.:
7,822.1 6,817.¢
926.5 891.¢
3,124.: 2,942.;
51.7 38.8
872.% 901.f
100.( 100.C
1,274.% 705.¢
1,654.. 1,617.:
15,825 14,009.!
8,420.¢ 8,147.¢
730.% 646.7
2,724 2,586.¢
1,029. 963.4
28,730.( 26,354.
34 3.8
11,679.: 12,862.¢
11,490. 10,721.¢
114.¢ 224.€
23,288.: 23,812.¢
$  52,018.t $  50,166.¢
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WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 3

2011 2010 2009
(In millions, except per share dat
Revenues
Premiums $55,969.¢ $53,973.1 $56,382.1
Administrative fee: 3,854.¢ 3,730.¢ 3,751."
Other revenui 41.C 36.5 606.:
Total operating revent 59,865.: 57,740.! 60,740.(
Net investment incom 703.7 803.: 801.(
Gain on sale of busine — — 3,792.:
Net realized gains on investme| 235.1 194.1 56.Z
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme (114.% (70.¢) (538.9)

Portion of other-than-temporary impairment lossEognized in other comprehensive

income 21.4 31.4 88.2

Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inc (93.9) (39.9 (450.2)
Total revenue 60,710. 58,698.! 64,939.!
Expenses
Benefit expens 47,647 44,930.: 47,122.
Selling, general and administrative exper

Selling expens 1,616.¢ 1,610.: 1,685.!

General and administrative expet 6,818.¢ 7,122.: 7,333.¢
Total selling, general and administrative expe 8,435.¢ 8,732.¢ 9,019.:
Cost of drugs — — 419.(
Interest expens 430.% 418.¢ 447 .
Amortization of other intangible asst 239.¢ 2417 266.(
Impairment of other intangible ass — 21.1 262.k
Total expense 56,752. 54,344, 57,536.!
Income before income tax expens 3,957.¢ 4,353.¢ 7,403.(
Income tax expens 1,311.c 1,466. 2,657.:
Net income $ 2,646. $ 2,887.; $ 4,745.¢
Net income per share
Basic $ 7.3t $ 7.0 $  9.9¢
Diluted $ 7.2t $ 69 $ 98¢
Dividends per share $ 1.0c $  — $  —

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 3

2011 2010 2009
(In millions)
Operating activities
Net income $ 2,646. $ 2,887.: $4,745.¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie!
Net realized gains/losses on investm (235.) (194.7) (56.9)
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci 93.2 394 450.2
Loss on disposal of asst 3.3 1.9 16.4
Gain on sale of busine — — (3,792.)
Deferred income taxe 74.% 101.¢ 61.2
Amortization, net of accretio 541.F 4977 446.¢
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ass — 21.1 262.t
Depreciation expens 95.7 103.1 107.]
Impairment of property and equipme — 95.3 —
Shar-based compensatic 134.¢ 136.( 153.¢
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic (42.2) (28.7) (9.6)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinatior
Receivables, n¢ (401.¢) 109.7 (484.2)
Other invested asse (8.9 5.1 (62.5)
Other asset (259.9) (320.)) (119.9)
Policy liabilities 978.( (330.%) (748.2)
Unearned incom 35.1 (158.6) (27.9)
Accounts payable and accrued expet (208.7%) (58.2) 952.¢
Other liabilities (13.¢) (208.9 (248.¢)
Income taxe: (44.€) (1,239.9 1,391.¢
Other, ne (14.2) (43.5) (0.7)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,374.¢ 1,416.% 3,038.¢
Investing activities
Purchases of fixed maturity securit (11,914.) (10,567.) (7,186.9)
Proceeds from fixed maturity securitit
Sales 10,446.. 7,215.: 4,096.¢
Maturities, calls and redemptio 1,891.0 3,321.7 1,551.7
Purchases of equity securiti (355.¢) (350.9 (318.9
Proceeds from sales of equity securi 287.¢ 197.¢ 577.:
Purchases of other invested as (207.9 (91.9) (49.0
Proceeds from sales of other invested as 29.4 34 315
Changes in securities lending collate 28.¢ (504.¢) 132.¢
Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acq! (600.0) (0.3 (66.5
Proceeds from sales of subsidiaries, net of cast — — 4,672.:
Purchases of property and equipm (519.5) (451.9 (378.9
Proceeds from sales of property and equipr 3.7 0.8 0.4
Other, ne! (31.0) (75.5) (32.0)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (942.0) (1,271.9) 3,002.¢
Financing activities
Net proceeds from (repayments of) commercial papaowings 463.€ (164.9) (397.0
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 1,097.¢ 1,088.t 990.:
Repayments of lor-term borrowings (705.7) (481.%) (919.9)
Proceeds from she«-term borrowings 100.( 100.C —
Repayments of she-term borrowings (100.0 — (98.0)
Changes in securities lending paya (29.0 504.¢ (132.9)
Changes in bank overdra 264.: (28.0) (344.7)
Repurchase and retirement of common s (3,039.9 (4,360.9) (2,638.9)
Cash dividend (357.¢) — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under ereglstock plan 245.( 143.€ 126.5
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 42.2 28.1 9.€
Net cash used in financing activities (2,019.9) (3,169.9) (3,402.9)
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cashuvalents (0.4) (3.2 (6.7)
Change in cash and cash equivals 412.¢ (3,027.9) 2,632.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 1,788.¢ 4,816.. 2,183.¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye: $ 2,201.¢ $ 1,788.¢ $4,816..

See accompanying notes.

80




Table of Contents

WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Common Stock

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive

Total
Shareholders’

Additional
Number Paid-in Retained
of Share: Par Value Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity

(In millions)
January 1, 200 503.Z $ 5.C $16,843.( $ 5,479. $ (895.%) $ 21,431
Cumulative effect of adoption of FASB OTTI

guidance, net of taxe — — — 88.¢ (88.9 —
Net income — — — 4,745.¢ — 4,745.¢
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on

investment: — — — — 1,055.: 1,055.:
Non-credit component of other-than-

temporary impairment losses on

investments, net of taxi — — — — (20.7) (20.7)
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on cash

flow hedges — — — — (2.9 (2.3
Change in net periodic pension &

postretirement cos — — — — 19.5 19.c
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — 1.2 1.2
Comprehensive incorn 5,798.¢
Repurchase and retirement of common s (57.9) (0.5 (1,922.9) (715.%) — (2,638.9)
Issuance of common stock under employet

stock plans, net of related tax bene 3.9 — 271. — — 271.
December 31, 200 449.¢ $ 4t $15,192.: $ 9,598.t $ 68.1 $ 24,863.:
Net income — — — 2,887.: — 2,887.:
Change in net unrealized gains/losse:

investment: — — — — 125.1 125.1
Non-credit component of other-than-

temporary impairment losses on

investments, net of taxi — — — — 14.7 14.7
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on cash

flow hedges — — — — (14.5 (14.5)
Change in net periodic pension and

postretirement cos — — — — 32.¢ 32.¢
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — (1.7 (1.9
Comprehensive incornr 3,043.¢
Repurchase and retirement of common s (76.7) (0.7) (2,595.¢) (1,764.0 — (4,360.9)
Issuance of common stock under empla

stock plans, net of related tax bene 4.6 — 266.( — — 266.(
December 31, 201 377 $ 3.8 $12,862. $10,721.¢ $ 224.¢ $ 23,812.1

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (edinued)

Common Stock Accumulated

Other Total
Additional Comprehensive Shareholders’
Number Paid-in Retained
of Share: Par Value Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity

(In millions)
January 1, 201 377.7 $ 3.8 $12,862.1 $10,721.¢ $ 224.¢ $ 23,812.1
Net income — — — 2,646. — 2,646.
Change in net unrealized gains/losse!

investment — — — — 20.€ 20.€
Non-credit component of other-thatemporary

impairment losses on investments, net of

taxes — — — — (0.7) (0.7)
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on

flow hedges — — — — (20.0 (20.0
Change in net periodic pension and

postretirement cos — — — — (119.9 (119.9
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — 0.2 0.2
Comprehensive incorn 2,537.(
Repurchase and retirement of common s (44.5 (0.9 (1,523.9) (1,516.9) — (3,039.9
Dividends and dividend equivaler — — — (361.9 — (361.9
Issuance of common stock under employee

stock plans, net of related tax bene 6.2 — 339.¢ — — 339.¢
December 31, 201 339.2 $ 34 $11,679. $11,490. $ 114.¢ $ 23,288..

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data or As Otherw&ated Herein)
1. Organization

References to the terms “we”, “our”, “us”, “WellPi or the “Company” used throughout these Note€dosolidated Financial
Statements refer to WellPoint, Inc., an Indiangoaation, and unless the context otherwise requitedirect and indirect subsidiaries.

We are one of the largest health benefits companiessms of medical membership in the United Staserving 34.3 medical members
through our affiliated health plans and a totatmfre than 65.3 individuals through our subsidiasie®f December 31, 2011. We offer a broad
spectrum of network-based managed care plansge &rd small employer, individual, Medicaid andisemarkets. Our managed care plans
include: preferred provider organizations, or PR@slth maintenance organizations, or HMOs; pofrgenvice, or POS, plans; traditional
indemnity plans and other hybrid plans, includioggumer-driven health plans, or CDHPs; and hospithl and limited benefit products. In
addition, we provide a broad array of managed sareices to self-funded customers, including clgimsessing, underwriting, stop loss
insurance, actuarial services, provider networleascmedical cost management, disease managenadness programs and other
administrative services. We also provide an arfapecialty and other products and services sudifiesand disability insurance benefits,
dental, vision, behavioral health benefit servicadjology benefit management, analytics-driverspeal health care guidance and long-term
care insurance. Finally, we provide services toRbderal Government in connection with the Fedenaployee Program, or FEP, and various
Medicare programs.

We are an independent licensee of the Blue Crad8are Shield Association, or BCBSA, an associatibindependent health benefit
plans. We serve our members as the Blue Crossskeefor California; the Blue Cross and Blue ShietdBCBS, licensee for Colorado,
Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, $digri (excluding 30 counties in the Kansas Cityagrdlevada, New Hampshire, New Y1
(as the BCBS licensee in 10 New York City metrog@wmliand surrounding counties and as the Blue @noBEBS licensee in selected upstate
counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excluding the Noetin Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.) and Wissia. In a majority of these service
areas we do business as Anthem Blue Cross, AntHeen@oss and Blue Shield, Blue Cross and Bluel&lieGeorgia, Empire Blue Cross
Blue Shield, or Empire Blue Cross (in our New Ysgkvice areas). We also serve customers throughewbuntry as UniCare, and in certain
California, Arizona and Nevada markets throughregently acquired CareMore Health Group, Inc., areMore, subsidiary. We are licensed
to conduct insurance operations in all 50 statemutyh our subsidiaries.

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies

Basis of PresentationThe accompanying consolidated financial statemiatade the accounts of WellPoint and its subsid&and
have been prepared in conformity with U.S. gengiaticepted accounting principles, or GAAP. All sfgiant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Certain of our subsidiaries operate outside olthied States and have functional currencies dtfeer the U.S. dollar, or USD. We
translate the assets and liabilities of those slidosés to USD using the exchange rate in effetht@end of the period. We translate the
revenues and expenses of those subsidiaries tousBD the average exchange rates in effect duniegériod. The net effect of these
translation adjustments is included in “Foreignreacy translation adjustments” in our consolidattdements of shareholders’ equity.
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Use of EstimatesThe preparation of consolidated financial states@ntonformity with GAAP requires us to make esties and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported irconsolidated financial statements and accompanyatgs. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash EquivalentsAll highly liquid investments with maturities of e months or less when purchased are classifiedsdsequivalents.

Investments:Certain Financial Accounting Standards Board, o6EBAother-than-temporary impairment, or FASB OTguidance
applies to fixed maturity securities and providag&gnce on the recognition and presentation ofretthen-temporary impairments. In addition,
this FASB OTTI guidance requires disclosures relateother-than-temporary impairments. If a fixedtuanity security is in an unrealized loss
position and we have the intent to sell the fixeatumity security, or it is more likely than not thae will have to sell the fixed maturity secur
before recovery of its amortized cost basis, tt@didke in value is deemed to be other-than-tempoaaryis recorded to other-than-temporary
impairment losses recognized in income in our clidated income statements. For impaired fixed mgtsecurities that we do not intend to
sell or it is more likely than not that we will nbave to sell such securities, but we expect tieatwil not fully recover the amortized cost ba:
the credit component of the other-than-temporangyaimment is recognized in other-than-temporary immpant losses recognized in income in
our consolidated income statements and the norita@uiponent of the other-than-temporary impairnismecognized in other comprehensive
income. Furthermore, unrealized losses entirelpeduiy non-credit related factors related to fimedurity securities for which we expect to
fully recover the amortized cost basis continubeéaecognized in accumulated other comprehensogrie.

The credit component of an other-than-temporaryaimmpent is determined by comparing the net pregeluie of projected future cash
flows with the amortized cost basis of the fixedtumidly security. The net present value is calcudig discounting our best estimate of
projected future cash flows at the effective interate implicit in the fixed maturity securitythie date of acquisition. For mortgalgaeked an
asset-backed securities, cash flow estimates aedlan assumptions regarding the underlying colbbecluding prepayment speeds, vintage,
type of underlying asset, geographic concentratidefault rates, recoveries and changes in valorealFother debt securities, cash flow
estimates are driven by assumptions regarding pilityeof default, including changes in credit rags, and estimates regarding timing and
amount of recoveries associated with a default.

The unrealized gains or losses on our current@mgHerm equity securities classified as availdblesale are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income as a separate compohsimareholders’ equity, unless the decline in atdudeemed to be other-than-temporary
and we do not have the intent and ability to heidhsequity securities until their full cost canreeovered, in which case such equity securities
are written down to fair value and the loss is gkdrto other-than-temporary impairment losses neizced in income.

We maintain various rabbi trusts to account forahsets and liabilities under certain deferred camation plans. Under these plans, the
participants can defer certain types of compensatial elect to receive a return on the deferreduatsdased on the changes in fair value of
various investment options, primarily a varietynafitual funds. Rabbi trust assets are classifigdading, which are reported in other invested
assets, current, in the consolidated balance sheets

We use the equity method of accounting for investisien companies in which our ownership interestibées us to influence the
operating or financial decisions of the investempany. Our proportionate share of equity in nebime of these unconsolidated affiliates is
reported with net investment income.
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For asset-backed securities included in fixed nitgtgecurities, we recognize income using an efffecyield based on anticipated
prepayments and the estimated economic life o$d¢warrities. When estimates of prepayments chahgeftective yield is recalculated to
reflect actual payments to date and anticipatagréupayments. The net investment in the secuigiadjusted to the amount that would have
existed had the new effective yield been appliedesthe acquisition of the securities. Such adjestsiare reported with net investment
income.

Investment income is recorded when earned. Allséesi sold resulting in investment gains and Issse recorded on the trade date.
Realized gains and losses are determined on the dfabe cost or amortized cost of the specificusities sold.

We participate in securities lending programs whgmarketable securities in our investment porntfalie transferred to independent
brokers or dealers based on, among other things,dteditworthiness in exchange for cash colldteitally equal to at least 102% of the
value of the securities on loan and is thereaft@intained at a minimum of 100% of the market valtithe securities loaned (calculated as the
ratio of initial market value of cash collateraldorrent market value of the securities on loamcdkdingly, the market value of the securities
on loan to each borrower is monitored daily anditbrower is required to deliver additional cashateral if the market value of the securities
on loan exceeds the initial market value of cadlateral delivered. The fair value of the collalexceived at the time of the transaction
amounted to $872.5 and $901.5 at December 31, 284 2010, respectively. The value of the cash wwladelivered represented 102% and
103% of the market value of the securities on laabecember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. UtieFASB guidance related to
accounting for transfers and servicing of finaneisgets and extinguishments of liabilities, we gaie the cash collateral as an asset, which is
reported as “securities lending collateral” on consolidated balance sheets and we record a corésyy liability for the obligation to return
the cash collateral to the borrower, which is régmbas “securities lending payable.” The securitie$oan are reported in the applicable
investment category on the consolidated balancetshenrealized gains or losses on securities hencbllateral are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income as a separate compohgimareholders’ equity.

Premium and Self-Funded ReceivableBremium and self-funded receivables include theleted amounts from fully-insured and
self-funded groups, and are reported net of amwalhee for doubtful accounts of $183.7 and $145Beatember 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The allowance for doubtful accoustbased on historical collection trends and ougiueint regarding the ability to collect
specific accounts.

Other ReceivablesOther receivables include pharmacy rebates, progdeances, claims recoveries, reinsurance, govarhprograms,
proceeds due from brokers on investment trade®#red miscellaneous amounts due to us. These adileivare reported net of an allowance
for uncollectible amounts of $149.1 and $187.8 eténber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, whiclaged on historical collection trends and
our judgment regarding the ability to collect sfie@mounts.

Income TaxesWe file a consolidated income tax return. Defelireme tax assets and liabilities are recognizedeimporary
differences between the financial statement anddgaxn bases of assets and liabilities based acted tax rates and laws. The deferred tax
benefits of the deferred tax assets are recogmiztte extent realization of such benefits is mikedy than not. Deferred income tax expense
or benefit generally represents the net changeferced income tax assets and liabilities durirgytbar. Current income tax expense repre:
the tax consequences of revenues and expensentbutaxxable or deductible on various income taames for the year reported.
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We account for income tax contingencies in accardamith FASB guidance that contains a model to @skluncertainty in tax positions
and clarifies the accounting for income taxes Bspribing a minimum recognition threshold, whichirdome tax positions must achieve
before being recognized in the financial statements

Property and EquipmentProperty and equipment is recorded at cost, natafimulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
principally by the straight-line method over esttethuseful lives ranging from 15 to 39 years foitdings and improvements, three to seven
years for furniture and equipment, and three te figars for computer software. Leasehold improvésarme depreciated over the term of
related lease. Certain costs related to the der@@apor purchase of internal-use software are @léget and amortized.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset$ASB guidance requires business combinations tcbeunted for using the acquisitions method
of accounting and it also specifies the types glua&ed intangible assets that are required to begrized and reported separately from
goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of cosafuisition over the fair value of net assets aegu Other intangible assets represent the
values assigned to subscriber bases, provider @suithl networks, Blue Cross and Blue Shield ameiotrademarks, licenses, non-compete
and other agreements. Goodwill and other intangibkets are allocated to reportable segments basbe relative fair value of the
components of the businesses acquired.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indeérlites are not amortized but are tested for inmpant at least annually. Furthermore,
goodwill and other intangible assets are alloc&te@porting units for purposes of the annual impant test. Our impairment tests require us
to make assumptions and judgments regarding timaatst fair value of our reporting units, includiggodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives. In addition, certain other intdllg assets with indefinite lives, such as traddaare also tested separately. Fair value is
calculated using a blend of a projected incomeraatket valuation approach. The projected incomeaguh is developed using assumptions
about future revenue, expenses and net incomeedefiiom our internal planning process. Our assudigzbunt rate is based on our industry’s
weighted average cost of capital and reflects ilityaassociated with the cost of equity capitalaiet valuations are based on observed
multiples of certain measures including membersigpenue, EBITDA (earnings before interest, tadegreciation and amortization) and net
income as well as market capitalization analysig/eflPoint and other comparable companies. Estithiatie values developed based on our
assumptions and judgments might be significantifecent if other reasonable assumptions and estisnatre to be used. If estimated fair
values are less than the carrying values of goddwd other intangible assets with indefinite lii@s$uture annual impairment tests, or if
significant impairment indicators are noted relatio other intangible assets subject to amortimatie may be required to record impairment
losses against future income.

Derivative Financial InstrumentsWe typically invest in the following types of deaitive financial instruments: interest rate swaps,
forward contracts, call options, credit default paigembedded derivatives, warrants and swaptioeisvélives embedded within naferivative
instruments (such as options embedded in conveffiked maturity securities) are bifurcated frore tiost instrument when the embedded
derivative is not clearly and closely related te tost instrument. Our use of derivatives is lichibg statutes and regulations promulgated by
the various regulatory bodies to which we are sttbgnd by our own derivative policy. Our derivativse is generally limited to hedging
purposes and we generally do not use derivativeliments for speculative purposes.

We have exposure to economic losses due to intextestisk arising from changes in the level oratitity of interest rates. We attempt to
mitigate our exposure to interest rate risk throagtive portfolio management,
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including rebalancing our existing portfolios ofats and liabilities, as well as changing the attersstics of investments to be purchased or
sold in the future. In addition, derivative finaalcinstruments are used to modify the interesteaposure of certain liabilities or forecasted
transactions. These strategies include the usgterieist rate swaps and forward contracts, whiclused to lock-in interest rates or to hedge (on
an economic basis) interest rate risks associatidvariable rate debt. We have used these typestiiments as designated hedges against
specific liabilities.

All investments in derivatives are recorded astasseliabilities at fair value. If certain corrélan, hedge effectiveness and risk reduction
criteria are met, a derivative may be specificdiygignated as a hedge of exposure to changes irafae or cash flow. The accounting for
changes in the fair value of a derivative depemdthe intended use of the derivative and the natbismy hedge designation thereon. Amounts
excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveiiesy/, as well as the ineffective portion of tpen or loss, are reported in results of
operations immediately. If the derivative is nosigeated as a hedge, the gain or loss resultimg fh@ change in the fair value of the deriva
is recognized in results of operations in the gkdbchange.

From time to time, we may also purchase derivatisdsedge (on an economic basis) our exposureréigio currency exchange
fluctuations associated with the operations ofaterdf our subsidiaries. We generally use futuref®avard contracts for these transactions.
generally do not designate these contracts as kedgk accordingly, the changes in fair value e$éhderivatives are recognized in income
immediately.

Credit exposure associated with noerformance by the counterparties to derivativerimsents is generally limited to the uncollaterad
fair value of the asset related to instrumentsgeized in the consolidated balance sheets. We pttemmitigate the risk of non-performance
by selecting counterparties with high credit rasimend monitoring their creditworthiness and by diifging derivatives among multiple
counterparties. At December 31, 2011, we belieeeetvere no material concentrations of credit witk any individual counterparty.

Certain of our derivative agreements contain cregjiport provisions that require us to post colidtié there are declines in the derival
fair value or our credit rating.

Retirement BenefitsWe recognize the funded status of pension and gibsretirement benefit plans on the consolidatddrite sheets
based on fiscal-year-end measurements of plansassdtbenefit obligations. Prepaid pension benedjisesent prepaid costs related to defined
benefit pension plans and are reported with otbacarrent assets. Postretirement benefits represgstinding obligations for retiree medical,
life, vision and dental benefits. Liabilities foepsion and other postretirement benefits are regavith current and noncurrent liabilities based
on the amount by which the actuarial present vafuenefits payable in the next 12 months incluitetthe benefit obligation exceeds the fair
value of plan assets.

Medical Claims PayableLiabilities for medical claims payable include estited provisions for incurred but not paid claimsan
undiscounted basis, as well as estimated providmmaxpenses related to the processing of clainesirred but not paid claims include (1) an
estimate for claims that are incurred but not reggras well as claims reported to us but not yetgssed through our systems; and (2) claims
reported to us and processed through our systetmobyet paid.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repedtand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate by
employing actuarial methods that are commonly useklealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaréaidstrds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim
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liabilities be appropriate under moderately adveisguimstances. We determine the amount of thditiabor incurred but not paid claims by
following a detailed actuarial process that entadimg both historical claim payment patterns ak asgemerging medical cost trends to project
our best estimate of claim liabilities.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardasg ttends and utilization when initially estabirgiclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims activityr assumptions regarding cost trends
and utilization are significantly different thantaal results, our income statement and financialtfum could be impacted in future periods.

Premium deficiencies are recognized when it is abbdthat expected claims and administrative exggendll exceed future premiums on
existing medical insurance contracts without comsition of investment income. Determination of premdeficiencies for longer duration li
and disability contracts includes consideratiomgéstment income. For purposes of premium def@&s) contracts are deemed to be either
short or long duration and are grouped in a manassistent with our method of acquiring, servicamgl measuring the profitability of such
contracts. Once established, premium deficienciesedeased commensurate with actual claims expegiever the remaining life of the
contract. No premium deficiencies were establigtddecember 31, 2011.

Reserves for Future Policy BenefitReserves for future policy benefits include ligkak for life and long-term disability insurance
policy benefits based upon interest, mortality ematbidity assumptions from published actuarialéabmodified based upon our experience.
Future policy benefits also include liabilities fosurance policies for which some of the premiuet®ived in earlier years are intended to pay
anticipated benefits to be incurred in future yekrgure policy benefits are continually monitosed! reviewed, and when reserves are
adjusted, differences are reflected in benefit agpe

The current portion of reserves for future poli@nbfits relates to the portion of such reserveswtieaexpect to pay within one year. We
believe that our liabilities for future policy bditig, along with future premiums received are adgguo satisfy our ultimate benefit liability;
however, these estimates are inherently subjexintamber of variable circumstances. Consequetidyattual results could differ materially
from the amounts recorded in our consolidated firerstatements.

Other Policyholder Liabilities:Other policyholder liabilities include rate stabdtion reserves associated with retrospectivebdrat
insurance contracts as well as certain case-speeserves. Rate stabilization reserves representhaulated premiums that exceed what
customers owe us based on actual claim experi@heetiming of payment of these retrospectively datfunds is based on the contractual
terms with the customers and can vary from perogetiod based on the specific contractual requerém

Revenue RecognitionPremiums for fully-insured contracts are recogniasdevenue over the period insurance coveragevided.
Premiums applicable to the unexpired contractue¢rage periods are reflected in the accompanyingaaated balance sheets as unearned
income. Premiums include revenue from retrospelgtinaded contracts where revenue is based on tiraaed ultimate loss experience of the
contract. Premium revenue includes an adjustmenmefoospectively rated refunds based on an estimiaincurred claims. Premium rates for
certain lines of business are subject to approydhe Department of Insurance of each respectate st

Administrative fees include revenue from certaiougr contracts that provide for the group to besitfor all, or with supplemental
insurance arrangements, a portion of their clairpggence. We charge these
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self-funded groups an administrative fee, whichdsed on the number of members in a group or thegpgs claim experience. In addition,
administrative fees include amounts received feratiministration of Medicare or certain other goveent programs. Under our self-funded
arrangements, revenue is recognized as admini&rsdirvices are performed. All benefit paymentseutidese programs are excluded from
benefit expense.

Share-Based Compensatio@ur compensation philosophy provides for sharedbasenpensation, including stock options and resilic
stock awards, as well as an employee stock purgilaseStock options are granted for a fixed nundfeshares with an exercise price at least
equal to the fair value of the shares at the ditieeogrant. Restricted stock awards are issuélteafair value of the stock on the grant date. The
employee stock purchase plan, which was susperftidiee January 1, 2011, allowed for a purchaseepper share which was 85% of the
value of a share of common stock on the last tgaday of the plan quarter. All share-based paymtengsnployees, including grants of
employee stock options and discounts associatdédemiployee stock purchases, are recognized as oapE expense in the income
statement based on their fair values. Additionakcess tax benefits, which result from actualttemefits exceeding deferred tax benefits
previously recognized based on grant date fairejedve recognized as additional paid-in-capital @medreclassified from operating cash flows
to financing cash flows in the consolidated statet:mef cash flows. Our share-based employee comagienglans and assumptions are
described in Note 15, “Capital Stock.”

Advertising costsWe use print, broadcast and other advertising dépte our products and to develop our corporatg@na@he cost of
advertising for product promotion is expensed asiired while advertising associated with corpoiatage is expensed when first aired. Total
advertising expense was $287.8, $226.1 and $30818¢ years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and g&f}8ectively.

Earnings per ShareEarnings per share amounts, on a basic and dih#isid, have been calculated based upon the weightrdge
common shares outstanding for the period.

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andrispaited by dividing income available to common shatders by the weightesiverage
number of common shares outstanding for the pebBddted earnings per share includes the dilutiffeat of stock options and restricted stc
using the treasury stock method. The treasury stoethod assumes exercise of stock options andchgestirestricted stock, with the assumed
proceeds used to purchase common stock at thegeverarket price for the period. The difference leetwthe number of shares assumed
issued and number of shares assumed purchasedaeréhe dilutive shares.

Reclassificationsin 2010, the U.S. Federal government enacted kgsl requiring that certain lines of business nspetified
minimum medical loss ratios. For this purpose,Department of Health and Human Services, or HHS$ied guidance specifying the types of
costs that should be included in benefit expenspudgposes of calculating medical loss ratios. Tefnition varied from our prior
classification under GAAP. Where appropriate, weehadopted this revised classification effectiveuday 1, 2011 to further align our GAAP
basis classification to that used in the calcutafar determining medical loss ratios under the Hig&lance. However, certain components of
the medical loss ratio computation as defined bySHtdnnot be classified consistently under GAAP.okdingly, benefit expense ratios shown
in our GAAP basis presentation are different thenrhedical loss ratios in accordance with HHS guiddor purposes of calculating rebates.
Prior period amounts have not been reclassifiedtdiramateriality.

Certain other prior year amounts have been refiled4o conform to the current year presentation.
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Acquisition of CareMor:

On August 22, 2011, we completed our acquisitio@afeMore, a senior focused health care delivesgnam that includes Medicare
Advantage plans and clinics designed to deliveagtive, integrated, individualized health caredtest California, Arizona and Nevada
markets. CareMore’s leading programs and servicegge members with quality care through a handsymproach to care coordination,
convenient neighborhood care centers and exe@isigies and intensive treatment of chronic coiodis. This approach enhances our abilit
create better health outcomes for seniors by engagembers both on the front end of our relatignsthirough comprehensive health
screenings and enhanced preventive care, and thoauthe spectrum of their health care needs. Thaisition of CareMore supports our
strategic plans to capitalize on new opportuniii@growth in the changing marketplace and to er¢la¢ best health care value in our industry.

In accordance with FASB accounting guidance foiirmes combinations, the preliminary consideratiangferred was allocated to the
fair value of CareMore’s assets acquired and li@sl assumed, including identifiable intangibleets. The excess of the consideration
transferred over the fair value of net assets aeduiesulted in preliminary non tax-deductible geidof $595.3 at December 31, 2011, all of
which was allocated to our Consumer segment. Pirgdirm goodwill recognized from the acquisition cir€More primarily relates to the
expected future synergies from the expansion oélare’s business model to our members. In accosdaiith FASB guidance for business
combinations, any additional payments or receiptsaeh resulting from contractual purchase prigasithents or any subsequent adjustments
made to the assets acquired or liabilities asswhneidg the measurement period will be recordedhaadgustment to goodwill.

The fair value of net assets acquired from CareNtarkided $172.6 of other intangible assets, wipiémarily consist of customer
relationships, trade name and provider relatiorsshipd have amortization periods ranging from tetwemty years.

The results of operations of CareMore have bedndled in our consolidated financial statementgtierperiod following August 22,
2011. The pro-forma effects of this acquisition fiolor periods were not material to our consolidatesults of operations.

Sale of PBM Business

On December 1, 2009, we sold our pharmacy bemefitsagement, or PBM, business to Express Scrifts,dnExpress Scripts, and
received $4,675.0 in cash. The pre-tax gain orséewas $3,792.3. We also entered into a tenegrdract for Express Scripts to provide
PBM services to our members. The results of operatof our PBM business have been included in onsalidated financial statements
through November 30, 2009.

Components of the gain on sale are as follows:

Proceed: $4,675.(
Book value of PBM busine (696.6)
Other transaction cos (186.7)
Pre-tax gain on sal 3,792.:
Tax expens: (1,431.)
Net gain on sal $2,361.:
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Other transaction costs include charges for systemsersions, investment banking, legal and acéogservices and employee related
costs.

Acquisition of DeCare Dental, LL

On April 9, 2009, we completed our acquisition af@are Dental, LLC, or DeCare, a wholly-owned subsydof DeCare International.
DeCare is one of the country’s largest administeatd dental benefit plans and provides servicesctly and through partnerships and
administrative agreements with several dental exste brands, primarily as a third party administrdDeCare manages dental benefits and
provides our customers with innovative dental patsiand enhanced customer service. The resultgeshtions of DeCare are included in our
consolidated financial statements for periods feitg April 9, 2009. The pro-forma effects of thisgaisition for prior periods were not
material to our consolidated results of operations.

4. Restructuring Activities

As a result of restructuring activities implementkding 2011, 2010 and 2009, we recorded liabdif@ employee termination costs and
lease and other contract exit costs. The resthmcfactivities are classified as components of ggrend administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of income for the respegtariod in which they occurred.

The 2011 restructuring activities were initiatecha®sult of our efforts to improve, streamline amake our core business processes more
efficient and effective. Activity related to thelibilities for the year ended December 31, 2031ségment, is as follows:

Commercial Consumel Other Total

2011 Restructuring Activities

Employee termination cost
Costs incurred in 201 $ 522 $ 11.¢ $0.7 $64.¢
2011 payments —

(0.9 (0.7 (0.5)
Liabilities for employee termination costs endirajamce a
December 31, 201 51.¢ 11.¢ 0.7 64.%
Lease and other contract exit co:
Costs incurred in 201 17.2 5.7 1.9 24.¢
Liability for lease and other contract exit costsli@g balance at
December 31, 201 17.2 5.7 1.9 24.¢
Total liability for 2011 restructuring activitiesding balance at December 31, 2( $ 69.C $ 17t $2.6 $89.1
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The 2010 restructuring activities were initiatechagsult of a change in strategic focus primarnilyesponse to Health Care Reform.

Activity related to these liabilities for the yeamsded December 31, 2011 and 2010, by segmerst fidlaws:

Commercial Consumel Other Total
2010 Restructuring Activities
Employee termination cost
Costs incurred in 201 $ 53¢ $ 19.z $5.C $77.¢
2010 payment (0.5 (0.2 (0.7 (0.8)
Liabilities for employee termination costs endirajamce a
December 31, 201 53.1 19.C 4.¢ 77.C
2011 payment (25.9) (9.0) (2.9 (36.€)
Liabilities released in 201 (16.8) (6.0 (1.6 (24.9)
Liabilities for employee termination costs endirajamce a
December 31, 201 11.C 4.C 1.C 16.C
Lease and other contract exit co:
Costs incurred in 201 15.7 4.7 2.2 22.¢
2010 payment (1.3 (0.4 (0.3 (2.0
Liabilities for lease and other contract exit castsling balance
December 31, 201 14.4 4.3 1.¢ 20.€
2011 payment (7.5 (2.2 (2.0 (20.9)
Liabilities released in 201 (0.7 (0.3 — (1.0
Liability for lease and other contract exit costslieg balance &
December 31, 201 6.2 1.8 0.2 8.
Total liability for 2010 restructuring activitiesiding balance at December 31, 2! $ 172 $ 5.8 $1.¢ $24.¢

In addition, during 2010 we recognized $40.5 of &dnments for information technology assets relatedur change in strategic focus
primarily in response to Health Care Reform. Thpairments are a component of general and admitiig@raxpenses on the consolidated

statement of income.
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The 2009 restructuring activities were executed essult of a strategic realignment to our corpositategy. Activity related to these

liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2@D1,0 and 2009, by segment, is as follows:

Commercial Consumel Other Total
2009 Restructuring Activities
Employee termination cost
Costs incurred in 200 $ 931 $ 20.: $10.3 $123.7
2009 payment (3.9 (0.9) (0.9 (4.5)
Liabilities for employee termination costs endirajamce a
December 31, 200 89.7 19.€ 9.¢ 119.2
2010 payment (56.0 (12.2) (6.2 (74.9
Liabilities released in 201 (21.9) (4.7) (2.9 (28.§)
Liabilities for employee termination costs endirajamce a
December 31, 201 12.C 2.7 1.3 16.C
2011 payment (7.4 2.7 (0.8 (9.9
Liabilities released in 201 (2.7 (0.€) (0.9 (3.€)
Liabilities for employee termination costs endirajamce a
December 31, 201 1.6 0.4 0.2 2.3
Lease and other contract exit co
Costs incurred in 200 33.¢ 3.3 10.7 47.¢
2009 payment (2.1 (0.3 (1.6 (3.9
Liabilities for lease and other contract exit castsling balance
December 31, 200 31.¢ 3.2 9.1 44.]
2010 payment (4.9 (0.2) (0.9 (5.0
Liability for lease and other contract exit costslieg balance ¢
December 31, 201 27.4 3.C 8.7 39.1
2011 payment (2.5 (0.3 (0.9 (3.6)
Liabilities released in 201 (5.2 (1.7) (0.2 (7.9)
Liability for lease and other contract exit costslieg balance ¢
December 31, 201 19.7 1.C 7.7 28.4
Total liability for 2009 restructuring activitieméing balance at December 31, 2! $ 21¢ $ 14 $7¢ 30.¢
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A summary of current and long-term investmentsjlalike-for-sale, at December 31, 2011 and 2016 i®lows:

December 31, 2011

Fixed maturity securitie:
United States Government securi
Government sponsored securit
States, municipalities and political subdivisiongot

exempt

Corporate securitie
Options embedded in convertible debt secur
Residential mortgac-backed securitie
Commercial mortga-backed securitie
Other debt obligation

Total fixed maturity securitie
Equity securitie:
Total investments, availal-for-sale

December 31, 2010

Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securi
Government sponsored securit
States, municipalities and political subdivisiongxt

exempt

Corporate securitie
Options embedded in convertible debt secur
Residential mortgac-backed securitie
Commercial mortga¢-backed securitie
Other debt obligation

Total fixed maturity securitie
Equity securitie:
Total investments, availal-for-sale

Non-Credit
Component
of
Gross Unrealized Losses Other-Than-
Temporary
Impairments
Gross
Cost or Unrealized 12 Months Greater than Recognized
Amortized Estimated in
Cost Gains or Less 12 Months Fair Value AOCI
$ 564¢ $ 39¢ $ (01 $ — $ 6047 $ @ —
173.1 2.5 — — 175.¢ —
4,994 352.: (3.9 (15.0) 5,327.¢ (0.5)
6,588.( 305.: (88.4) (6.9 6,798.( (0.4)
79.7% — — — 79.7 —
2,471. 112.1 (7.6) (10.9) 2,565.( (6.2)
363.: 14.¢ (1.0) 1.7) 375. —
239.¢ 3.1 (2.0) (7.2) 233.¢ (3.2)
15,474 . 830.1 (103.0) (41.6 16,159.¢ $ (10.f
966.1 277.( (26.2) — 1,216.¢
$16,440.! $1,107.. $(129.9) $ (41.6 $17,376.
$ 500¢ $ 141 $ (36 $ — $ 5114 $ @ —
325.¢ 6.C (0.8) - 330.¢ -
4,630.: 130.t (38.9) (29.6) 4,692. —
6,850.: 385.1 (16.9) (7.1 7,211 (0.8
108.: — — — 108.: —
2,747.: 113.7 (9.0 (15.4) 2,836.! (6.2)
330.¢ 9.2 (1.5) (2.2) 336. —
268.( 6.2 (0.9 (9.4) 264.F (2.2)
15,761.; 664.¢ (71.0) (63.7) 16,291 $ 9.1
894.2 383.2 (7.8 — 1,269.¢
$16,655.. $1,048.( $ (78.) $ (63.7) $17,560.!
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5. Investments (continued)

At December 31, 2011, we owned $2,940.4 of mortdsgxked securities and $233.9 of asset-backediseswout of a total available-
for-sale investment portfolio of $17,376.8. Theseusities included sub-prime and Alt-A securitieifviair values of $56.5 and $186.7,
respectively. These sub-prime and Alt-A securitiad accumulated net unrealized losses of $5.6 @] fespectively. The average credit
rating of the sub-prime and Alt-A securities waB"Band “CCC", respectively.

The following tables summarize for fixed maturigcarities and equity securities in an unrealizexs jposition at December 31, 2011 and
2010, the aggregate fair value and gross unrealizedby length of time those securities have lmeetinuously in an unrealized loss position.

12 Months or Less Greater than 12 Months
Gross Gross
Number of Estimated Unrealized Number of Estimated Unrealized
Securities Fair Value Loss Securities Fair Value Loss
(Securities are whole amoun
December 31, 2011
Fixed maturity securitie:
United States Government securi 3 $ 71 $ (09 — $ — $ —
States, municipalities and political subdivisiongxt
exempt 19 86.€ (3.9 84 195.2 (15.0
Corporate securitie 1,047 1,798.: (88.4) 36 35.4 (6.9
Residential mortga-backed securitie 91 170.¢ (7.€) 65 78.C (10.9
Commercial mortga¢-backed securitie 14 27.7 (2.0 5 15.€ 2.7
Other debt obligation 41 118.t (2.0) 31 32.7 (7.9)
Total fixed maturity securitie 1,21¢ 2,208.¢ (203.0 221 356.¢ (41.¢)
Equity securitie: 1,13 271.€ (26.2) — — —
Total fixed maturity and equity securiti 2,352 $2,480.C $ (129.%) 221 $ 356.¢ $ (41.6)
December 31, 2010
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securi 23 % 142¢ $ (3.6 — $ — $ —
Government sponsored securit 24 103.t (0.8 — — —
States, municipalities and political subdivisiongxt
exempt 44¢ 1,493.: (38.9 101 166.1 (29.6)
Corporate securitie 742 1,436.! (16.9) 65 92.¢ (7.2
Residential mortga-backed securitie 27¢ 512.¢ (9.0) 82 149.¢ (15.9)
Commercial mortgac-backed securitie 34 107.t (1.5 3 8.1 (2.2
Other debt obligation 28 60.¢ (0.9 38 46.4 (9.9
Total fixed maturity securitie 1,57¢ 3,856.¢ (71.0 28¢ 463.4 (63.7)
Equity securitie: 36E 81.€ (7.9 — — —
Total fixed maturity and equity securiti 194« $3,938.: $ (78.9 28¢ $ 463. $ (63.7)
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5. Investments (continued)

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed matusigurities at December 31, 2011, by contractuéinty, are shown below. Expected
maturities may be less than contractual maturitezsause the issuers of the securities may hawvagtiteto prepay obligations without

prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ 630.: $ 665.]
Due after one year through five ye 4,727.¢ 4,881.¢
Due after five years through ten ye 4,291.° 4,548.!
Due after ten yeal 2,989.¢ 3,124t
Mortgage-backed securitie 2,834.¢ 2,940.¢
Total availabl-for-sale fixed maturity securitie $15,474. $16,159.¢

The major categories of net investment incomehentears ended December 31 are as follows:
2011 2010 2009

Fixed maturity securitie $692.4 $740.% $796.(
Equity securitie: 34.C 29.€ 25.¢
Cash and cash equivalel 3.7 8.3 15.C
Other 24 61.¢ (2.7
Investment incom 732.5 840.¢ 834.%
Investment expens (28.5) (37.2) (33.9
Net investment incom $703.7 $803.% $801.(
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Net realized investment gains/losses and net chiangerealized appreciation/depreciation in investis for the years ended
December 31, are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Net realized gains/losses on investme
Fixed maturity securitie:
Gross realized gains from sa $ 289.2 $268.1 $ 158.:
Gross realized losses from sa (65.7) (39.0) (135.9
Net realized gains/losses from sales of fixed nitytsecurities 224.1 229.( 22.¢
Equity securities
Gross realized gains from sa 75.4 57.7 116.5
Gross realized losses from sa (68.0) (81.4) (81.5)
Net realized gains/losses from sales of equity rites! 7.4 (23.9) 35.C
Other realized gains/losses on investm: 3.6 (11.2) (1.9
Net realized gains on investme| 235.1 194.1 56.4
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in incc
Fixed maturity securitie (24.2) (24.9) (217.¢
Equity securitie: (69.7) (15.0 (232.6)
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in incc (93.9) (39.9 (450.9)
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on invessr
Cumulative effect of adoption of FASB OTTI guidar — — (143.))
Fixed maturity securitie 155.¢ 29.7 1,209.:
Equity securitie: (124.6) 164.7 419.7
Total change in net unrealized gains/losses orsinvents 31.c 194.¢ 1,485.
Deferred income tax expen (11.9 (54.€) (540.7)
Net change in net unrealized gains/losses on imeydfs 19.€ 139.¢ 945.¢
Net realized gains/losses on investments, -than-temporary impairment losses recognized in
income and net change in net unrealized gainsfossénvestment $ 161.7 $294.5 $ 551.¢

A primary objective in the management of fixed miéguand equity portfolios is to maximize totaluet relative to underlying liabilities
and respective liquidity needs. In achieving thoslgassets may be sold to take advantage of meokelitions or other investment
opportunities as well as tax considerations. Salkgenerally produce realized gains and losseshé ordinary course of business, we may
securities at a loss for a number of reasons, diredy but not limited to: (i) changes in the invaent environment; (i) expectations that the fair
value could deteriorate further; (iii) desire tadwee exposure to an issuer or an industry; (ivhgka in credit quality; or (v) changes in
expected cash flow. During the year ended Decei®be2011, we sold $10,733.6 of fixed maturity agdigy securities which resulted in grc
realized losses of $133.1.

A significant judgment in the valuation of investmt®is the determination of when an other-ttemporary decline in value has occurt
We follow a consistent and systematic processdoognizing impairments on securities that susttierethantemporary declines in value. V
have established a committee responsible for tipaimment review process. The decision to impag@usty incorporates both quantitative
criteria and qualitative information. The impairmegview process considers a number of factorsigioh, but not limited
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5. Investments (continued)

to: (i) the length of time and the extent to whihk fair value has been less than book valueth@)inancial condition and near term prospects
of the issuer, (iii) our intent and ability to retampaired equity security investments for a perid time sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value, (iv) our intent to sell thee likelihood that we will need to sell a fixed tmdty security before recovery of its amortized
cost basis, (v) whether the debtor is current eer@st and principal payments, (vi) the reasonghferdecline in value (i.e., credit event
compared to liquidity, general credit spread widgnicurrency exchange rate or interest rate factor (vii) general market conditions and
industry or sector specific factors. For securitiest are deemed to be other-than-temporarily inegathe security is adjusted to fair value and
the resulting losses are recognized in realizedsgai losses in the consolidated statements ofriecdhe new cost basis of the impaired
securities is not increased for future recovemefgir value.

Other-than-temporary impairments recorded in 2@D10 and 2009 were primarily the result of the targd credit deterioration on
specific issuers in the bond markets and certaiitygecuritiesfair values remaining below cost for an extendetibgeof time. There were r
individually significant other-than-temporary impaient losses on investments by issuer during 22010 or 2009.

Investment securities are exposed to various riks) as interest rate, market and credit. Dubedetvel of risk associated with certain
investment securities and the level of uncertaiatgted to changes in the value of investment #gesirit is possible that changes in these risk
factors in the near term could have an adverseriabt@pact on our results of operations or shalddis’ equity.

The changes in the amount of the credit componfkaither-than-temporary impairment losses on fixeaturity securities recognized in
income, for which a portion of the other-than-temgrg impairment losses was recognized in other celgmsive income, was not material for
the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 or 20089.

Upon adoption of certain FASB OTTI guidance on Apri2009, we recorded a cumulative-effect adjusiimeet of taxes, of $88.9 as of
the beginning of the period of adoption, April D0®, to reclassify the non-credit component of fesly recognized other-than-temporary
impairments from retained earnings to accumulatedracomprehensive income.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, no investments ebeck20% of shareholders’ equity.

The carrying value of fixed maturity investmentatttid not produce income during 2011 and 2010$14s9 and $13.0 at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

As of December 31, 2011 we had committed approxip&263.9 to future capital calls from variougdhparty investments in exchange
for an ownership interest in the related entity.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, securities withy@agrvalues of approximately $246.8 and $221.8&)eetvely, were deposited by our
insurance subsidiaries under requirements of régylauthorities.
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6. Derivative Financial Instruments

A summary of the aggregate contractual or notianabunts and estimated fair values related to dérévéinancial instruments at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

Contractual/ Estimated Fair
Value
Notional
Amount Balance Sheet Locatior Asset (Liability)
December 31, 201.
Hedging instruments
Interest rate swag $ 1,105.( Other assets/other liabiliti¢ $ 86.¢ $ —
Non-hedging instruments
Derivatives embedded in convertible debt 368.2 Fixed maturity securities 79.7 —
securities
Credit default and interest rate swi 113.2 Equity securities 2.1 (7.5
Options 7,227, Equity securities 255.2 (274.9)
Futures — Equity securities 1.2 (2.€)
Subtotal no-hedging 7,709.; 338.2 (284.5
Total derivatives $ 8,814.. $424.¢ $(284.5
December 31, 201
Hedging instruments
Interest rate sway $ 1,505.( Other assets/other liabiliti¢ $ 95.% $ —
Non-hedging instruments
Derivatives embedded in convertible debt 389.¢ Fixed maturity securities 108.: —
securities

Credit default swap 29.¢ Equity securities — (1.5
Options 5,682.( Equity securities 192.¢ (215.0

Subtotal no-hedging 6,101.¢ 300.¢ (216.5
Total derivatives $ 7,606.¢ $396.7 $(216.5)
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Fair Value Hedge:

We have entered into various interest rate swajpracts to convert a portion of our interest ratpasure on our long-term debt from
fixed rates to floating rates. The floating ratagable on all of our fair value hedges are bencketato LIBOR. A summary of our outstandi
fair value hedges at December 31, 2011 and 2049 fisllows:

E?l(t?;(red Qutstanding Notional Amount
Interest
Rate Expiration
Type of Fair Value Hedge Into 2011 2010 Receive( Date

Interest rate swa 2011 $ 200.C $ = 5.25(% January 15, 20:
Interest rate swa 201( 25.C 25.C 5.25(C January 15, 20!
Interest rate swa 200¢ — 600.( 5.00(C January 15, 20!
Interest rate swa 200¢ 240.( 240.( 6.80( August 1, 201
Interest rate swa 200¢ 200.( 200.C 5.00( December 15, 20:
Interest rate swa 200t 240.( 240.C 6.80( August 1, 201
Interest rate swa 200t 200.( 200.( 5.00( December 15, 20:
Total notional amount outstandil $ 1,105.( $ 1,505.(

A summary of the effect of fair value hedges onioaome statement for the years ended Decemb&(d1, 2010 and 2009 is as
follows:

Hedge ) Income Statement Hedged lterr
Income Statement Gain (Loss, Location of
Location of Hedge Hedged Item Gain (Loss)
Type of Fair Value Hedge Gain (Loss) Recognize( Hedged Item Gain (Loss) Recognized
Year ended December 31, 201
Interest rate swag Interest expen: $ 451 Fixed rate del Interest expen: $ (451
Year ended December 31, 201
Interest rate swag Interest expen: $ 44t Fixed rate del Interest expen: $ (44.¢
Year ended December 31, 20C
Interest rate sway Interest expen: $ 38.C Fixed rate del Interest expen: $ (38.0

Cash Flow Hedges

We have historically entered into forward startpay fixed interest rate swaps, with the objectif’eloninating the variability of cash
flows in the interest payments on various debtdases. These swaps have all terminated and no asneare outstanding at December 31,
2011 or 2010. The unrecognized loss for all terteidaash flow hedges included in accumulated atberprehensive income at December 31,
2011 and 2010 was $35.3 and $25.3, respectivelpfAecember 31, 2011, the total amount of amditmeover the next twelve months for
all cash flow hedges will increase interest expdiysapproximately $3.9.
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A summary of the effect of cash flow hedges onfmancial statements for the years ended Decenthe2@®. 1, 2010 and 2009 is as
follows:

Effective Portion

G He((ige ) Ineffective Portion
ain (Loss
Pretax Hedge Income Statement Reclassified Income
. Location of Statement
Gain (Loss) Gain (L from Location of
Recognized R z;un (Af.os?.) Accumulated
in Other ¢ eCAaSS' |ca| Kt)nd Other Hedge
Comprehensive rom Sf#g:u ate Comprehensive Gain (Loss! Gain (Loss!
Comprehensive
Type of Cash Flow Hedge Loss Income Income Recognizec Recognizec

Year ended December 31, 201:
Forward starting pay fixed
swaps $ (18.9 Interest expent $ 1.8) None $ —
Year ended December 31, 201(
Forward starting pay fixe
swaps $ (24.0 Interest expen: $ (1.2 None $ —
Year ended December 31, 200!
Forward starting pay fixe
swaps $ (3.9 Interest expen: $ — None $ —
Other fixed pay swar $ — Interest expen: $ 0.2 None

©®
|

We test for cash flow hedge effectiveness at haumgption and re-assess at the end of each reggérod. No amounts were excluded
from the assessment of hedge effectiveness.
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Nor-Hedging Derivatives

A summary of the effect of non-hedging derivatieesour income statement for the years ended Deae®ih@011, 2010 and 2009 is as
follows:

Derivative
Gain (Loss!
Income Statement Location o
Type of Nor-hedging Derivatives Gain (Loss) Recognized Recognizec

Year ended December 31, 201:

Derivatives embedded in convertible debt secur Net realized gains (losses) on investm $ (7.6

Credit default and interest rate swi Net realized gains (losses) on investm (53.9)
Options Net realized gains (losses) on investm 9.€
Futures Net realized gains (losses) on investm (5.9
Total $ (57.9

Year ended December 31, 201(

Derivatives embedded in convertible debt secur Net realized gains (losses) on investm $ 24:

Credit default swap Net realized gains (losses) on investm (2.0
Options Net realized gains (losses) on investm (62.9)
Total $ (40.9
Year ended December 31, 200!
Derivatives embedded in convertible debt secur Net realized gains (losses) on investm $ 44C
Credit default swap Net realized gains (losses) on investm (2.0
Options Net realized gains (losses) on investm (5.6)
Futures Net realized gains (losses) on investm 3.3
Foreign currency derivative Net realized gains (losses) on investm 1.2
Total $ 41.¢

7. Fair Value

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value ia onsolidated balance sheets are categorized bpsedhe level of judgment associated
with the inputs used to measure their fair valuevdl inputs, as defined by FASB guidance for faiue measurements and disclosures, are as
follows:

Level Input: Input Definition:
Level | Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identsakts or liabilities in active markets at the raemsent date
Level Il Inputsother than quoted prices included in Level | thrat@bservable for the asset or liability throughraboration with marke
data at the measurement d:
Level I Unobservable inputs that reflect manager's best estimate of what market participants wosklin pricing the asset

liability at the measurement da
Transfers between levels, if any, are recorded #zedbeginning of the reporting period.
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7. Fair Value (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were uselttermine the fair value of each class of the foithgy assets and liabilities recorded
at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets:

Cash equivalentsCash equivalents primarily consist of highly ratedney market funds with maturities of three morghkess, and are
purchased daily at par value with specified yigltks. Due to the high ratings and short-term natfitee funds, we designate all cash
equivalents as Level I.

Fixed maturity securities, available-for-saleair values of available-for-sale fixed maturitggeties are based on quoted market prices,
where available. These fair values are obtainedamily from third party pricing services, which geally use Level | or Level Il inputs for the
determination of fair value to facilitate fair valtneasurements and disclosures. United States @Bogat securities represent Level |
securities, while Level Il securities primarily Inde corporate securities, securities from statesicipalities and political subdivisions and
mortgage-backed securities. For securities notelgtiraded, the third party pricing services mag quoted market prices of comparable
instruments or discounted cash flow analyses, parating inputs that are currently observable artiarkets for similar securities. We have
controls in place to review the third party pricisgrvices’ qualifications and procedures used terdene fair values. In addition, we
periodically review the third party pricing servi¢@ricing methodologies, data sources and prigipgts to ensure the fair values obtained are
reasonable. Inputs that are often used in the tialuenethodologies include, but are not limitedtimker quotes, benchmark yields, credit
spreads, default rates and prepayment speeds.stvéale certain fixed maturity securities, primyacibrporate debt and other fixed maturity
securities, that are designated Level Il secwitieor these securities, the valuation methodotogiay incorporate broker quotes or
assumptions for benchmark yields, credit spreagfault rates and prepayment speeds that are netwatse in the markets.

Equity securities, available-for-sal€air values of equity securities are generally giesied as Level | and are based on quoted market
prices. For certain equity securities, quoted migpkiees for the identical security are not alwaysilable and the fair value is estimated by
reference to similar securities for which quoteidgs are available. These securities are desighatesl |I. We also have certain equity
securities, including private equity securities, \idnich the fair value is estimated based on eachrity’s current condition and future cash
flow projections. Such securities are designateceLHI.

Other invested assets, currefither invested assets, current include securitésih rabbi trusts that are classified as tradiagr values
are based on quoted market prices.

Securities lending collateraFair values of securities lending collateral arsdabon quoted market prices, where available. Ttagse
values are obtained primarily from third party pri services, which generally use Level | or Leivéhputs, for the determination of fair value
to facilitate fair value measurements and disclesur

Derivatives—interest rate swapsair values are based on the quoted market pric#sebfinancial institution that is the counteryax
the swap. We independently verify prices providgdh® counterparties using valuation models thedriporate market observable inputs for
similar interest rate swaps.

We obtain only one quoted price for each securiynfthird party pricing services, which are deritecbugh recently reported trades for
identical or similar securities making adjustmeht®ugh the reporting date based upon availabl&etabservable information. As we are
responsible for the determination of fair value, peeform monthly analysis on the prices receivednfthird parties to determine whether the
prices are
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7. Fair Value (continued)

reasonable estimates of fair value. Our analysisiites a review of month-to-month price fluctuasioli unusual fluctuations are noted in this
review, we may obtain additional information frotter pricing services to validate the quoted prideere were no adjustments to quoted
market prices obtained from third party pricingusees during the years ended December 31, 2012@hd that were material to the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the following methods and assumptimese used to determine the fair value of each déapgnsion benefit plan assets and
other benefit plan assets not defined above (sée N “Retirement Benefits,” for fair values ofriedit plan assets):

Mutual funds:Fair values are based on quoted market prices hwkjaresent the net asset value, or NAV, of shae&b

Common and collective trustBair values of common/collective trusts that regikctraded money market funds are based on costhwh
approximates fair value. Fair values of commongagile trusts that invest in securities are valaetthe NAV of the shares held, where the
applies fair value measurements to the underlyimgstments to determine the NAV.

Partnership interestdgrair values are estimated based on the plan’s piiopate share of the undistributed partners’ edis reported in
audited financial statements of the partnership.

Contract with insurance companlkyair value of the contract in the insurance compgamneral investment account is determined by the
insurance company based on the fair value of tldetlying investments of the account.

Investment in DOL 103-12 trusEair value is based on the plan’s proportionateebf the fair value of investments held by thestyr
qualified as a Department of Labor Regulation 25@8-12 entity, or DOL 103-12 trust, as reportedudited financial statements of the trust,
where the trustee applies fair value measuremeriteetunderlying investments of the trust.

Life insurance contractsFair value is based on the cash surrender valtieegiolicies as reported by the insurer.
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A summary of fair value measurements by level fxets measured at fair value on a recurring baSle@ember 31, 2011 and

December 31, 2010 is as follows:

December 31, 2011
Assets:
Cash equivalent
Investments availak-for-sale:
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securit
Government sponsored securit
States, municipalities and political subdivisi— tax-exempt
Corporate securitie
Options embedded in convertible debt secur
Residential mortga¢-backed securitie
Commercial mortga¢-backed securitie
Other debt obligation
Total fixed maturity securitie
Equity securitie:
Other invested assets, curr
Securities lending collater
Derivatives excluding embedded options (reporteti wiher asset:
Total assets

December 31, 2010
Assets:
Cash equivalent
Investments availak-for-sale:
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securit
Government sponsored securit
States, municipalities and political subdivisi— tax-exempt
Corporate securitie
Options embedded in convertible debt secur
Residential mortga¢-backed securitie
Commercial mortga¢-backed securitie
Other debt obligation
Total fixed maturity securitie
Equity securitiet
Other invested assets, curr
Securities lending collater
Derivatives excluding embedded options (reporteti wiher asset:
Total assets
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Level |

Level Il

Level Il

Total

$1,675¢6 $ — $ — $ 1,675.¢
604.7 — — 604.7
— 175.¢ — 175.¢

— 5,327.¢ — 5,327.¢

— 6,602.¢ 195.1 6,798.(

— 79.7 — 79.7

— 2,565.( — 2,565.(

— 369.1 6.3 375.

— 174.€ 59.C 233.¢
604.7 15,294.¢ 260. 16,159.¢
1,104.¢ 87.¢ 24.4 1,216.¢
14.¢ — — 14.¢
422.: 449.1 — 871.
— 86.€ — 86.€
$3,822.¢  $15918.  $284.6  $20,025.
$1,374¢ $ — $ — $ 1,374
511. — — 511.
— 330. — 330.¢

— 4,692. — 4,692.

— 6,932.¢ 278.. 7,211

— 108. — 108.

— 2,832. 3.8 2,836.!

— 328.¢ 7.8 336.

— 183.1 81.4 264.F
511. 15,408.! 3714 16,291.:
1,202. 50.C 17.2 1,260.¢
21.1 — — 21.1
355.7 544.¢ — 900.:
— 95.2 — 95.2
$3,465.«  $16,098.  $388.7  $19,952.!
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending baksof assets measured at fair value on a recusdag using Level Il inputs for the

years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009oHi@ss:

Year Ended December 31, 201!
Beginning balance at January 1, 2(
Total gains (losses
Recognized in net incon
Recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income
Purchase
Sales
Issuance:
Settlement:
Transfers into Level Il
Transfers out of Level Il

Ending balance at December 31, 2!

Change in unrealized losses included in net income
related to assets still held for the year ended
December 31,201

Year Ended December 31, 201(
Beginning balance at January 1, 2(
Total gains (losses
Recognized in net incon
Recognized in accumulated other compreher
income
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlemen
Transfers into Level Il
Transfers out of Level
Ending balance at December 31, 2!

Change in unrealized losses included in net income
related to assets still held for the year ended
December 31,201

Year Ended December 31, 200¢
Beginning balance at January 1, 2(
Total gains (losses
Recognized in net incon
Recognized in accumulated other compreher
income
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlemen
Transfers into Level Il
Transfers out of Level Il
Ending balance at December 31, 2

Change in unrealized losses included in net inc
related to assets still held for the year ended
December 31,200

Residentia Commercial
Corporate Mortgage- Mortgage- Other Debt
backed backed Equity
Securities Securities Securities Obligations Securities Total
$ 278.¢ $ 3.8 $ 7.8 $ 814 $ 17.c $ 388.7
5.2 — — (1.7) (7.0 (3.5)
(3.0 0.1 0.1 - 4.1 1.2
31.z 2.8 2.6 12.2 10.Z 59.C
(27.6) (9.1) (8.2) (22.9) (0.4) (68.2)
(130.5) (0.8) (1.4) (7.9 — (150.)
41.4 9.7 54 7.8 0.2 64.t
— (6.5) — (0.1) — (6.€)
$ 195.1 $ — $ 6.3 $ 59.C $ 24.4 $ 284.¢
$ (06 $ — $ — $ 12 $ (70 $ (89
$ 231.% $ 2.C $ 7.1 $ 106.( $ 45 $351.C
(6.6) — - (3.9 (2.9 (13.9)
18.7 — 1.7 13.2 2.C 35.€
(18.0 1.8 (1.0 (33.9 0.7 (50.4)
52.€ — — — 13.C 65.€
$ 278.¢ $ 3.8 $ 7.8 $ 814 $ 172 $ 388.7
$ 69 $ — $ — $ (1) $ 26 $ (106
$ 191.1 $ 7.C $ 9.7 $ 138.% $ 112 $ 357.7
(4.6) 1.7 0.2 (50.7) (1.2) (58.0)
30.1 1.2 (1.5) 46.5 (0.2 76.C
(11.9) (4.5) 1.3 (29.6) (5.2) (52.0)
48.7 — — 4.9 — 53.€
(22.2) — — (3.9 — (26.0)
$ 231.5 $ 2.C $ 7.1 $ 106.( $ 4.5 $ 351
$ B4 $ — $ — $ (39.9 $ — $ (43.9)
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7. Fair Value (continued)
There were no material transfers between Levelsl, 11l during the years ended December 31, 20,0 and 2009.

Certain assets and liabilities are measured avédire on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the imsénts are not measured at fair value on an
ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjestsionly in certain circumstances. As discloselate 3, “Business Combinations”, we
completed our acquisitions of CareMore and DeCarAugust 22, 2011 and April 9, 2009, respectivélye values of net assets acquired in
our acquisitions of CareMore and DeCare and regutipodwill and other intangible assets were remtrt fair value using Level Il inputs.
The majority of CareMore’s and DeCare’s assets iaedand liabilities assumed were recorded at ttegirying values as of the date of
acquisition, as their carrying values approximdtesr fair values due to their shagrm nature. The fair values of goodwill and otimangible
assets acquired in our acquisitions of CareMoreef@are were internally estimated based on theriecapproach. The income approach
estimates fair value based on the present valtleeofash flows that the assets can be expectesherage in the future. We developed internal
estimates for the expected cash flows and disaat@tin the present value calculation. Other thesets acquired and liabilities assumed in our
acquisition of CareMore, there were no other asseliabilities measured at fair value on a nonrgog basis during the year ended
December 31, 2011. Refer to Note 10, “Goodwill @&tHer Intangible Assets,” for disclosure of addiabassets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis during the years ended DeceBhe2010 and 2009.

Whenever possible, we attempt to obtain quoted etgmliices to estimate fair values for recognitiod disclosure purposes. Where
guoted market prices are not available, fair vahresestimated using present value or other valuadichniques. These techniques are
significantly affected by our assumptions, inclgliiscount rates and estimates of future cash flBwtential taxes and other transaction costs
have not been considered in estimating fair values.

In addition to the preceding disclosures on assetsrded at fair value in the consolidated balasheets, FASB guidance also requires
disclosure of fair values for certain other finadéhstruments for which it is practicable to esttfair value, whether or not such values are
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.

Non-financial instruments such as real estate,gntg@nd equipment, other current assets, defémoegne taxes and intangible assets,
and certain financial instruments such as poliabilities are excluded from the fair value disclesu Therefore, the fair value amounts cannot
be aggregated to determine our underlying econesalice.

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidatddrize sheets for cash, accrued investment ingoraeium and self-funded
receivables, other receivables, income taxes rabkdyunearned income, accounts payable and acerpethses, security trades pending
payable, securities lending payable and certaiaratbrrent liabilities approximate fair value besawf the short term nature of these items.
These assets and liabilities are not listed intabé below.

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of each class of finanicisirument:

Other invested assets, long-ter@ther invested assets, long-term include primarilyinvestments in limited partnerships, joint wees
and other non-controlled corporations, as welhascash surrender value of corporate-owned liferarsce policies. Investments in limited
partnerships, joint ventures and other
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7. Fair Value (continued)

non-controlled corporations are carried at our slirathe entities’ undistributed earnings, whiclpraximates fair value. The carrying value of
corporate-owned life insurance policies represtr@sash surrender value as reported by the régpétsurer.

Short-term borrowingsThe fair value of our short-term borrowings is lthee quoted market prices for the same or simidnt,dor, if no
guoted market prices were available, on the cumaget estimated to be available to us for dektroflar terms and remaining maturities.

Long-term debt—commercial papdithe carrying amount for commercial paper approxandair value as the underlying instruments
have variable interest rates at market value.

Long-term debt—notes and capital leasBse fair value of notes is based on quoted mankeg¢p for the same or similar debt, or, if no
guoted market prices were available, on the cumaes estimated to be available to us for debtroflar terms and remaining maturities.
Capital leases are carried at the unamortized pres¢ue of the minimum lease payments, which axiprates fair value.

The carrying values and estimated fair valuesrdadrftial instruments not recorded at fair value mnomnsolidated balance sheet at
December 31 are as follows:

2011 2010
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Assets:
Other invested assets, lc-term $1,003.° $1,003." $ 865.¢ $ 865.¢
Liabilities:
Debt:
Shor-term borrowings 100.( 100.( 100.( 100.(
Commercial pape 799.¢ 799.¢ 336.2 336.2
Notes and capital leas 8,895.¢ 9,871.0 8,517.! 9,010.¢
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8. Income Taxes

The components of deferred income taxes at DeceB1ibare as follows:

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets relating
Retirement benefit $ 418t $ 354.¢
Accrued expense 465.4 495.¢
Alternative minimum tax and other cred 3.5 5.4
Insurance reserve 193.t 201.¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 30.t 35.¢
Bad debt reserve 116.¢ 121.(
Depreciation and amortizatic 4.7 4.C
State income ta 69.3 46.2
Deferred compensatic 55.7 66.¢
Investment basis differen: 152.2 180.t
Other 66.¢ 70.€
Total deferred tax asse 1,576.¢ 1,581.¢
Valuation allowanct (11.0 (11.0
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowe: 1,565.¢ 1,570.¢
Deferred tax liabilities relating tc
Unrealized gains on securiti 328.2 317.2
Acquisition related
Goodwill and other acquisition related liabiliti 46.€ 39.7
Trademarks and other n-amortizable intangible ass¢ 2,095t 2,095.!
Subscriber base, provider and hospital netw 490.¢ 519.¢
Internally developed software and other amortizatferences 414.% 333.2
Retirement benefit 202.7 190.¢
State deferred ta 76.5 37.¢
Other 210.7 162.¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 3,865.. 3,696.¢
Net deferred tax liabilit $(2,299.9) $(2,126.0)
Deferred tax ass-current $ 424.¢ $ 460.¢
Deferred tax liabilit-noncurren (2,724.0 (2,586.9)
Net deferred tax liabilit $(2,299.9 $(2,126.0)

The valuation allowance is primarily attributabdetihe uncertainty of alternative minimum tax credibd net operating loss
carryforwards. As deferred tax assets relatedesehtypes of deductions are recognized in theetaxr, the valuation allowance is no longer
required and is reduced.
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8. Income Taxes (continued)

Significant components of the provision for incotares for the years ended December 31, consibedbtlowing:

2011 2010 2009
Current tax expens
Federal $1,150.¢ $1,329.! $2,516.:
State and loce 21.€ 28.t 87.1
Total current tax expen: 1,172.( 1,358.( 2,603.:
Deferred tax expens 139.2 108.7 53.¢
Total income tax expen: $1,311.0 $1,466.° $2,657.:

A reconciliation of income tax expense recordethinconsolidated statements of income and amoontputed at the statutory federal
income tax rate for the years ended December 3 fsllows:

2011 2010 2009

Amount Percen Amount Perceni Amount Perceni
Amount at statutory rate $1,385.1 35.(%  $1,523.¢ 35.(%  $2,591.( 35.(%
State and local income taxes net of federal tavefie 42.3 11 42.¢ 1.C 82.4 11
Tax exempt interest and dividends received dedu (58.6) (1.5 (53.0 2.2 (51.9) (0.7)
Audit settlement: (49.7) (1.9 (18.7) (0.9 (12.9 0.2
Sale of PBM — — — — 73.4 1.C
Other, ne (8.1 (0.2 (28.€) (0.7 (25.]) (0.3
Total income tax expen: $1,311.: 33.1%  $1,466. 33.1%  $2,657.: 35.9%

During the year ended December 31, 2011, follovépgroval by the Joint Committee on Taxation, wéexdthe audit of our 2003 and
2004 (short year) federal tax returns, which haghlia the appeals process with the Internal Rev&aueice, or IRS. This resulted in a tax
benefit of $39.3. In addition, during the year eth@ecember 31, 2011, we completed a state tax eedion, resulting in additional tax
benefits for audit settlements of $10.4.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we costplie sale of our PBM business and recorded taarese of $1,431.1 related to
this sale. The components of the tax on the safe §&,327.3 computed at the statutory federal §#@,4 for state and local taxes and $73..
other tax adjustments.

The change in the carrying amount of gross unrezegdrtax benefits from uncertain tax positionstfar years ended December 31, is as
follows:

2011 2010

Balance at January $100.¢ $116.4
Additions for tax positions related t
Current yea 4.7 4.€
Prior years 4.1 0.t
Reductions related t
Tax positions of prior yeal (0.2 (13.0
Settlements with taxing authoriti (15.8) (8.2)
Balance at December : $ 93.C $100.4
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8. Income Taxes (continued)

The table above excludes interest, net of relatrdenefits, which is treated as income tax expémseefit) under our accounting policy.
The interest is included in the amounts describettié following paragraph.

As of December 31, 2011, $86.2 of unrecognized&nefits would impact our effective tax rate iruiet periods, if recognized. Also
included is $3.4 that would be recognized as ansadlient to additional paid-in capital and would afféct our effective tax rate. The
December 31, 2011 balance includes $0.9 of taxiposifor which ultimate deductibility is highly iain but for which there is uncertainty
about the timing of such deductibility. Excludifgetimpact of interest and penalties, the disallmeanf the shorter deductibility period would
not affect our effective tax rate, but would accate the payment of cash to the taxing authorigrt@arlier period.

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arfi] 2@0recognized approximately $(0.1), $(2.9) aftd% in interest, respectively.
We had accrued approximately $24.7 and $24.8 p#yment of interest at December 31, 2011 and,2@%pectively.

As of December 31, 2011, as further described betewain tax years remain open to examinatiorhByiIRS and various state and local
authorities. In addition, we continue to discusdaia industry issues with the IRS. As a resulthefise examinations and discussions, we have
recorded amounts for uncertain tax positions. #nisicipated that the amount of unrecognized tarefits will change in the next twelve mon
due to possible settlements of audits and chamgiesriporary items. However, the ultimate resolutibthese items is dependent on a number
of factors, such as completion of negotiations watting authorities, the outcome of litigation asedtlement of industry issues. While it is
difficult to determine when other tax settlementh actually occur, it is reasonably possible thae could occur in the next twelve months and
our unrecognized tax benefits could change withiarge of approximately $5.0 to $(65.0).

We are a member of the IRS Compliance Assuranagrémg or CAP. The objective of CAP is to reduceptager burden and uncertainty
while assuring the IRS of the accuracy of tax muprior to filing, thereby reducing or eliminatitfte need for post-filing examinations.

As of December 31, 2011, the examinations of odi02Brough 2004 tax years continue to be in prodasaddition, there are several
years with ongoing disputes related to-acquisition companies that continue to be in psec&lany of the issues in open tax years have been
resolved; however, several of the examinationkrstijuire approval from the Joint Committee on Trabefore they can be finalized. The
years under audit are in part interdependent oséktement of the p-acquisition audits, some of which require the appl of the Joint
Committee on Taxation, impacting the ultimate casin of all the examinations. While we currenttyribt know the likelihood of settlement,
the resulting tax benefit could possibly be matedaur future results of operations and operatiagh flows.

In certain states, we pay premium taxes in liestafe income taxes. Premium taxes are reportedgeitiral and administrative expense.

At December 31, 2011, we had unused federal tanpeating loss carryforwards of approximately $&9. offset future taxable income.
The loss carryforwards expire in the years 2018uh 2024. During 2011, 2010 and 2009 federal irctawes paid totaled $1,153.9, $2,531.9
and $1,194.2, respectively.
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9. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at Decembéds 3% follows:

2011 2010
Land and improvemen $ 52z $ b51¢
Building and componen 392.1 388.2
Data processing equipment, furniture and otherpmant 725.€ 671.¢
Computer software, purchased and internally deesl 1,295.( 1,145.¢
Leasehold improvemen 190.2 165.5
Property and equipment, grc 2,655.: 2,423.(
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (1,237.) (1,267.59
Property and equipment, r $1,418.: $1,155.!

Property and equipment includes assets purchagstat noncancelable capital leases of $59.0 and $84December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Total accumulated amortization osdgbassets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was&%8362.0, respectively. Depreciation
expense for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $95.7, $108.$H07.1, respectively. Amortization expense @séel assets, computer software and
leasehold improvements for 2011, 2010 and 2009$284.6, $194.3 and $184.3, respectively, whichuides amortization expense on
computer software, both purchased and internalxgldped, for 2011, 2010 and 2009 of $183.9, $1ah®$158.8, respectively. Capitalized
costs related to the internal development of sofved $1,022.2 and $898.5 at December 31, 20112846, respectively, are reported with
computer software.

In addition to impairments for information techngjyoassets related to our change in strategic foc2810, primarily in response to
Health Care Reform as described in Note 4, “Regirirgy Activities,” we experienced $54.8 of impa#nt during 2010 for information
technology assets due to our decision to discoatincther use of these assets in the normal cairsesiness.

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

A summary of the change in the carrying amountaafdyvill by reportable segment (see Note 20, “Segriormation”) for 2011 and
2010 is as follows:

Commercial Consumer Other Total
Balance as of January 1, 2010 $ 9,944.; $3,320.! $— $13,264.
Measurement period adjustme 0.7 (0.9) — 0.3
Balance as of December 31, 2( 9,944.¢ 3,320.: — 13,264.!
CareMore acquisitio — 595.: — 595.:
Measurement period adjustme (1.2 (0.9 — (1.5)
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 9,943.¢ $3,915.: $— $13,858.
Accumulated impairment as of December 31, 2 $ (410 $ — $— $ (41.0

Goodwill adjustments incurred during 2011 includeductions totaling $1.5 related to the tax berafithe exercise of stock options
issued as part of various acquisitions. Goodwillisiinents incurred during 2010 included a reductib$1.5 related to the tax benefit on the
exercise of stock options issued as part of varamaglisitions and an increase of $1.8 relatedheraneasurement period adjustments.
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continuex

As required by FASB guidance, we completed our ahimpairment tests of existing goodwill and otiangible assets with indefinite
lives during the fourth quarters of 2011, 2010 a049. The guidance also requires interim impairntesting to be performed when potential
impairment indicators exist. These tests involeuke of estimates related to the fair value oflgdiband intangible assets with indefinite
lives and require a significant degree of managénuelgment and the use of subjective assumptions.fair values were estimated using the
income and market value valuation methods, incafiay Level 1l internal estimates for inputs, indlng, but not limited to, revenue
projections, income projections, cash flows andalist rates. The annual impairment tests are pedgdrin the fourth quarter and, thus, are
performed after the recognition of the impairmeistdssed in the following paragraph.

As a result of a strategic action, on October 2B we announced that we entered into a memhwsitien agreement with Health Care
Service Corporation, or HCSC, which operates a& Bltoss and Blue Shield in lllinois and Texas, agnother states. Under this agreement,
HCSC offered guaranteed replacement coverage tboi@are commercial group and individual memberthose states. In the fourth quarter
of 2009, commensurate with the expected transafasur lllinois and Texas UniCare commercial gram individual members to HCSC, we
identified and recorded a pre-tax goodwill impainneharge of $41.0.

The components of other intangible assets as oéiber 31 are as follows:

2011 2010
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Intangible assets with finite live
Subscriber bas $3,273.(  $ (1,846.9 $1,426.. $3,121.¢ $ (1,618.) $1,502.¢
Provider and hospital networ 109.: (36.7) 72.€ 106.1 (31.0) 75.C
Other 66.1 (20.9) 45.¢ 46.€ (15.0 31.€
Total 3,448.¢ (1,903.9 1,544.¢ 3,274." (1,664.9) 1,609."
Intangible assets with indefinite live
Blue Cross and Blue Shield and other tradem 5,998." — 5,998." 5,998." — 5,998."
Provider relationship 271.¢ — 271.¢ 271.¢ — 271.¢
Licenses 116.€ — 116.€ 116.€ — 116.€
Total 6,387.: — 6,387.. 6,387.. — 6,387.:
Other intangible asse $9,835.8 $ (1,903.) $7,931.0 $9,661.¢ $ (1,664.) $7,996.¢

During 2010, we recognized an impairment chargg2df.1 for certain intangible assets associated tiv#HJniCare provider networks,
due to a decision we made to transfer certain meshigeto an alternative network.

Our PBM business, together with other businessupdrtially supported our UniCare tradenamesahatecognized as indefinite lived
intangible assets. These tradenames were not sitidhe PBM business in 2009. Accordingly, aftex Hale of the PBM business, a portion of
these tradenames was impaired as the cash flowstfre remaining business units were not sufficieritilly support the carrying value of
these intangible assets. In addition, the UniCa@enames are also partially supported by revegeresrated from our UniCare subsidiaries,
which among other products and services, sell héadurance products to commercial customers, dsasdledicare products to our Senior
membership across the United States. During 20@%xpected
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continuex

future revenues from these business units to degtirimarily due to a decline in our low margin@assigned membership associated with
Medicare Part D as well as the transition of olimdis and Texas UniCare commercial group and iiddial members to HCSC beginning on
January 1, 2010. Accordingly, during 2009, the PBMiness sale, the expected decline in future MeeiPart D auto-assigned membership
and the member transition agreement with HCSCgerigd an impairment review of our UniCare tradergmaich are included in the
Commercial and Consumer segments. As a resultdergified and recorded a pre-tax impairment chaetging to our UniCare tradenames of
$219.6, the majority of which was driven by thesla$ the 2010 Medicare Part D auto-assigned merhigerBhe valuation considered the
expected future cash flows of all business unis shipport the affected tradenames.

As of December 31, 2011, estimated amortizatioreegp for each of the five years ending Decembeis3ks follows: 2012, $231.5;
2013, $209.9; 2014, $189.1; 2015, $168.7; 20163%14

11. Retirement Benefits
We sponsor various non-contributory employee definenefit plans through certain subsidiaries.

The WellPoint Cash Balance Pension Plan, or thdR@lt Plan, is a cash balance pension plan coyentain eligible employees of t
affiliated companies that participate in the WeltR®lan. Effective January 1, 2006, benefits wandailed, with the result that most
participants stopped accruing benefits but contiougarn interest on benefits accrued prior toctimtailment. Certain participants subject to
collective bargaining and certain other particiganho met grandfathering rules continue to accerefits. Several pension plans acquired
through various corporate mergers and acquisitiave been merged into the WellPoint Plan. Effeclaeuary 1, 2011, we split the WellPoint
Plan, with no change in benefits for any particip@urrent employees who are still receiving creditd/or benefit accruals were placed into a
new plan, the WellPoint Cash Balance Pension PlakllBther participants remain in the WellPoinaRI

The UGS Pension Plan is a defined benefit pendamith a cash balance component. The UGS Peid@ncovers eligible employees
of the affiliated companies that participate in @S Pension Plan. Effective January 1, 2004, litsngére curtailed, with the result that most
participants stopped accruing benefits but contiouearn interest on benefits previously accruetdtaih employees subject to collective
bargaining and certain other employees who metdfaéimering rules continue to accrue benefits.

The Employees’ Retirement Plan of Blue Cross off@ailia, or the BCC Plan, is a defined benefit penplan that covers eligible
employees of Blue Cross of California who are ceddry a collective bargaining agreement. Effecli@euary 1, 2007, benefits were curtailed
under the BCC Plan with the result that no BluesSraf California employees hired or rehired aftec@€mber 31, 2006 are eligible to
participate in the BCC Plan.

All of the plans’ assets consist primarily of commrgiocks, fixed maturity securities, investmentdsiand short-term investments. The
funding policies for all plans are to contributeamts at least sufficient to meet the minimum fugdiequirements set forth in the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amende&RISA, including amendment by the Pension Rtaie Act of 2006, and in
accordance with income tax regulations, plus sultfiti@nal amounts as are necessary to providessaéficient to meet the benefits to be .
to plan participants.

We use a December 31 measurement date for detagrbenefit obligations and fair value of plan asset
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11. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The following tables disclose consolidated “pendienefits,” which include the defined benefit pemsplans described above, and
consolidated “other benefits,” which include postegnent health and welfare benefits including roatjivision and dental benefits offered to
certain employees. Calculations were computed usssgmptions at the December 31 measurement dates.

The reconciliation of the benefit obligation isfadows:

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye
Service cos

Interest cos

Plan amendmen

Actuarial loss

Benefits paic

Benefit obligation at end of ye

The changes in the fair value of plan assets afellasvs:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan asse

Employer contribution

Benefits paic

Fair value of plan assets at end of y

The net amount included in the consolidated balaheets is as follows:

Noncurrent asse

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Net amount at December :

Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010
$1,715.  $1,751.%  $658.¢  $619.¢
17. 17. 6.3 7.4
84.7 88.7 31.4 34.7

— — (47.0 —
162.( 7.0 37.2 30.1

(128.]) (149.7)

(35.6) (33.1)

$1,851. $1,715.

$651.¢ $658.¢

Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010
$1,742°  $1,703f  $270.7  $132.
49.F 184.4 1.7 3.7
57.7 3.9 68.F 172.c
(128.]) (149.7) (39.9) (37.6)
$1,721.¢  $1,742..  $301.1  $270.7

Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010
$ 234 $97.C $ — $ —
4.2 4.2

(148.)  (65.F)

(3505  (388.)

$(129.5)  $27.:

$(350.9  $(388.0)

The net amounts included in accumulated other cehgrsive loss (income) that have not been recogimigeomponents of net periodic

benefit costs are as follows:

Net actuarial los
Prior service cred
Net amount before tax at December
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Other Benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010
$653.7  $460.; $234F  $191¢
4.7) (5.5)  (116.9 (81.4)

$649.( $455.2

$118.2 $110.¢
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11. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior semtiedit for the defined benefit pension plans thiitlve reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive loss into net periodic bewests over the next year are $29.8 and $0.8, régelyc The estimated net actuarial loss and
prior service credit for postretirement benefitqddhat will be reclassified from accumulated ott@mprehensive loss into net periodic benefit
costs over the next year are $14.1 and $13.3, ctgely.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defibedefit pension plans was $1,844.8 and $1,6995®e¢mber 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2011, certain pension plansaecadmulated benefit obligations in excess of pksets. For those same plans, the
projected benefit obligation was also in excesglaif assets. Such plans had a combined projecteibebligation, accumulated benefit
obligation and fair value of plan assets of $1,8481,343.5 and $1,196.3, respectively.

The weighted-average assumptions used in calcgl#tii benefit obligations for all plans are asdai:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2011 2010 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.2% 5.15% 4.36% 5.24%
Rate of compensation incree 3.5(% 3.75% 3.5(% 3.7%%
Expected rate of return on plan as 8.0(% 8.0(% 7.0(% 6.75%

The components of net periodic benefit cost (cjaddluded in the consolidated statements of incaneeas follows:

2011 2010 2009
Pension Benefits
Service cos $ 17.8 $ 17.8 $ 22z
Interest cos 84.7 88.7 91.4
Expected return on asst (128.2) (139.6) (142.9)
Recognized actuarial lo: 26.4 252 2.2
Amortization of prior service crec (0.8 (0.8 (0.8
Settlement los 21.2 31.1 —
Net periodic benefit cost (cred $ 20.7 $ 222 $ (27.9
Other Benefits
Service cos $ 6.3 $ 74 $ 7.2
Interest cos 31.4 34.7 31.¢€
Expected return on asst (17.9) (10.9) (2.5
Recognized actuarial lo: 10.Z 7.8 7.C
Amortization of prior service crec (12.0 (9.5 (9.9
Net periodic benefit co: $ 18.€ $ 30.1 $ 33.

During 2011 and 2010, we incurred total settlentesges of $21.3 and $31.1, respectively, as lunmp{salyments exceeded the service
cost and interest cost components of net pericgiefit cost for certain of our plans.
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11. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The weighted-average assumptions used in calcgl#imnet periodic benefit cost for all plans esdadlows:

2011 2010 2009

Pension Benefits

Discount rate 5.15% 5.3€% 5.64%
Rate of compensation incree 3.75% 4.0(% 4.00%
Expected rate of return on plan as 8.00% 8.0(% 8.0(%
Other Benefits

Discount rate 5.24% 5.7% 57%
Rate of compensation incree 3.75% 4.0(% 4.0(%
Expected rate of return on plan as: 6.75% 7.0(% 7.25%

The assumed health care cost trend rate to befoisadxt year to measure the expected cost of ditbeefits is 7.50% with a gradual
decline to 5.00% by the year 2017. These estima¢edl rates are subject to change in the future.Ealth care cost trend rate assumption has
a significant effect on the amounts reported. angple, an increase in the assumed health caréreastrate of one percentage point would
increase the postretirement benefit obligationfd3ezember 31, 2011 by $52.6 and would increasécgeand interest costs by $2.5.
Conversely, a decrease in the assumed health estrérend rate of one percentage point would deeré@e postretirement benefit obligatior
$44.7 as of December 31, 2011 and would decreagies@and interest costs by $2.1.

Plan assets include a diversified mix of investngrate fixed maturity securities, equity securiiesl alternative investments across a
range of sectors and levels of capitalization taim&e the long-term return for a prudent levelisk. The weighted-average target allocation
for pension benefit plan assets is 45% equity séesir46% fixed maturity securities, and 9% toather types of investments. Equity securi
primarily include a mix of domestic securities,d@n securities and mutual funds invested in egglitFrixed maturity securities primarily
include treasury securities, corporate bonds, asdtebacked investments issued by corporationshend.S. government. Other types of
investments include partnership interests, colledtiusts that replicate money market funds andrarsce contracts designed specifically for
employee benefit plans. As of December 31, 20X retivere no significant concentrations of investimié@nthe pension benefit assets or other
benefit assets. No plan assets were invested ifPdiet common stock.

Pension benefit assets and other benefit assetsleztat fair value are categorized based upoletted of judgment associated with the
inputs used to measure their fair value.
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11. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The fair values of our pension benefit assets d@herdenefit assets at December 31, 2011, exclukih.6) of cash, investment income
receivable and amounts due to/from brokers, bytasdéegory and level inputs, as defined by FASRIgnce regarding fair value measurem
and disclosures (see Note 7, “Fair Value,” for &ddal information regarding the definition of ldweputs), are as follows:

Level | Level Il Level Ill Total
December 31, 2011
Pension Benefit Asset
Equity securities
U.S. securitie: $145.: $ — $304.: $ 449t
Foreign securitie 242.¢ — — 242.¢
Mutual funds 24.¢€ — — 24.¢
Fixed maturity securities
Government securitie 199.2 — — 199.
Corporate bond — 236.1 — 236.1
Asse-backed securitie — 156.¢ — 156.¢
Other types of investment
Common and collective trus — 90.2 — 90.2
Partnership interes — — 165.( 165.(
Contract with insurance compa — — 195t 195t
Treasury futures contrac (0.3 — — (0.3
Total pension benefit asse $611.7 $483.( $664.7 $1,759.:
Other Benefit Asset:
Equity securities
U.S. securitie! $ 6.5 $ — $ 134 $ 19.¢
Foreign securitie 9.8 — — 9.8
Mutual funds 2.8 — — 2.8
Fixed maturity securities
Government securitie 8.5 — — 8.5
Corporate securitie — 5.9 — 5.¢
Asse-backed securitie — 12.€ — 12.€
Other types of investment
Common and collective trus — 134.( — 134.(
Partnership interes — — 1.1 1.1
Life insurance contraci — — 95.7 95.7
Investment in DOL 1C-12 trust — 14.€ — 14.¢
Total other benefit asse $ 27.€ $167.% $110.2 $ 305.]
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The fair values of our pension benefit assets aherdenefit assets at December 31, 2010, excluging of cash, investment income
receivable and amounts due to/from brokers, bytasdéegory and level inputs, as defined by FASRIgnce regarding fair value measurem
and disclosures (see Note 7, “Fair Value,” for &ddal information regarding the definition of léweputs) are as follows:

Level | Level Il Level Il Total
December 31, 2010
Pension Benefit Asset
Equity securities
U.S. securitie: $160.¢ $ — $413.% $ 574.t
Foreign securitie 276.2 — — 276.2
Mutual funds 25.2 — — 25.2
Fixed maturity securities
Government securitie 142.( 24.C — 166.(
Corporate bond — 183.( — 183.(
Asse-backed securitie — 134.¢ — 134.¢
Other types of investment
Common and collective trus — 45.: — 45.:
Partnership interes — — 147.¢ 147.¢
Contract with insurance compa — — 188.¢ 188.¢
Treasury futures contrac 0.5 — — 0.5
Total pension benefit asse $605.( $387.1 $749.¢ $1,742.(
Other Benefit Asset:
Equity securities
U.S. securitie! $ 114 $ — $ 16.1 $ 27t
Foreign securitie 10.¢ — — 10.¢
Fixed maturity securities
Government securitie 5.k 0.9 — 6.4
Corporate securitie 190.1 7.1 — 197.2
Asse-backed securitie — 5.3 — 5.3
Other types of investment
Common and collective trus — 1.8 — 1.8
Partnership interes — — 5.7 5.7
Investment in DOL 1C-12 trust — 16.C — 16.C
Total other benefit asse $217.¢ $ 31.1 $ 21.€ $ 270.7
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11. Retirement Benefits (continued)

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending baksof plan assets measured at fair value usingl Ikweputs for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

Common/ Insurance
U.S. Equity Asset Collective Partnership Company Instg:nce
Backed
Securities Securities Trusts Interests Contracts Contracts Total
Beginning balance at January 1, 2! $ 313¢ $ 65 $ 9%6C $ 94C $241: $ — $ 751.7
Actual return on plan asse
Relating to assets still held at the reporting 122.¢ 0.7 227 23.2 (17.5) — 151.7
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlemen — (1.3 — 49.C (19.9) — 28.2
Transfers into Level Il — 0.2 — — — — 0.2
Ending balance at December 31, 2! 436.% 6.1 118.7 166.4 204.: — 931.¢
Actual return on plan asse
Relating to assets still held at the reporting t 65.5 0.5 0.6 (10.9) 10.z — 66.C
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlemen (72.0 (2.0 (119.9) (2.5 (25.7) — (221.5)
Transfers out of Level Il — (4.6) — — — — (4.€)
Ending balance at December 31, 2 429.¢ — — 153.1 188.¢ — 771,
Actual return on plan asse
Relating to assets still held at the reporting t 4.8 — — 5.8 2.7 1.C 14.2
Purchase — — — 7.€ 11.€ 94.7% 113.¢
Sales (227.0 — — (0.4) (7.€) — (125.0
Issuance: — — — — — — —
Settlement: — — — — — — —
Transfers out of Level Il — — — — — — —
Ending balance at December 31, 2I $ 3176 $ — $ — $ 166.1 $195.8 $ 957 $774¢

There were no material transfers between Levélsahd Il during the years ended December 31, 2@D10 and 2009.

Our current funding strategy is to fund an amou¢ast equal to the minimum required funding aeeined under ERISA with
consideration of maximum tax deductible amounts.riég elect to make discretionary contributionsathe maximum amount deductible for
income tax purposes. For the years ended Decenib@031 or 2010, no material contributions wereeseary to meet ERISA required
funding levels. However, during the year ended Drwer 31, 2011, we made tax deductible discretionangributions to the pension benefit
plans and other benefit plans of $57.7 and $3@dpectively. During the year ended December 31020% made tax deductible discretionary
contributions to the pension benefit plans and tleaefit plans of $3.9 and $135.0, respectiveiyployer contributions to other benefit plans
represent discretionary contributions and do ncitithe payments to retirees for current benefits.
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11. Retirement Benefits (continued)

Our estimated future payments for pension benafitspostretirement benefits, which reflect expetidare service, as appropriate, are
as follows:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
2012 $121.¢ $ 40.¢
2013 132.¢ 39.1
2014 130.1 40.c
2015 129.2 42.5
2016 130.¢ 447
2017-2021 678.% 235.2

In addition to the defined benefit plans, we madmtae WellPoint 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan #redlCareMore 401(k) Pension Pl
qualified defined contribution plans covering salpsially all employees. Voluntary employee conttibns are matched by us subject to certain
limitations. Contributions made by us totaled $8%820.7 and $111.0 during 2011, 2010 and 2009¢ertively.

12. Medical Claims Payable
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakstor medical claims payable is as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Gross medical claims payable, beginning of $ 4,852.¢ $ 5,450.! $ 6,184
Ceded medical claims payable, beginning of » (32.9) (29.9) (60.%)
Net medical claims payable, beginning of y 4,819." 5,420.¢ 6,124
Business combinations and purchase adjustn 100.¢ — 2.8
Net incurred medical claim

Current yea 47,281 45,077.. 47,315.:

Prior years redundanci (209.7) (718.0 (807.9)
Total net incurred medical clain 47,071.¢ 44,359.: 46,507.!
Net payments attributable t

Current year medical clain 41,999.( 40,387. 42,056.!

Prior years medical clain 4,520.° 4,572. 5,157.¢
Total net payment 46,519 44,960.. 47,214.!
Net medical claims payable, end of y 5,472.¢ 4,819.! 5,420.¢
Ceded medical claims payable, end of y 16.4 32.€ 29.¢
Gross medical claims payable, end of y $ 5,489.( $ 4,852.¢ $ 5,450.!

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary fromavously estimated liabilities as the claims atanately settled. Liabilities at any
period end are continually reviewed and re-estithatinformation regarding actual claims paymemtsynout, becomes known. This
information is compared to the originally estabdidtyear end liability. Negative amounts reportedriourred medical claims related to prior
years resul
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12. Medical Claims Payable (continued)

from claims being settled for amounts less thagiwaily estimated. The prior year redundancy of$%2&hown above for the year ended
December 31, 2011 represents an estimate baseaidolaim activity from January 1, 2011 to DecemBgr2011. Medical claim liabilities a
usually described as having a “short tail,” whichans that they are generally paid within severaithmof the member receiving service from
the provider. Accordingly, the majority of the $2D9edundancy relates to claims incurred in calegdar 2010.

The following table provides a summary of the tvey lkassumptions having the most significant impacdar incurred but not paid
liability estimates for the years ended Decembe2811, 2010 and 2009, which are the completiontesrd! factors. These two key
assumptions can be influenced by utilization levetst costs, mix of business, benefit plan designsvider reimbursement levels, processing
system conversions and changes, claim inventosideelaim processing patterns, claim submissidtepe and operational changes resulting
from business combinations.

(Favorable) Unfavorable Developments
by Changes in Key Assumptions

2011 2010 2009
Assumed trend factors $ (264.9 $ (534.9 $ (466.])
Assumed completion facto 55.1 (183.7) (341.7)
Total $ (209.) $ (718.0 $ (807.)

The favorable development recognized in 2011 reduytimarily from trend factors in late 2010 deyétgy more favorably than
originally expected. This impact was partially eff$y completion factors developing unfavorably ¢tuslight increases in payment cycle
times. The favorable development recognized in 2048 driven by trend factors in late 2009 develgpitore favorably than originally
expected. In addition, a minor but steady improvetire payment cycle times impacted completion fadevelopment and contributed to the
favorability. The favorable development recognize@009 was driven by significant contributionsrfrdoth trend and completion factor
development.

Due to changes within our Company and industryrgu#i010, we re-evaluated our actuarial processgsemulting levels of reserves. As
discussed in Note 2, “Basis of Presentation andifiignt Accounting Policies,Actuarial Standards of Practice require that cldiatslities be
appropriate under moderately adverse circumstaficesatisfy these requirements, our reserving @®bas historically involved recognizing
the inherent volatility in actual future claim pagnts compared to the current estimate for thea@lability by recording a provision for
adverse deviation. This additional reserve estagdisa sufficient level of conservatism in the lidpestimate that is similar from period to
period. There are a number of factors that canireguhigher or lower level of additional resersech as changes in technology that provide
faster access to claims data or change the spestjutfication and settlement of claims, or overatiability in claim payment patterns and
claim inventory levels. Given that in the more mgggeriods we experienced higher levels of autar@déims adjudication and faster claims
payment leading to lower and more consistent clamwesntory levels, we determined that using a lolegel of targeted reserve for adverse
deviation provides a similar level of confidencattthe established reserves are appropriate iouttient environment. This change in estimate
resulted in a benefit to 2010 income before incéaxeexpense and diluted earnings per share of $8it1%$0.11, respectively. We continued to
use this lower level of targeted reserve for adveesviation in 2011.
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13. Debt
Short-term Borrowings

We are a member, through certain subsidiariedye@federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis and #eeFal Home Loan Bank of
Cincinnati, collectively, the FHLBs, and as a memlve have the ability to obtain short-term cashaambes subject to certain minimum
collateral requirements. At December 31, 2011 &1D2$100.0 and $100.0, respectively, were outstgnehder our short-term FHLBs
borrowings. These outstanding short-term FHLBsdwimgs at December 31, 2011 and 2010 had fixedésteates of 0.260% and 0.120%,
respectively. On January 18, 2012 we repaid th® $16utstanding balance of the short-term FHLBsdwing that was outstanding at
December 31, 2011. On January 25, 2012, we borramnedtditional $100.0 from the FHLBs with a threenth term at a fixed interest rate of
0.070%.

Long-term Debt

The carrying value of long-term debt at Decembec@isists of the following:

2011 2010
Senior unsecured note
5.000%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 $ — $ 701.¢
6.375%, face amount of $350.0, due 2 350.:2 354.¢
6.800%, face amount of $800.0, due 2 822.¢ 842.(
6.000%, face amount of $400.0, due 2 398.4 397.¢
5.000%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 546.2 547k
5.250%, face amount of $1,100.0, due 2 1,109.: 1,093.:
2.375%, face amount of $400.0, due 2 395.2 —
5.875%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 694.( 693.(
7.000%, face amount of $600.0, due 2 595.¢ 595.2
4.350%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 694.2 693.2
3.700%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 693.t —
5.950%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 495.( 494 ¢
5.850%, face amount of $900.0, due 2 890.( 889.7
6.375%, face amount of $800.0, due 2 790.C 789.7
5.800%, face amount of $300.0, due 2 293.7 293.t
Surplus notes
9.000%, face amount of $25.1, due 2! 24.¢ 24.¢
Variable rate deb
Commercial paper progra 799.¢ 336.2
Fixed rate 1.430% FHLBs secured loan, due 2 100.C 100.C
Capital lease 2.4 6.€
Total lon¢-term debt 9,695.¢ 8,853."
Current portion of lon-term deb (1,274.5 (705.9)
Long-term debt, less current portii $ 8,420.¢ $8,147.¢

All long-term debt shown above is a direct obligatdf WellPoint, Inc., except for the $350.0 6.375éfior unsecured notes due 2012,
the surplus notes, the FHLBs secured loan andaldeéses.
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13. Debt (continued)
At maturity on January 17, 2012, we repaid the $38@itstanding balance of our 6.375% senior unsecootes.

On August 15, 2011, we issued $400.0 of 2.375%osemsecured notes due 2017 and $700.0 of 3.7088rsesecured notes due 2(
under our shelf registration statement. A portibthe proceeds from this debt issuance was us&thtbthe purchase price of our acquisitiol
CareMore and the remaining proceeds may be usesidiking capital and for general corporate purppsetuding, but not limited to
repayment of short-term and long-term debt. Thesbave a call feature that allows us to redeemdles at any time at our option and a put
feature that allows a note holder to require ugpurchase the notes upon the occurrence of beitlarsge of control event and a ratings
downgrade of the notes.

At maturity on January 15, 2011, we repaid the $7@@itstanding balance of our 5.000% senior ungecootes.

On August 12, 2010, we issued $700.0 of 4.350%sndtie 2020 and $300.0 of 5.800% notes due 2040 ondehelf registration
statement. We used the proceeds from this deldnssuto repay the remaining outstanding balanceiofariable rate senior term loan and for
general corporate purposes. The notes have aealiré that allows us to repurchase the notesydirae at our option and a put feature that
allows a note holder to require us to repurchasentiies upon the occurrence of both a change dfat@vent and a downgrade of the notes.

On April 12, 2010, we borrowed $100.0 from the FHLBr a two-year term at a fixed interest rate df30%.

Surplus notes are unsecured obligations of Anthresarance Companies, Inc., or Anthem Insurance,dlybwned subsidiary, and are
subordinate in right of payment to all of Anthensunance’s existing and future indebtedness. Anyrneay of interest or principal on the
surplus notes may be made only with the prior aygdrof the Indiana Department of Insurance, or ID&id only out of capital and surplus
funds of Anthem Insurance that the IDOI determitoele available for the payment under Indiana iaisce laws.

We have a senior credit facility, or the facilityith certain lenders for general corporate purpogbe facility, as amended, provides
credit up to $2,000.0 and matures on Septembe2@9. The interest rate on the facility is baseeitmer, (i) the LIBOR rate plus a
predetermined percentage rate based on our catitigrat the date of utilization, or (ii) a basteras defined in the facility agreement plus a
predetermined percentage rate based on our cegitigjrat the date of utilization. Our ability torbamw under the facility is subject to
compliance with certain covenants. There were nouants outstanding under the facility as of Decen#der2011.

We have an authorized commercial paper progranp @b $2,500.0, the proceeds of which may be useddneral corporate purposes.
The weighted-average interest rate on commercjziplaorrowings at December 31, 2011 and 2010 wkt06 and 0.359%, respectively.
Commercial paper borrowings have been classifiddraggterm debt at December 31, 2011 and 2010 apragtice and intent is to replace
short-term commercial paper outstanding at expinatvith additional short-term commercial paperdaruninterrupted period extending for
more than one year or through our ability to redeemmcommercial paper with borrowings under thaaeeredit facility described above.

Interest paid during 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $4%2.99.6 and $409.2, respectively.
We were in compliance with all applicable covenamtder our outstanding debt agreements at DeceBih@011.
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13. Debt (continued)

Future maturities of long-term debt, including ¢apleases, are as follows: 2012, $2,073.9; 20131;2014, $944.6; 2015, $0.0; 2016,
$1,109.2 and thereafter, $5,566.3.

14. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

In the ordinary course of business, we are defelsdanor parties to, a number of pending or therat! legal actions or proceedings. To
the extent a plaintiff or plaintiffs in the follomj cases have specified in their complaint or ireptourt filings the amount of damages being
sought, we have noted those alleged damages tteteiptions below. With respect to the cases destibelow, we contest liability and/or 1
amount of damages in each matter and believe we imavitorious defenses.

In various California state courts, we are defegdimumber of individual lawsuits, including onledi by the Los Angeles City Attorney,
and one purported class action alleging the wrdng&cission of individual insurance policies. Thets name WellPoint as well as Blue Cross
of California, or BCC, and BC Life & Health Insu@Company, or BCL&H (which name changed to Anti&lae Cross Life and Health
Insurance Company in July 2007), both WellPoints@diaries. The lawsuits generally allege breacbamitract, bad faith and unfair business
practices in a purported practice of rescinding imeividual members following the submission ofgarclaims. The parties agreed to mediate
most of these lawsuits and the mediation resuligtié resolution of some of these lawsuits. Fipglraval of the class action settlement was
granted on July 13, 2010, and no appeals were ftagments pursuant to the terms of the settleomnimenced in the first quarter of 2011
were completed during the second quarter of 20bh#&.Fayments did not have a material impact on onsalidated financial position or rest
of operations. The Los Angeles City Attorney filedl amended complaint in October 2010, adding claiimsisrepresentation arising from
several public statements made by the Companyg@i0. The Los Angeles City Attorney is requesting thousand five hundred dollars
($2,500) per alleged violation of the Californiagtess and Professions Code. We intend to vigoralesend this suit; however, the ultimate
outcome cannot be presently determined.

We are currently defending several certified omfiue class actions filed as a result of the 20&hwatualization of Anthem Insurance
Companies, Inc., or AICI, and the initial publidering of common stock, or IPO, for its holding goamy, Anthem, Inc. (n/k/a WellPoint,
Inc.). The suits name AICI as well as Anthem, loc.Anthem, n/k/a WellPoint, Inc. The suits aretaaped asRonald Gold, et al. v. Anthem,
Inc. et al.; Mary E. Ormond, et al. v. Anthem, |ret.al.; Jeffrey D. Jorling v. Anthem, Inc., etahd Ronald E. Mell, Sr., et al. v. Anthem, i
et al. AICI's 2001 Plan of Conversion, or the Plan, praddor the conversion of AICI from a mutual insurarcompany into a stock insurance
company pursuant to Indiana law. Under the Pla]Aistributed the fair value of the company at tinee of conversion to its Eligible
Statutory Members, or ESMs, in the form of casiiethem common stock in exchange for their memberstierests in the mutual
company. The lawsuits generally allege that AlGtritbuted value to the wrong ESMs or distributeslifificient value to the ESMs. iBold,
cross motions for summary judgment were grantgzhith and denied in part on July 26, 2006 with rddarthe issue of sovereign immunity
asserted by co-defendant, the State of Connectictite State. The court also denied our motiorsfmnmary judgment as to plaintiffs’ claims
on January 10, 2005. The State appealed the d#fritalmotion to the Connecticut Supreme Court. filéel a cross-appeal on the sovereign
immunity issue. On May 11, 2010, the Court revertbsedudgment of the trial court denying the Statotion to dismiss the plaintiff's claims
under sovereign immunity and dismissed our crogealp The case was remanded to the trial coufuftiner proceedings. Plaintiffs’ motion
for class certification was granted on December203,1. In theODrmondsuit, our motion to dismiss was granted in part
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14. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

and denied in part on March 31, 2008. The Courhidised the claims for violation of federal andestsecurities laws, for violation of the
Indiana Demutualization Law, for unjust enrichmearid for negligent misrepresentation with respe&$Ms residing in Indiana. On
September 29, 2009, a class was certified withesp some but not all claims asserted in thenpifés’ Fourth Amended Complaint. The cl
consists of all ESMs residing in Ohio, Indiana, Kexky or Connecticut who received cash compensati@onnection with the
demutualization. The class does not include emptolpeated in Ohio and Connecticut that receivesthahistributions pursuant to the Plan. On
July 1, 2011, the Court issued an Order grantingaitt and denying in part our motion for summangjment. The Court held that we were
entitled to judgment on all of plaintiffs’ claimgeept those tort claims in connection with the imdgcand sizing of the Anthem, Inc. IPO.
Anthem filed a Motion to Certify this Order for ertocutory review to the United States Court of Aals for the Seventh Circuit. The District
Court granted our motion on September 2, 2011. ¥engtted our Petition for Permission to Appeal wiite Seventh Circuit. However, the
petition was denied by the Appeals Court on Octdi3er2011. Thérmondsuit is set for trial on June 18, 2012. In codifjs, the plaintiffs ir
Ormondhave alleged that the plaintiff class is entitleddmpensatory damages ranging from approxima@&$p.d to $545.0 on the remaining
claims, plus prejudgment interest at the maximuta alowed by law running from the demutualizatinr2001, postjudgment interest at the
maximum rate allowed by law, punitive damages iants not less than $500.0, and their costs andrnsegs in the action. On December 23,
2010, plaintiff's motion for class certification waenied in thdorling suit. Plaintiff renewed his motion for class céctition on May 1, 2011
and requested that a new named plaintiff be joingde lawsuit. On December 23, 2011, our motiarsfammary judgment was granted,
judgment was entered in our favor, andJorling case was dismissed with prejudice. Plaintiff's rmotfor partial summary judgment was
denied, and plaintiff's renewed motion for clasgifieation and motion to add a new named plaintiire denied as moot. Plaintiff did not file
an appeal from the summary judgment order enteredi favor. On November 4, 2009 a class was @sttifi theMell suit. That class consists
of persons who were continuously enrolled in thalthebenefit plan sponsored by the City of Cincinbatween June 18, 2001 and
November 2, 2001. On March 3, 2010, the Court idsureorder granting our motion for summary judgmésta result, thMell suit has been
dismissed. The plaintiffs have filed an appeal ik United States Court of Appeals for the Sixilt@t Court. Argument on the appeal was
held on January 20, 2012. We intend to vigorousiigdd these suits; however, their ultimate outcoamot be presently determined.

We are currently a defendant in a putative claismcelating to out-of-network, or OON, reimbursemh of dental claims called
American Dental Association v. WellPoint Healthwatks, Inc. and Blue Cross of CalifornThe lawsuit was filed in March 2002 by the
American Dental Association, and three dentists attgosuing on behalf of themselves and are se¢siage on behalf of a nationwide class of
all non-participating dental providers who wereddlaiss than their actual charges for dental sesvicevided to members of some of our
affiliates’ and subsidiaries’ dental plans. Theti#ga sue as purported assignees of their patiggty’s to benefits under our dental plans. The
complaint alleges that we breached our contracbiidations in violation of ERISA by paying usuelistomary and reasonable, or UCR, rates,
rather than the dentists’ actual charges, allegesl{yng on undisclosed, non-existent or flawed UddRa. The plaintiffs claim, among other
things, that the data failed to account for differes in geography, provider specialty, outlier lihigharges, and complexity of procedure. The
complaint further alleges that we were aware thatdata was inappropriate to set UCR rates anduwbaoutinely paid OON dentists less than
their actual charges representing that our OON payswere properly determined usual, customaryreasbnable rates. The suit was pending
in the United States District Court for the SouthBistrict of Florida. On December 23, 2011, thstBct Court granted our motion for
summary judgment and dismissed the case. The iffigifiled a notice of appeal with the United S&ateourt of Appeals for the Eleventh
Circuit, which is pending. We intend to vigorouslgfend this suit; however, its ultimate outcomencarbe presently determined.
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We are currently a defendant in eleven putativescictions relating to OON reimbursement that wersolidated into a single multi-
district lawsuit calledn re WellPoint, Inc. Out-of-Network “UCR” Ratestlgationthat is pending in the United States District Cdartthe
Central District of California. The lawsuits weikefl in 2009. The plaintiffs include current andrfer members on behalf of a putative clas
members who received OON services for which thermt#dints paid less than billed charges, the Amebagical Association, four state
medical associations, OON physicians, chiropractisical psychologists, podiatrists, psychothéstg the American Podiatric Association,
California Chiropractic Association and the Califia Psychological Association on behalf of a putatilass of all physicians and all non-
physician health care providers, and an OON surgirater. In the consolidated complaint, the piéfsallege that the defendants violated the
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations &cRICO, the Sherman Antitrust Act, ERISA, fedexegulations, and state law by relying
on databases provided by Ingenix in determining Q@kbursement. A consolidated amended complaistfied to add allegations in the
lawsuit that OON reimbursement was calculated irperly by methodologies other than the Ingenix dasal. We filed a motion to dismiss
amended consolidated complaint. The motion wastgdain part and denied in part. The court gavepthitiffs permission to replead many of
those claims that were dismissed. The plaintiféifa third amended consolidated complaint reptepdome of the claims that had been
dismissed without prejudice and adding additiotetiesnents in an attempt to bolster other claims fii&/é a motion to dismiss the third
amended consolidated complaint, which is penditg @ON surgical center voluntarily dismissed tlotaims. Fact discovery is complete. At
the end of 2009, we filed a motion to enjoin tharmls brought by the medical doctors and doctosstdopathy and certain medical
associations based on prior litigation releaseschvivas granted in 2011, and the court orderegldatiffs to dismiss their claims that are
barred by the release. The physician and medisalkésgion plaintiffs filed an emergency motion taysthe preliminary injunction pending
appeal, for the right to pursue an interlocutorgesgd, and for an expedited appeal, all of whichend®nied. The plaintiffs also filed a petition
for declaratory judgment asking the Court to fihdttthese claims are not barred by the releasestfie prior litigation. We filed a motion to
dismiss the declaratory judgment action, which giated. The plaintiffs filed a notice of appealnfr the dismissal of the declaratory
judgment action with the United States Court of Aglg for the Eleventh Circuit. The appeal is pegdirhe enjoined physicians have not
dismissed their claims. We intend to vigorouslyeahef this suit; however, its ultimate outcome carm@presently determined.

Where available information indicates that it istpable that a loss has been incurred as of theofithe consolidated financial stateme
and we can reasonably estimate the amount ofdbkaf We accrue the estimated loss by a chargeamie. In many proceedings, however, it is
difficult to determine whether any loss is probatteeasonably possible. In addition, even whese Is possible or an exposure to loss exis
excess of the liability already accrued with respe@ previously identified loss contingency sitnot always possible to reasonably estimat
amount of the possible loss or range of loss.

With respect to many of the proceedings to whichaweea party, we cannot provide an estimate optssible losses, or the range of
possible losses in excess of the amount, if armyruad, for various reasons, including but not ledito some or all of the following: (i) there
novel or unsettled legal issues presented, (iiptioeeedings are in early stages, (iii) there isentainty as to the likelihood of a class being
certified or decertified or the ultimate size awd®e of the class, (iv) there is uncertainty ahéooutcome of pending appeals or motions,

(v) there are significant factual issues to be Iety and/or (vi) in many cases, the plaintiffs éawot specified damages in their complaint or in
court filings. For those legal proceedings whelesa is probable, or reasonably possible, and fachvit is possible to reasonably estimate the
amount of the possible loss or range of losses;umently believe that the range of possible losiseexcess of established reserves,
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14. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

for all of those proceedings is from $0 to apprcadiety $500.0 at December 31, 2011. This estimaggdegate range of reasonably possible
losses is based upon currently available informatidking into account our best estimate of suckdsgor which such an estimate can be

Other Contingencies

From time to time, we and certain of our subsidisudre parties to various legal proceedings, mamhich involve claims for coverage
encountered in the ordinary course of business.IM&eHMOs and health insurers generally, excluegain health care and other services f
coverage under our HMO, PPO and other plans. Weratiee ordinary course of business, subject éocthims of our enrollees arising out of
decisions to restrict or deny reimbursement foroweced services. The loss of even one such claitreisults in a significant punitive damage
award, could have a material adverse effect onusddition, the risk of potential liability undpunitive damage theories may increase
significantly the difficulty of obtaining reasona&ibettlements of coverage claims.

In addition to the lawsuits described above, weadse involved in other pending and threatenegddiion of the character incidental to
our business, arising out of our operations andewision of earnings guidance in 2008, and ammftie to time involved as a party in vari
governmental investigations, audits, reviews andiaitrative proceedings. These investigationsjtapceviews and administrative
proceedings include routine and special inquiriesthte insurance departments, state attorneysajetie U.S. Attorney General and
subcommittees of the U.S. Congress. Such invegiiggtaudits, reviews and administrative proceeslcmuld result in the imposition of civil
or criminal fines, penalties, other sanctions additzonal rules, regulations or other restrictiamsour business operations. Any liability that
may result from any one of these actions, or inapgregate, could have a material adverse effeotiosonsolidated financial position or
results of operations.

The National Organization of Life & Health Insur@@uaranty Associations, or NOLHGA, is a voluntasgociation consisting of the
state life and health insurance guaranty orgamizatiocated throughout the U.S. State life andthéasurance guaranty organizations, worl
together with NOLHGA, provide a safety net for thetiate’s policyholders, ensuring that they corgitmireceive coverage even if their insurer
is declared insolvent. We are aware that the Pdversa Insurance Commissioner, or Insurance Coniatiss, has placed Penn Treaty
Network America Insurance Company and its subsiddanerican Network Insurance Company, or colledtivienn Treaty, in rehabilitatio
an intermediate action before insolvency. The lasoe Commissioner has petitioned the state couligigidation, however, we do not know
when a decision will be made, although we beli¢ve likely the state court will rule within the xtetwelve months. In the event that Penn
Treaty is declared insolvent and placed in ligu@gtwe and other insurers may be required to ppgrion of their policyholder claims
through state guaranty association assessmenituire fperiods. Given the uncertainty around wheffeem Treaty will ultimately be declared
insolvent and, if so, the amount of the insolverthg, amount and timing of any associated futuregantg fund assessments and the availability
and amount of any potential premium tax and otffilsets, we currently cannot estimate our net expgsfiany, to this potential insolvency.
We will continue to monitor the situation and magard a liability and expense in future reportimgipds, which could be material to our cash
flows and results of operations.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

On December 1, 2009, we entered into a ten-yeaeagent with Express Scripts to provide pharmacefiemanagement services for
our plans. Under this agreement, Express Scripgtevusthe exclusive provider of certain specifieéphacy benefit management services, such
as pharmacy network management, home
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14. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

delivery, pharmacy customer service, claims prangssebate management, drug utilization and sjiggiarmaceutical management
services. Accordingly, the agreement contains geft@ancial and operational requirements obliggtoth Express Scripts and us. Express
Scripts’ primary obligations relate to the performoa of such services and meeting certain priciregantees and performance standards. Our
primary obligations relate to oversight, provismfrdata, payment for services, transition servargd certain minimum volume

requirements. The failure by either party to mhetrespective requirements could potentially sessa basis for financial penalties or early
termination of the contract. We believe we haverappately recognized all rights and obligationglenthis contract at December 31, 2011.

On March 31, 2009, we entered into an agreemeht Affiliated Computer Services, Inc. to providetedn print and mailroom services
that were previously performed in-house. Our commaiit under this agreement at December 31, 20132641 over a five year period. We
have the ability to terminate this agreement ufrendccurrence of certain events, subject to eartypination fees.

During the first quarter of 2010, we entered intoesv agreement with International Business Mach®@poration to provide
information technology infrastructure services.sThew agreement supersedes certain prior agreearahtdso includes provisions for
additional services. Our remaining commitment urtier agreement at December 31, 2011 was $784rlacfeeir year period. We have the
ability to terminate this agreement upon the oa@ure of certain events, subject to early terminafiées.

Vulnerability from Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subjectaisancentrations of credit risk consist primarifycash equivalents, investment securit
premium receivables and instruments held througlying activities. All investment securities are raged by professional investment
managers within policies authorized by our Boar®wéctors. Such policies limit the amounts thatyrba invested in any one issuer and
prescribe certain investee company criteria. Cotnagans of credit risk with respect to premiume®@bles are limited due to the large nun
of employer groups that constitute our customee lashe geographic regions in which we conductriass. As of December 31, 2011, there
were no significant concentrations of financialtinments in a single investee, industry or geogralgitation.

15. Capital Stock
Stock Incentive Plan:

On March 15, 2006, our Board of Directors adopteiWellPoint 2006 Incentive Compensation PlanherRlan, which was approved
our shareholders on May 16, 2006. On March 4, 2608Board of Directors approved an amendment asthtement of the Plan to increase
the number of shares available by 33.0 sharegname the plan as the WellPoint Incentive Compars&an, or Incentive Plan, and to
extend the term of the Incentive Plan such thaawards may be granted on or after May 20, 2019%kwias approved by our shareholders on
May 20, 2009.

The Incentive Plan gives authority to the Compeaosaommittee of the Board of Directors to makeeintive awards to our non-
employee directors, employees and consultantsjstomgsof stock options, stock, restricted stodstricted stock units, cash-based awards,
stock appreciation rights, performance shares anfdpnance units. The Incentive Plan, as amendddestated, increases the number of
available shares for issuance to 60.1 shares,dubjadjustment as set forth in the Incentive Plan
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15. Capital Stock (continued)

Stock options are granted for a fixed number ofehavith an exercise price at least equal to thievédue of the shares at the grant date.
Stock options granted in 2011, 2010 and 2009 vest three years in equal semi-annual installmemdsgenerally have a term of seven years
from the grant date.

Certain option grants contain provisions wherelgygmployee continues to vest in the award subsétuégrmination due to retirement.
Our attribution method for newly granted awardssiders all vesting and other provisions, includietirement eligibility, in determining the
requisite service period over which the fair vatfiehe awards will be recognized.

Restricted stock awards are issued at the fairevaiuhe stock on the grant date and may alsodecbne or more performance measures
that must be met for the restricted stock awangegl. The restrictions lapse in three equal animséliments.

During 2010, we modified a portion of the restriti&ock units granted in 2010 to change the vesting from the respective date in 2
to December 10, 2012. This modification ensuresimam tax deductibility of the compensation costsoagated with these restricted stock
units, which deduction will not be fully availaltie us beginning in 2013 due to changes in tax Esulting from Health Care Reform
legislation. There were approximately 0.4 restdciéock units modified, which impacted 2,690 asstesi. These modifications did not result in
any incremental share-based compensation costs.

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arfi} 8@0recognized share-based compensation codi3dt& $136.0 and $153.6,
respectively, as well as related tax benefits & 64$45.9 and $52.8, respectively.

A summary of stock option activity for the year edddecember 31, 2011 is as follows:

Weighted-Average Aggregate
Number of Weighted-Average Remaining
Option Price per Contractual Life Intrinsic
Shares Share (Years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2C 24.¢ $ 59.6(
Granted 1kt 66.2¢
Exercisec (4.c 49.6(
Forfeited or expirel (1.5 63.12
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 20.C 62.3( 3.8 $ 177.(
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 16.£ 63.6 3.5 $ 141.1

The intrinsic value of options exercised during years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 dewbtn$115.8, $66.9 and $40.4,
respectively. We recognized tax benefits of $482%.2 and $18.8 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respegtifrelm option exercises and
disqualifying dispositions. The total fair valuegifares vested during the years ended Decemb2031, 2010 and 2009 was $120.2, $93.5
and $21.5, respectively. During the years endeceBéer 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 we received casB4H.8, $95.3 and $79.8, respectively,
from exercises of stock options.
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A summary of the status of nonvested restrictedksaativity, including restricted stock units, e year ended December 31, 2011 is as
follows:

Weighted-Average

Restricted Grant Date

Stock Share: Fair Value

and Units per Share
Nonvested at January 1, 20 4.2 $ 44.71
Granted 2.C 66.1¢
Vested (1.8 43.61
Forfeited (0.9 50.0¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 4.C 56.0(

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we graypptbximately 0.7 restricted stock units underltfeentive Plan that were
contingent upon us achieving specified operating tagets for 2011. We exceeded the specifiedatjpey targets and, accordingly, we expect
to issue 1.1 restricted stock units under thisqrernce plan. These restricted stock units have imetuded in the activity shown above.

As of December 31, 2011, the total remaining urgaczed compensation cost related to nonvested stpitins and restricted stock
amounted to $16.1 and $63.9, respectively, whidhbgiamortized over the weighted-average remaingogisite service periods of 9 months
and 9 months, respectively.

As of December 31, 2011, there were 32.0 sharesrafnon stock available for future grants underiticentive Plan.
Fair Value

We use a binomial lattice valuation model to esterthe fair value of all stock options granted. &ged volatility assumptions used in
the binomial lattice model are based on an anabfsimplied volatilities of publicly traded optiorsn our stock and historical volatility of our
stock price. The risk-free interest rate is derifredn the U.S. Treasury strip rates at the timéhefgrant. The expected term of the options was
derived from the outputs of the binomial latticedal which incorporates post-vesting forfeitureussptions based on an analysis of historical
data. The dividend yield was based on our estiwmiateture dividend yields. Similar groups of empd@g that have dissimilar exercise beha
are considered separately for valuation purposesutilize the “multiple-grant” approach for recoginig compensation expense associated
with each separately vesting portion of the shasel award.

The following weightecaverage assumptions were used to estimate thealaies of options granted during the years endestDber 31

2011 2010 2009
Risk-free interest rat 2.82% 3.0¢% 1.7<%
Volatility factor 34.0(% 34.0(% 37.0(%
Dividend yield (annual 1.5(% — % — %
Weightec-average expected life (yea 4.0 4.0 4.0
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The following weighted-average fair values wereed®ined for the years ending December 31:

2011 2010 2009
Options granted during the ye $17.8¢ $18.7¢ $ 9.44
Restricted stock and stock awards granted duriegéar 66.1¢€ 61.3¢ 30.52
Employee stock purchases during the — 8.64 7.0¢

The binomial lattice option-pricing model requitee input of highly subjective assumptions inclggthe expected stock price volatility.
Because our stock option grants have characterisigmificantly different from those of traded apts, and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the falugaestimate, in our opinion, existing models domecessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of our stock option gsant

Employee Stock Purchase Ple

We have registered 14.0 shares of common stoaké&Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or the StockhBsecPlan, which was intended
to provide a means to encourage and assist emgayeequiring a stock ownership interest in Wellorhe Stock Purchase Plan was
suspended effective January 1, 2011, and no shamesissued or expense recognized during 2011nB@010 and 2009, 1.0 and 1.2 share
common stock, respectively, were purchased undestbck Purchase Plan, resulting in $8.5 and #&.@lated compensation cost,
respectively. As of December 31, 2011, 6.1 shaereavailable for issuance under the Stock Purdhkse

Use of Capital-Dividends and Stock Repurchase Pagr

We regularly review the appropriate use of capitadluding common stock repurchases and divideadhéareholders. The declaration
and payment of any dividends or repurchases otommmon stock are at the discretion of our BoarBioéctors and depends upon our
financial condition, results of operations, futlicriidity needs, regulatory and capital requirersearid other factors deemed relevant by our
Board of Directors. Historically our common stoelpurchase program, discussed below, has beenimargruse of capital. Beginning in
2011, our Board of Directors established a quartghtbreholder dividend. There were no dividendd paring 2010 or 2009.

A summary of the cash dividend activity for the yeaded December 31, 2011 is as follows:

Cash Dividend per

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Share Total
February 22, 201 March 10, 201 March 25, 201 $0.2¢ $92.¢
May 17, 201 June 10, 201 June 24, 201 0.2t 91.1
July 26, 201 September 9, 20: September 23, 20 0.2t 88.2
October 25, 201 December 9, 20! December 23, 20: 0.2t 85.7

On January 24, 2012, the Board of Directors in@ddbe quarterly shareholder cash dividend to $h2fr share on the outstanding
shares of our common stock. This increased quaréridend will be paid on March 23, 2012 to theusdholders of record as of March 9,
2012.
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Under our Board of Directors’ authorization, we ntain a common stock repurchase program. Repursimaag be made from time to
time at prevailing market prices, subject to certaistrictions on volume, pricing and timing. Tlepurchases are effected from time to time in
the open market, through negotiated transactioetyding accelerated share repurchase agreemedtth@ugh plans designed to comply v
Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act 8418s amended. Our stock repurchase programcdetimary as we are under no
obligation to repurchase shares. We repurchaseshader the program when we believe it is a prudss of capital. The excess cost of the
repurchased shares over par value is charged omrata basis to additional paid-in capital andiretd earnings.

A summary of Board of Director share repurchasaaigations for the year ended December 31, 204% fellows:

Authorization Date Amount

February 3, 201 $ 375.(
February 22, 201 1,100.(
May 17, 2011 500.(
August 25, 201! 250.(
September 29, 201 5,000.(

We expect to utilize unused authorization remairdh®ecember 31, 2011 over a multi-year periodjezitbo market and industry
conditions.

A summary of share repurchases for the period Jgriy@2012 through February 9, 2012 (subsequebetember 31, 2011) and for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as &l

January 1,
Years Ended
2012 December 31
Through
February 9,
2012 2011 2010
Shares repurchased 4.9 44.F 76.7
Average price per sha $ 67.71 $ 68.3¢ $ 56.8¢
Aggregate cos $ 333 $3,039.6  $4,360.
Authorization remaining at the end of each pe $ 3,999.¢ $4,333.7 $ 148t
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16. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

A reconciliation of the components of accumulatdteo comprehensive income at December 31 is amnfsll

2011 2010
Investments

Gross unrealized gait $1,107.: $1,048.(

Gross unrealized loss (161.6€) (134.5)

Net pretax unrealized gail 945.k 913.t

Deferred tax liability (331.9) (320.5)
Net unrealized gains on investme 613.¢ 593.(
Non-credit components of OTTI on investmer

Unrealized losse (10.9) (9.

Deferred tax asst 3.€ 3.1
Net unrealized nc-credit component of OTTI on investme! (6.7) (6.0
Cash flow hedges

Gross unrealized loss (54.9 (39.1)

Deferred tax asst 19.1 13.¢
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hec (35.9 (25.9)
Defined benefit pension plar

Deferred net actuarial lo (653.%) (460.%)

Deferred prior service credi 4.7 5.2

Deferred tax asst 262.¢ 184.:
Net unrecognized periodic benefit costs for defihedefit pension plar (386.2) (270.9)
Postretirement benefit plar

Deferred net actuarial lo: (234.5) (191.9)

Deferred prior service credi 116.: 81.2

Deferred tax asst 48.C 44.7
Net unrecognized periodic benefit costs for postratent benefit plan (70.2) (65.7)
Foreign currently translation adjustmer

Gross unrealized loss (0.5) (0.9)

Deferred tax asst 0.2 0.4
Net unrealized losses on foreign currency trarstagidjustmen (0.9 (0.5)
Accumulated other comprehensive inco $ 114.€ $ 224.¢
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Other comprehensive income (loss) reclassificatidjnstments for the years ended December 31 dodi@ss:

2011 2010 2009
Investments
Net holding (loss) gain on investment securitiésiag during the period, net of tax (bene
expense of $(38.2), $(8.9) and $690.8, respect $ (71.€ $ 24.¢ $1,310.
Reclassification adjustment for net realized g&sg) on investment securities, net of tax exp
(benefit) of $49.6, $54.5 and $(138.6), respedji 92.2 100.Z (255.9)
Total reclassification adjustment on investme 20.€ 125.1 1,055.:
Non-credit component of OTTI on investmer
Cumulative effect on adoption of FASB OTTI guidanaet of tax benefit of $0.0, $0.0 and $5
respectively — — (88.9)
Non-credit component of OTTI on investments, netaaf (benefit) expense of $(0.5), $9.0 anc
$(12.1), respectivel 0.9) 14.7 (20.7)
Cash flow hedge:
Holding loss, net of tax benefit of $5.3, $8.1 &1d0, respectivel (10.0 (14.5) (2.9
Other:
Net change in unrecognized periodic benefit camtsléfined benefit pension and postretireme
benefit plans, net of tax (benefit) expense of HB1$22.3 and $15.0, respectiv: (119.9 32.¢ 19.5
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofeblapense (benefit) of $0.2, $(0.8) and $
respectively 0.2 (1.7 1.2
Net (loss) gain recognized in other comprehensieere, net of tax (benefit) expense of $(75.9),@
and $500.3, respective $(109.9) $156.5 $ 963.¢

17. Reinsurance

We reinsure certain risks with other companiesasslime risk from other companies. We remain prignlable to policyholders under
ceded insurance contracts and are contingentlielfalb amounts recoverable from reinsurers in trenéthat such reinsurers do not meet their
contractual obligations.

We evaluate the financial condition of our reinssir@d monitor concentrations of credit risk agsirom similar geographic regions,
activities, or economic characteristics of the saners to minimize our exposure to significant éssBom reinsurer insolvencies.

A summary of direct, assumed and ceded premiunttewrand earned for the years ended December 84 fadlows:

2011 2010 2009
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Direct $56,190.: $55,875.1 $54,114.. $53,982.¢ $56,518.: $56,416.t
Assumec 179.¢ 178.t 86.7 82.7 84.C 76.5
Cedec (84.2) (84.7) (91.9) (91.9 (110.0) (110.9)
Net premiums $56,286.( $55,969.1 $54,109. $53,973.¢ $56,493.. $56,382.(
Percentac—assumed to net premiur 0.3% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.1%
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17. Reinsurance (continued)

A summary of net premiums written and earned bymsad (see Note 20, “Segment Information”) for tleans ended December 31 is as
follows:

2011 2010 2009
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Reportable segment
Commercial $31,225.! $31,156.( $31,385.& $31,292.( $34,147.( $ 34,123.¢
Consume 17,725.( 17,736.! 16,100.! 16,059.! 16,213.¢ 16,126.¢
Other 7,335.¢ 7,077.. 6,623.¢ 6,622.( 6,131.¢ 6,131.¢
Net premiums $56,286.( $55,969.¢ $54,109.° $53,973.( $56,493.: $ 56,382.(

The effect of reinsurance on benefit expense fery#ars ended December 31 is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Direct $47,569.¢ $44,952.¢ $47,203.:
Assumec 165.C 71.C 40.C
Ceded (87.9) (93.4) (121.0
Net benefit expens $47,647.! $44,930. $47,122.:
The effect of reinsurance on certain assets abdifias at December 31 is as follows:

2011 2010
Policy liabilities, assumed $70.4 $64.1
Unearned income, assum 0.5 0.€
Premiums payable, ced 147 23.€
Premiums receivable, assumr 18.€ 7.2

18. Leases

We lease office space and certain computer antece&guipment using noncancelable operating ledsd3ecember 31, 2011, future
lease payments for operating leases with initiakamaining noncancelable terms of one year or roonsist of the following:

2012 $110.¢
2013 104.¢
2014 99.7
2015 85.7
2016 65.2
Thereaftel 229.¢
Total minimum payments requirt $695.¢

We have certain lease agreements that containnggemti payment provisions. Under these provisiomspay contingent amounts in
addition to base rent, primarily based upon anohahges in the consumer price index. The schedhaleeacontains estimated amounts for
potential future increases in lease payments basélde contingent payment provisions.

Lease expense for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $14B38,3and $220.7, respectively.
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19. Earnings per Share

The denominator for basic and diluted earningsspare at December 31 is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Denominator for basic earnings per share—weightedage shares 360.Z 410.¢ 476.%
Effect of dilutive securitie—employee and director stock options and-vested restricted stock awat 4.¢ 4.9 4.2
Denominator for diluted earnings per sh 365.1 415.¢ 480.5

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012608, weighted average shares related to certagk siptions of 10.5, 17.4 and
17.9, respectively, were excluded from the denotomfar diluted earnings per share because thé stptions were anti-dilutive.

20. Segment Information

Our organizational structure is comprised of timeggortable segments: Commercial, Consumer and QtherCommercial and Consun
segments both offer a diversified mix of manage@ gaoducts, including PPOs, HMOs, traditional imidéty benefits and POS plans, as well
as a variety of hybrid benefit plans, including C8j hospital only and limited benefit products.

Our Commercial segment includes Local Group (iniclgdUniCare), National Accounts and certain othezildary business operations
(dental, vision, life and disability and workergimpensation). Business units in the Commercial segmffer fully-insured products and
provide a broad array of managed care servicesltdunded customers, including claims processumglerwriting, stop loss insurance,
actuarial services, provider network access, médst management, disease management, wellnegsapre and other administrative
services.

Our Consumer segment includes Senior, State-Spathsod Individual business. Senior business inglsdevices such as Medicare
Advantage (including private fee-for-service plamsl special needs plans), Medicare Part D, andddesliSupplement, while State-Sponsored
business includes our managed care alternativédddicaid and State ChildresiHealth Insurance Plan programs. Individual bissineclude:
individual customers under age 65 and their covdegzbndents.

Our Other segment includes the Comprehensive H&alilitions business unit, or CHS, that brings togebur resources focused on
optimizing the quality of health care, the clinicaihsumer experience and cost of care managemid&tirizluded our PBM business until its
sale to Express Scripts on December 1, 2009, andrtludes provider relations, care and diseasegenent, employee assistance programs
including behavioral health, radiology benefit mgaaent and analytics-driven, evidence-based pdrkeaith care guidance. Our Other
segment also contains results from our Federal (Bavent Solutions, or FGS, business. FGS businetisdies FEP and National Government
Services, Inc., which acts as a Medicare contranteeveral regions across the nation. The Ottgmsaet also includes other businesses that dc
not meet the quantitative thresholds for an opegategment as defined in FASB guidance, as wétitassegment sales and expense
eliminations and corporate expenses not allocateldet other reportable segments.

We define operating revenues to include premiurorime, administrative fees and other revenues. Gpgregvenues are derived from
premiums and fees received primarily from the salé administration of health benefit products. @peg gain is calculated as total operating
revenue less benefit expense, selling, generaddmdnistrative expense and cost of drugs.
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20. Segment Information (continued)

Through our participation in various federal gowveemnt programs, we generated approximately 23%, &28619% of our total
consolidated revenues from agencies of the U.Semgonent for the years ended December 31, 2011, 20102009, respectively. These
revenues are contained in the Consumer and Otheresgs.

The accounting policies of the segments are camistith those described in the summary of sigaiftcaccounting policies in Note 1,
“Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountiraides,” except that certain shared administraéixpenses for each segment are recognizec
on a pro rata allocated basis, which in aggregeapecximates the consolidated expense. Any diffexdretween the allocated expenses and
actual consolidated expense is included in othpereses not allocated to reportable segments. égfersnt sales and expenses are recorded at
cost and eliminated in the consolidated finandialesnents. We evaluate performance of the repersggments based on operating gain ot
as defined above. We evaluate investment income,ayasale of business, net realized gains on tmvasts, other-than-temporary impairment
losses recognized in income, interest expense,taaton expense and income taxes, and assetatnitityi details on a consolidated basis as
these items are managed in a corporate shareg¢semvironment and are not the responsibility ghsent operating management.

Financial data by reportable segment for the yeaded December 31 is as follows:

Other and
Commercial Consumer Eliminations Total

Year ended December 31, 201

Operating revenue from external custorr $34,498.( $17,784.¢ $ 7,582.: $59,865.:
Operating gait 3,090.! 623.1 68.t 3,782..
Depreciation and amortization of property and eougpt — — 300.: 300.:
Year ended December 31, 201

Operating revenue from external custon $34,559.: $16,092.¢ $ 7,088.¢ $57,740.!
Operating gain (loss 3,085.7 1,000.¢ (8.9 4,077.!
Depreciation and amortization of property and emgpt — — 297.¢ 297.¢
Year ended December 31, 20C

Operating revenue from external custon $37,274. $16,141.¢ $ 7,323 $60,740.(
Intersegment revent — — 2,836.¢ 2,836.¢
Elimination of intersegment reven — — (2,836.¢) (2,836.€)
Operating gait 2,430.: 1,279.% 469.< 4,179.
Depreciation and amortization of property and eougpt — — 291. 291.¢
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20. Segment Information (continued)

The major product revenues from external custorfogrsach of the reportable segments for the yezile@ December 31, are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Commercial

Managed care produc $30,025.: $30,186. $32,955.:
Managed care servic 3,273.! 3,159.: 3,079.1
Dental/Vision products and servic 826.¢ 811. 831.t
Other 372.¢ 402.% 408.¢
Total Commercia 34,498.( 34,559.: 37,274.4
Consumer

Managed care produc 17,734.. 16,059. 16,126.
Managed care servic 50.€ 33.C 15.C
Total Consume 17,784. 16,092. 16,141.¢
Other

Government service 7,418.( 6,923.¢ 6,465.¢
Pharmacy products and servit — — 681.:
Other 164.C 164.¢ 176.2
Total Other 7,5682.! 7,088.¢ 7,323.¢
Total revenues from external custom $59,865.. $57,740.! $60,740.(

The classification between managed care productsremaged care services in the above table primdistinguishes between the level
of risk assumed. Managed care products represamtance products where we bear the insurancewlseas managed care services repr
product offerings where we provide claims adjuda@agnd other administrative services to the custotout the customer principally bears the

insurance risk.

Asset and equity details by reportable segment havéeen disclosed, as we do not internally repach information.

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatingereies to the amounts of total revenues includelderconsolidated statements of

income for the years ended December 31, is asisilo

2011 2010 2009
Reportable segments operating rever $59,865.: $57,740.! $60,740.(
Net investment incom 703.7 803.: 801.(
Gain on sale of busine — — 3,792.;
Net realized gains on investmel 235.1 194.1 56.4
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inci (93.9 (39.9 (450.2)
Total revenue $60,710. $58,698.! $64,939.!
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20. Segment Information (continued)

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatindndga income before income taxes included in thesctidated statements of income for
the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Reportable segments operating ¢ $3,782.: $4,077." $4,179.
Net investment incom 703.% 803.: 801.(
Gain on sale of busine — — 3,792.:
Net realized gains on investme! 235.1 194.1 56.4
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inc (93.9) (39.9 (450.2)
Interest expens (430.9) (418.9 (447.9)
Amortization of other intangible asst (239.9) (241.7) (266.0)
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ass — (21.1) (262.5)
Income before income tax $3,957.¢ $4,353.¢ $7,403.(

21. Related Party Transactions

WellPoint Foundation, Inc., or the Foundation,nsladiana non-profit organization exempt from fedéaxation under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation wamdd to conduct, support and assist charitabldtthezlated, educational, and other
community-based programs and projects. The offiaatsdirectors of the Foundation are also our efficThese officers and directors receive
no compensation from the Foundation for the manageservices performed for the Foundation but meayelimbursed by the Foundation for
any cash expenditures incurred on behalf of thenBation. During the years ended December 31, 22010 and 2009, we received $0.6, $0.6
and $0.6, respectively, from the Foundation for euitrative services provided by our associatesit@loutions made to the Foundation during
the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 20@930¢0, $0.0 and $10.0, respectively. The Fouadas not a subsidiary of ours and the
financial results of the Foundation are not comsa#d with our financial statements. We have neecilegal obligations for future
commitments to the Foundation.

22. Statutory Information (Unaudited)

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries, excluding Bluess of California, Golden West Health Plan, bred CareMore Health Plan,
report their accounts in conformity with accountprgctices prescribed or permitted by state ineaagulatory authorities, or statutory,
which vary in certain respects from GAAP. Blue Gro$ California, Golden West Health Plan, Inc. &ateMore Health Plan are regulated by
the California Department of Managed Health Caré&)MHC, and report their accounts in conformity m&AAP (collectively, the “DMHC
regulated entities”). Typical differences of GAA&hprting as compared to statutory reporting arerttlesion of unrealized gains or losses
relating to fixed maturity securities in sharehodequity, recognition of all assets including skeahat are non-admitted for statutory purposes
and recognition of all deferred tax assets withregard to statutory limits. The National Associataf Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC,
developed a codified version of the statutory antiog principles, designed to foster more consisteamong the states for accounting
guidelines and reporting.

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries that are sulgestatutory reporting are domiciled in variouggdictions. These subsidiaries
prepare statutory financial statements in accorelavith accounting practices prescribed or permittgthe respective jurisdictions’ insurance
regulators. Prescribed statutory accounting praestare set forth in a variety of publications & MAIC as well as state laws, regulations and
general administrative rules.
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22. Statutory Information (Unaudited) (continued)

Our ability to pay dividends and credit obligatiaasignificantly dependent on receipt of dividefidsn our subsidiaries. The paymen
dividends to us by our insurance and HMO subsielsawithout prior approval of the insurance depantsmef each subsidiary’s domiciliary
jurisdiction is limited by formula. Dividends in egss of these amounts are subject to prior applyvtile respective state insurai
departments or the California Department of Managdedith Care.

Our statutory basis insurance and HMO subsidianiesubject to risk-based capital requirementk-Rised capital is a method
developed by the NAIC to determine the minimum amaif statutory capital appropriate for an insumnompany or HMO to support its
overall business operations in consideration ofiite and risk profile. The formula for determinithg amount of risk-based capital specifies
various factors, weighted based on the perceivgdegeof risk, which are applied to certain finahb@lances and financial activity. Below
minimum riskbased capital requirements are classified withitagelevels, each of which requires specified ective action. Additionally, t
DMHC regulated entities are subject to capital soldency requirements as prescribed by the DMHCofABecember 31, 2011 and 2010, all
of our regulated subsidiaries exceeded the minimiskabased capital requirements and/or capitalsateency requirements of their applicable
governmental regulator.

Statutory-basis capital and surplus of our insuezsaned HMO subsidiaries and capital and surplusiobther regulated subsidiaries,
excluding the DMHC regulated entities, was $7,6&h8 $8,089.0 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, réagplgc Statutory-basis net income of
our insurance and HMO subsidiaries and net incohaioother regulated subsidiaries, excluding théHT regulated entities, was $2,402.5,
$2,933.8 and $4,643,6 for 2011, 2010 and 2009ers@ly. GAAP equity of the DMHC regulated entitizas $1,304.2 and $1,266.9 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. GAARnmoeime of the DMHC regulated entities was $52443,464 and $450.8 for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respsctivel

23. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

For the Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3 December 3.
2011
Total revenue $14,894.. $15,100. $ 15,398.( $15,317.
Income before income tax 1,427.. 1,007.¢ 1,045.; 478.2
Net income 926.¢€ 701.¢ 683.2 335.%
Basic net income per she 2.4¢ 1.92 1.92 0.97
Diluted net income per sha 2.4 1.8¢ 1.9C 0.9¢
2010
Total revenue $15,072.¢ $14,431.. $ 14,572.. $14,622.(
Income before income tax 1,335.1 1,129.¢ 1,136.¢ 752.1
Net income 876.¢ 722.¢ 739.1 548.¢
Basic net income per she 1.9¢ 1.7¢ 1.8¢ 1.41
Diluted net income per sha 1.9¢ 1.71 1.84 1.4C
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24. Subsequent Events

We have evaluated subsequent events for recogmitidisclosure in our consolidated financial staats filed on Form 10-K with the
SEC and no events, other than those describe@ge thotes, have occurred that require disclosure.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There have been no changes in or disagreement®witindependent registered public accounting filmaccounting or financial
disclosures.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation as of December 311 20dder the supervision and with the participatbour management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officef the effectiveness of the design and operaifosur disclosure controls and procedure
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Excleafgt of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Actedapon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer comdéd that our disclosure controls and proceduregfective in timely alerting them to
material information relating to us (including aonsolidated subsidiaries) required to be disclasedir reports under the Exchange Act. In
addition, based on that evaluation, the Chief EieelOfficer and Chief Financial Officer concludéwht our disclosure controls and proced
were effective in ensuring that information reqdite be disclosed by us in the reports that wediilsubmit under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to our managemehiding the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fina©fficer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management, under the supervision and with théqigation of the principal executive officer andrmuipal financial officer, of
WellPoint, Inc., or the Company, is responsibledstablishing and maintaining effective internaitcol over financial reporting, or Internal
Control, as such term is defined in the Securlieshange Act of 1934, as amended. The Companyesriat Control is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilith@Qompany’s financial reporting and the preparatibfinancial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. geneaaitepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The Canys Internal Control includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to thentesiance of records that in reasonable detail atelyrand fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii¥j@e reasonable assurance that transactions avalegtas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP, dad teceipts and expenditures of the Company ang lmeade only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of thve@any; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancerdagaprevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of@menpany’s assets that could have a material efiethe financial statements.

Because of inherent limitations in any Internal €okno matter how well designed, misstatementstduerror or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Accordingly, even effective Inééi@ontrol can provide only reasonable assurangardéng the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

Management, under the supervision and with theqgjaation of the principal executive officer andrmipal financial officer, assessed "
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal ControbBecember 31, 2011. Management’s assessmentagasl lon criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGloenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission.

Based on management’s assessment, managemeninkagled that the Company’s Internal Control wasdfie as of December 31,
2011 to provide reasonable assurance regardinghkiaility of financial reporting and the prepacsatt of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP.
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Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent registi public accounting firm, has audited the cddatéd financial statements of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 20lhas also issued an audit report dated Febr2arg@.2, on the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011, which is included in Arisual Report on Form 10-K.

Is/  ANGELAF. BRALY Is/  WAYNE S. DEV EYDT
Chair of the Board, President a Executive Vice President ai
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our internal coowe financial reporting that occurred during theee months ended December 31,
2011 that have materially affected, or are reaslyritdely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
WellPoint, Inc.

We have audited WellPoint, Inc.’s internal conweér financial reporting as of December 31, 20kl on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cossion (the “COSO criteria”).
WellPoint, Inc.’s management is responsible fornmteaning effective internal control over financraporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting included in the accompanying ManagemeRg&port on Internal Control Over Financ
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an mpiron the company’s internal control over finahegporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq®@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordwar financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiagutne design and operating effectiveness oftiratecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thadadit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsméor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaatepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftaipeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, WellPoint, Inc. maintained, in ailaterial respects, effective internal control diiresincial reporting as of December 31, 2011,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@inited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of WellPoint, Inc. as of DecembePB11 and 2010, and the related consolidatednséates of income, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in ¢reogd ended December 31, 2011 of WellPoint, Ind. aur report dated February 22, 2012
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & Y OUNGLLP
Indianapolis, Indiana
February 22, 2012
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item concerning Buecutive Officers, Directors and nominees forebtor, Audit Committee members
and financial expert(s) and concerning disclosti@etinquent filers under Section 16(a) of the Exoge Act and our Standards of Business
Conduct is incorporated herein by reference fromdadinitive Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annualélag of Shareholders, which will be
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A withi20 days after the end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item concerninmtmeration of our Executive Officers and Directonsiterial transactions involving
such Executive Officers and Directors and Compaéms&ommittee interlocks, as well as the Compensaliommittee Report, are
incorporated herein by reference from our defieitiRroxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting ddr8holders, which will be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 daysrdfie end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item concerning ftock ownership of management and five percemgfimal owners and securities
authorized for issuance under equity compensatamsgs incorporated herein by reference from a@finitive Proxy Statement for our 2012
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be fileith the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within H2§s after the end of our last fiscal
year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item concerningt@@ relationships and related person transactmlsdirector independence is
incorporated herein by reference from our defieitiRroxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting ddr8holders, which will be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 daysrdfie end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item concerningpipal accounting fees and services is incorparagzein by reference from our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Megtof Shareholders, which will be filed with th&S pursuant to Regulation 14A within
120 days after the end of our last fiscal year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) 1. Financial Statements:
The following consolidated financial statementshaf Company are set forth in Part Il, Iten

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&@d 2010
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseéibecember 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 200200¢
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule:

The following financial statement schedule of the@®any is included in Item 15(¢

Schedule —Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Ra@ompany Only)

All other schedules for which provision is madehie applicable accounting regulations of the SECnat required under the
related instructions, are inapplicable, or the negliinformation is included in the consolidatedfncial statements, and therefore,
have been omitted.

3. Exhibits:

A list of exhibits required to be filed as parttbfs report is set forth in the Index to Exhibitd)ich immediately precedes st

exhibits, and is incorporated herein by reference.
(b) Exhibits

The response to this portion of Item 15 is submiitie a separate section of this report.
(c) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule —Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Ra@ompany Only)
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Balance Sheet:

(In millions, except share data)

Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $1,91dnd $2,499.4
Equity securities (cost of $57.8 and $4¢
Other invested assets, curr
Other receivable
Income taxes receivab
Net due from subsidiarie
Securities lending collater
Deferred tax assets, r
Other current asse
Total current asse
Long-term investments availal-for-sale, at fair value
Equity securities (cost of $6.9 and $7
Other invested assets, I-term
Property and equipment, r
Deferred tax assets, r
Investments in subsidiari
Other noncurrent asse

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expe!
Deferred tax liabilities, ne
Security trades pending payal
Securities lending payab
Current portion of lon-term debt
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current porti
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenc—Note 5
Shareholder equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autec—100,000,000; shares issued and outsta—none
Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authorized;800,000; shares issued and outstanding:

339,372,680 and 377,736,9
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive inco

Total shareholders equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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December 31 December 31
2011 2010

$ 1,087.. $ 605.7

1,573.1 2,628..

73.7 69.5

1.8 6.4

39.2 62.¢

11.€ 46.€

742.2 245.(

101.¢ 119.1

— 10.4

167.¢ 132.¢

3,799.( 3,926.t

6.¢ 7.C

500.1 433.1

6.2 8.8

279.¢ 334.2

28,685.. 28,354.:

120.: 103.:

$ 33,397.! $ 33,167.:

$  406.1 $ 427
14.E —

14.1 27.1

101.¢ 119.1

822.¢ 700.(

143.t 184.¢

1,502.¢ 1,458..

8,395.¢ 7,667.¢

210.7 228.¢

10,109.: 9,354.¢

34 3.8

11,679.. 12,862.¢

11,490. 10,721.¢

114.¢ 224.¢

23,288.. 23,812.¢

$ 33,397.! $ 33,167.:
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WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Income

(In millions)

Revenues
Net investment incom
Net realized losses on investme
Othel-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment losses on investme
Portion of othe-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in othergehensive incom
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inc
Other revenui
Total revenue
Expenses
General and administrative expel
Interest expens
Total expense
Loss before income tax credits and equity in net tome of subsidiaries
Income tax credit
Equity in net income of subsidiari
Net income

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 3

2011 2010 2009

$ 1166 $ 53¢ $ 35¢
(17.9) (58.0) (1.6)
(18.9) (15.2) (47.9)
0.2 0.2 6.€
(18.0) (15.0) (41.2)
3.1 3.2 0.4

83.¢ (15.9) (6.6)
53. 105. 116.4
407. 394, 419.
460.7 499.¢ 535.¢
(376.9) (515.9) (542.5)
(207.0) (239.9) (227.9)
2,816.¢ 3,163.; 5,060.!
$2,646.  $2,887..  $4,745.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant (continued)

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Cash Flow

(In millions)

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Distributed (undistributed) earnings of subsidig
Net realized losses on investme
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses recognized in inc
(Gain) loss on disposal of ass
Deferred income taxe
Amortization, net of accretio
Depreciatior
Shar-based compensatic
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinatior
Receivables, ne
Other invested assets, curn
Other asset
Amounts due (from) to subsidiari
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Other liabilities
Income taxe:

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of investmer

Proceeds from sales, maturities and redemptioitsszestment:
Capitalization of subsidiarie

Change in securities lending collate

Purchases of property and equipment,

Other, ne

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie

Financing activities

Net payments of commercial paper borrowi
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings
Repayment of lor-term borrowings

Changes in securities lending pays

Change in bank overdral

Repurchase and retirement of common s
Cash dividend

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock opi
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic
Net cash used in financing activitie:

Change in cash and cash equivalt

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

$2,646.  $2887.  $4,745.
399.1 (417.7) 602.
17.¢ 58.( 1.6
18.C 15.C 41.
— (0.8) 1.3
95.: 0.6 11.2
3.1 27.1 (1.6)
0.2 0.3 0.2
134.¢ 136.( 153.€
(42.2) (28.1) (9.6)
13.F 23.: (62.2)
4.6 2.9 2.2)
(52.0) (33.0 (13.5)
(497.5) (25.0) 949.4
1.5 (3.6) 144.¢
0.9 (109.9) 124.¢
35.: 67. 84.C
2,778 2,601 6,771.(
(2,778  (4,329.0  (1,052.9
3,680.¢ 2,924. 144.°
(832.]) (31.1) (6.4)
17.2 (86.2) (14.7)

2.3 (5.0) —
(49.6) (114.9) (68.4)
49.: (1,641.9) (997.9)
463.7 (164.9) (397.0
1,097.¢ 988. 990.:
(700.0) (433.]) (906.2)
(17.9) 86.2 14.7
(66.5) 39. (17.9)
(3,039.)  (4,360.)  (2,638.)

(369.¢) — —
245.( 143.¢ 126.
42.: 28.1 9.6
(2,345.) (3,672  (2,817.9
481.7 (2,712.9) 2,955.¢
605.7 3,318. 362.7
$1,087. $ 6057  $3,318.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant (continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

December 31, 201,
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountingolicies

In the parent company only financial statementé/eflPoint, Inc., or WellPoint, WellPoint’s investmisin subsidiaries is stated at cost
plus equity in undistributed earnings of the sulasids. WellPoint's share of net income of its umealidated subsidiaries is included in income
using the equity method of accounting.

Certain amounts presented in the parent comparyyfimincial statements are eliminated in the cadatéd financial statements of
WellPoint.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to the current year presentation.

WellPoint’'s parent company only financial statensestiould be read in conjunction with WellPoint'slid consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes includédsifrorm 10-K.

2. Subsidiary Transactions
Dividends from Subsidiarie

WellPoint received cash dividends from subsidiaok$2,915.9, $2,746.0, and $5,662.7 during 200102and 2009, respectively. In
addition, WellPoint recorded a dividend receivabden a subsidiary of $300.0 at December 31, 20tickwas received in January 2012.

Dividends to Subsidiarie

Certain subsidiaries of WellPoint own shares of M&ht common stock. WellPoint paid cash dividetalsubsidiaries related to these
shares of common stock in the amount of $12.0 du2biL1. WellPoint did not pay any cash dividendst®sommon stock during 2010 or
20009.

Investment in Subsidiarie
Capital contributions to subsidiaries were $83831.1, and $6.4 during 2011, 2010, and 2009, réispdc
Amounts Due to and From Subsidiarie

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, WellPoint reporfel$ and $245.0 due from subsidiaries, respegtiidlese amounts consisted
principally of administrative expenses and areimaly settled, and as such, are classified as ouassets. The balance at December 31, 2011
also included the $300.0 subsidiary dividend remiglis described above.

Sale of PBM Busines

On December 1, 2009, certain subsidiaries of WeitPsmld their pharmacy benefits management sufsédi to Express Scripts, Inc. and
received $4,675.0 in cash. The pre-tax and afteg&dns on the sale were $3,792.3 and $2,361.Aectisely. The after-tax gain of $2,361.2 is
included as equity in net income of subsidiarieg/i@llPoint’s parent company only income statement.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant (continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements (continued)

3. Derivative Financial Instruments

The information regarding derivative financial inshents contained in Note 6, “Derivative Finandmgtruments,” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of WellPoint s dubsidiaries is incorporated herein by refeeenc

4. Long-Term Debt

The information regarding long-term debt contaimetlote 13, “Debt” of the Notes to Consolidateddfinial Statements of WellPoint
and its subsidiaries is incorporated herein byresfee.

5. Commitments and Contingencies

The information regarding commitments and contirgesicontained in Note 14, “Commitments and Cortivgges,” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of WellPoint iésdubsidiaries is incorporated herein by refegenc

6. Capital Stock

The information regarding capital stock containedlote 15, “Capital Stock,” of the Notes to Condated Financial Statements of
WellPoint and its subsidiaries is incorporated hebg reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

W ELL POINT, I NC.

By: /s|  ANGELAF. BRALY
Angela F. Braly
Chair of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 22, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/  ANGELAF. BRALY Chair of the Board, President a February 22, 201
Angela F. Braly Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s  WAYNE S. DEV EYDT Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Off February 22, 2012
Wayne S. DeVeydt (Principal Financial Officer
/s/  JOHN E. GALLINA Senior Vice President, Controller, Chief AccountingFebruary 22, 2012
John E. Gallina Officer and Chief Risk Officer (Principal
Accounting Officer)
/s LeNox D.BAker, JrR., M.D. Director February 22, 201
Lenox D. Baker, Jr., M.D.
/s/  SusanB. B AYH Director February 22, 2012
Susan B. Bayh
/s|  SHEILA P. BURKE Director February 22, 2012
Sheila P. Burke
/s/  ROBERTL. D IXON, JR. Director February 22, 2012
Robert L. Dixon, Jr.
/s/  JULEA.HILL Director February 22, 2012
Julie A. Hill
/s WARRENY. JOBE Director February 22, 2012
Warren Y. Jobe
/s/  RaMmIRO G. PERU Director February 22, 2012
Ramiro G. Peru
/s/  WILLIAM J. RYAN Director February 22, 2012
William J. Ryan
/s| GEORGEA. S CHAEFER, JR. Director February 22, 2012
George A. Schaefer, Jr.
/s JackiE M. W ARD Director February 22, 2012

Jackie M. Ward
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Exhibit

Number
2.1
3.1
3.2

4.1
4.2
4.3

4.4

4.€

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Stock and Interest Purchase Agreement dated Ap2i009, by and between the Company and Expresgt§cimc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the @am’s Current Report on Forn-K filed April 13, 2009.

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehetective May 17, 2011, incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.1 to th
Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 20, 2011

By-laws of the Company, as amended effective Dece®i&010, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8.2he Compar’s
Current Report on Forrr-K filed on December 13, 201

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehetective May 17, 2011 (Included in Exhibit 3.
By-laws of the Company, as amended effective Dece®i2010 (Included in Exhibit 3.2

Specimen of Certificate of the Compi's common stock, $0.01 par value per share, incatpdrby reference to Exhibit 4
to the Compar’s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed on December 28, 2005 (Registration No0.-130743).

Indenture, dated as of July 31, 2002, between tmapgany and The Bank of New York, as trustee, ino@ied by referenc
to Exhibit 4.13 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportfmrm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEe No. 001-
16751.

(@) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as lyfJu, 2002, between the Company and The Bank @f Merk, Trustee,
establishing 6.800% Notes due 2012, incorporatectfarence to
Exhibit 4.14 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrf 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEQN®. 001-
16751.

(b) Form of 6.800% Note due 2012 (Included ithibit 4.4(a)), incorporated by reference to Exhibit4 to the Company’
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC FileONi-16751.

Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of JR@08&, by and between WellPoint Health Networks (as predecessor
by merger to Anthem Holding Corp., “WellPoint Hé€jtand The Bank of New York, as trustee, incorpedaby reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to WellPoint Heal’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on June 12, 2001, SEC File No. +~13083.

(&) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofddtber 30, 2004, between Anthem Holding Corp. anel Bank of New
York, as trustee, incorporated by reference to EkHil1(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on FAGK for the
year ended December 31, 2004, SEC File No-16751.

(b) Form of Note evidencing WellPoint He¢'s 63/ 3% Notes due 2012, incorporated by reference toliixil to
WellPoint Healtl's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 16, 2002, SEC File No. -13083.

Indenture, dated as of December 9, 2004, betwee@dmpany and The Bank of New York Trust Company.N\as
trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filedDmtember 15, 2004,
SEC File No. 00-16751.

(@) Form of the Compa’s 5.000% Notes due 2014 (included in Exhibit 4
(b) Form of the Compa’s 5.950% Notes due 2034 (included in Exhibit 4
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Exhibit
Number

4.7

4.8

10.7*

10.2*

Exhibit

Indenture, dated as of January 10, 2006, betwee@dmpany and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust @amy, N.A.
(formerly known as The Bank of New York Trust CompaN.A.), as trustee, incorporated by referencéxbibit 4.1 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 11, 2006, SEC File No. -16751.

(@) Form of 5.25% Notes due 2016, incorporatedeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curieaport on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 2006, SEC File No. -16751.

(b) Form of 5.85% Notes due 2036, incorporatgddference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Curfi®aport on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 2006, SEC File No. -16751.

(c) Form of 5.875% Notes due 2017, incorpord@tedeference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s CuriReport on Form 8-
K filed on June 8, 200°

(d) Form of 6.375% Notes due 2037, incorpordgdeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-
K filed on June 8, 200°

(e) Form of 6.000% Notes due 2014, incorporatedeference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-
K filed on February 5, 200¢

(H Form of 7.000% Notes due 2019, incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s CuirfReport on Form 8-
K filed on February 5, 200¢

(g) Form of 4.350% Notes due 2020, incorporégdeference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s CuriReport on Form 8-
K filed on August 12, 201(

(h) Form of 5.800% Notes due 2040, incorporégdeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-
K filed on August 12, 201(

(i) Form of 2.375% Notes due 2017, incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-
K filed on August 15, 2011

() Form of 3.700% Notes due 2021, incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-
K filed on August 15, 2011

Upon the request of the Securities and Exchangen@ssion, the Company will furnish copies of anyestmstruments
defining the rights of holders of lo-term debt of the Company or its subsidiar

Anthem 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, amended andtesstes of January 1, 2003, incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.1(iii)
to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, SEC FileOR1-16751.

(@) Form of Stock Incentive Plan General Stogki@h Grant Agreement as of March 1, 2006, incoapexnt by reference !
Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Company’s Quarterly Reportfrm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20E8; &ile No.
001-16751.

WellPoint Incentive Compensation Plan as amendéddestated effective May 20, 2009, incorporateddfgrence to Exhik
99 to the Compar s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed June 8, 200¢

(&) First Amendment to WellPoint Incentive Comgation Plan effective December 8, 2010, incorgaréty reference to
Exhibit 10.2(a) to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(b) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondigaliStock Option Award Agreement under the 200 ftive
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference tolixt0.58(a) to the Company’s Quarterly Reportramm 10Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2C
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit
(c) Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agment under the 2006 Incentive Compensation Pleorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.58(f) to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on November 2, 200!
(d) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondigaliStock Option Award Agreement under the 200&tive
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference takdixt0.2(j) to the Company’s Quarterly Report corfa 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 20
(e) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondjealiStock Option Award Agreement for 2008 undex 2006 Incentive
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference tobiixt0.2(k) to the Company’s Annual Report on Fadt@K for
the year ended December 31, 2(C
(H Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Nondiea Stock Option Award Agreement for 2009 undss 2006 Incentiv:
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference toliixt0.2(m) to the Company’s Annual Report on FdréaK for
the year ended December 31, 2C
(9) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Agreetrfen 2009 under the 2006 Incentive Compensatiam Hhcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(n) to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C
(h) Form of Performance Share Award Agreemen2@®9 under the 2006 Incentive Compensation Rtaoyporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(0) to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C
(i) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan I-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement, incorpodaby reference t
Exhibit 10.2(0) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
() Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Ret#dcStock Unit Award Agreement, incorporated byrefce to Exhibit
10.2(p) to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
(k) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan PerfarceaShare Award Agreement, incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.2
(q) to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
()  Form of Incentive Compensation Plan RetgdcStock Unit Award Agreement, incorporated byrefce to Exhibit
10.2(r) to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
(m) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan PerforceaBhare Award Agreement, incorporated by referemé&sxhibit 10.:
(s) to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
(n) Form of Amendment to the Incentive CompeinsaPlan Restricted Stock Unit Award AgreementZ609 (Exhibit
10.2(g)) and 2010 (Exhibit 10.2(j;
(0) Form of Amendment to the Incentive Compeinsalan Performance Share Award Agreement for Z83@ibit 10.2
(h)) and 2010 (Exhibit 10.2(k)
10.& WellPoint, Inc. Comprehensive Non-Qualified Defer@ompensation Plan, as amended and restatediedfdanuary 1,
2011, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.t8h®Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tharyended December
31, 2010.
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Exhibit
Number

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

Exhibit

WellPaint, Inc. Executive Agreement Plan, amendadi restated effective January 1, 2009, incorporbjectference to Exhibit
10.4 to the Compar's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(&) Amendment to the WellPoint, Inc. Executivgréement Plan effective as of April 1, 2009, inaogted by reference
Exhibit 10.4(a) of the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

(b) Second Amendment to the WellPoint, Inc. Exime Agreement Plan effective as of March 1, 2bitbrporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.4(b) to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 10, 2011

WellPoint, Inc. Executive Salary Continuation P&fective January 1, 2006, incorporated by refegend=xhibit 10.59 to the
Compan'’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, SEC FileON-016751.

WellPoint Directed Executive Compensation Plan ahedreffective January 1, 2009, incorporated byregige to Exhibit 10.6 1
the Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

WellPoint, Inc. Board of Directors Compensationd?eom, as amended effective May 18, 2011, incorpdrhy reference t
Exhibit 10.7 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

WellPoint Board of Directo’ Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restif¢etive January 1, 2009, incorporatec
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annuap&t on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 1999 Stock Incent®ian (as amended through December 6, 2000), incatgd by reference to
Exhibit 10.37 to WellPoint Health’s Annual Report Borm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 208, Bile No. 001-
13083.

(&) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198&ck Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Stock Optamd Stock Optio
Agreement, revised December 2001, incorporatecfeyence to Exhibit 10.01 to WellPoint Health’s @ady Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, SEONEl 00-13083.

(b) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198fbck Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Stock Optamd Stock Option
Agreement, revised September 2003, incorporategfeyence to Exhibit 10.02 to WellPoint Health’sa@erly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, SEONEl 00-13083.

(c) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 19898bck Incentive Plan Notice of Automatic Grant é6¢&k Option, Notice of
Annual Automatic Grant of Stock Option, Notice ofa@t of Stock Option and Automatic Stock Option égment for
Non-Employee Directors, incorporated by referemcEsthibit 10.09 to WellPoint Health’'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, SEQN&il€01-13083.

RightCHOICE Managed Care, Inc. Supplemental ExeeuRetirement Plan as restated effective OctobgQ@1, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.06 to WellPoint Healt@aarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ehidlarch 31, 2002, SEC
File No. 00--13083.
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Exhibit
Number

10.1%

10.12

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.13

Exhibit

Employment Agreement between WellPoint, Inc. ang&a F. Braly, dated as of February 24, 2007, ipoated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on February 26, 200

(&) Amendment to Employment Agreement betweeliRimt, Inc. and Angela F. Braly effective as ahdiary 1, 200¢
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12(a) ® @ompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeraded
December 31, 200t

(b) Second Amendment to the Employment Agreeretween WellPoint, Inc. and Angela F. Braly effeztas of March 8,
2011, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11¢kthe Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K fitedMarch 10,
2011.

Employment Agreement between Anthem Insurance Campalnc. and Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.D., dated darmary 2
2001 (with respect to Section 5(b) only), incorpgedaby reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the CompanyégiRtration Statement on
Form &1 (Registration No. 3:-67714).

(@) Amendment dated September 30, 2011 to Empoy Agreement between Anthem Insurance Companiesand
Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.D., dated as of January@,,20corporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12he €ompany’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

(@) Form of Employment Agreement between the @amg and each of the following: Randal Brown; KerG®ulet; and,
Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.D., incorporated by referémce
Exhibit 10.43 to the Company’s Annual Report onrrdr0-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, SECNa. 001-
16751.

(b) Form of Employment Agreement between the @amy and each of the following: Lori Beer; Waynéb@Veydt; and
Brian Sassi, incorporated by reference to ExhibibAxhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Current Reportamm 8-K filed
on November 2, 2006, SEC File No. -16751.

(c) Form of Employment Agreement between the gamy and each of the following: John Cannon andaddrevine,
M.D., incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Ebih10.41 to the Company’s Quarterly Report onrRdi0-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2(

Blue Cross License Agreement by and between BlossIBlue Shield Association and the Company, inotudevisions, if
any, adopted by the Member Plans through Novem®g2010, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1adithe Company’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Blue Shield License Agreement by and between Blies<Blue Shield Association and the Company, liolyi revisions, i
any, adopted by the Member Plans through Novem®g2010, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1ad the Company’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Undertakings to California Department of Insurardaed November 8, 2004, delivered by WellPointlthe®C Life,
Anthem, Inc. and Anthem Holding Corp., incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s €atiReport on Form
8-K filed on November 10, 2004, SEC File No. -13083.

Undertakings to California Department of Manage@lteCare, dated November 23, 2004, delivered biiR@mt Health,
Golden West, Anthem, Inc. and Anthem Holding Campprporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to thenpany’s Current
Report on Form -K filed on November 30, 2004, SEC File No. -16751.
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Exhibit
Number

10.1¢

21
23
31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Exhibit

Undertakings, dated July 31, 1997, by WellPointIthe®8lue Cross of California and WellPoint Calificet Services, Inc. to the
California Department of Corporations, incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 99.12 to WellPoint HeadtiCurrent Report on
Form ¢-K filed on August 5, 1997, SEC File No. (-13083.

Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act Rules, as ado|
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act Rules, as ado|
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtioBed06 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtioBe906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

The following materials from WellPoint, Ir's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2011, forme
in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languag®)the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) the Cadatéd Statements of
Income; (iii) the Consolidated Statements of CasiwE; (iv) the Consolidated Statements of SharedrgldEquity; (v) the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and-{wincial Statement Schedule

*  Indicates management contracts or compensatorg plaarrangement
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Exhibit 10.2(n)

Amendment to
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

This Amendment, effective March 1, 2011, to thetReted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreemégrdated as of [Month .
2008, 2009, 2010] is made between WellPoint, lthe (Company”) and the Participant set forth in #ateompanying Grant Notice to the
Agreement. This Amendment is included in and meate @f the Agreement.

1. The introductory paragraph of “Period of Resimit’ set forth in the Grant Notice is amendeddad as follows:

The Period of Restriction applicable to the numiferour Restricted Stock Units listed in the “Shedreolumn below, and any related
Dividend Equivalents, shall commence on the Graateland shall lapse on the date listed in the “edpate” column below.

2. A new Section 5 is added to read as followsalhdross-references are updated accordingly:

5. Dividend Equivalentsin the event the Company declares a dividendr@res (as defined in the Plan), for each unvested
Restricted Stock Unit on the dividend payment didite Participant shall be credited with a Dividétglivalent, payable in cash, with a
value equal to the value of the declared dividdi Dividend Equivalents shall be subject to thaesaestrictions as the unvested
Restricted Stock Units to which they relate. N@iest or other earnings shall be credited on thé@Bid Equivalents. Subject to
continued employment with the Company and Affiligtde restrictions with respect to the Dividendiikzglents shall lapse at the same
time and in the same proportion as the initial @lrafrRestricted Stock Units. No additional Divideladuivalents shall be accrued for the
benefit of the Participant with respect to recoatied occurring prior to, or with respect to rectates occurring on or after the date, if
any, on which the Participant has forfeited thetReted Stock Units or any Restricted Stock Uniasdr been settled. For any specified
employee, any Dividend Equivalents subject to C8detion 409A and payable upon a termination of egmpent shall be subject to a
month delay. The Dividend Equivalents shall be sabjo all such other provisions set forth heraimd may be used to satisfy any or all
obligations for the payment of any tax attributatolehe Dividend Equivalents and/or Restricted Btdaits.

3. Effect on AgreementThis Amendment has no effect on the other teritseoAgreement and the Agreement shall otherwisgiicue
in effect.

WELLPOINT, INC.

By:
Printed: William J. Ryan
Its: Chairman, Compensation Commiti

WellPoint, Inc. Board of Director



Exhibit 10.2(0)

Amendment to
Performance Share Award Agreement

This Amendment, effective March 1, 2011, to thef@amance Share Award Agreement (the “Agreementt@dias of [Month ,
2008, 2009, 2010] is made between WellPoint, lthe (Company”) and the Participant set forth in #ateompanying Grant Notice to the
Agreement. This Amendment is included in and maate gf the Agreement.

1. The introductory paragraph of “Performance RErget forth in the Grant Notice is amended to raadollows:

The Performance Period applicable to the numbgoof Performance Shares listed in the “Shares”roalbelow, and any related
Dividend Equivalents, shall be the year endingtendate listed in the “Vesting Date” column bel@wbject to the performance measure
described below.

2. A new Section 5 is added to read as followsalhdross-references are updated accordingly:

5. Dividend Equivalent. In the event the Company declares a dividendrare3 (as defined in the Plan), for each unve
Performance Share on the dividend payment dat&dhticipant shall be credited with a Dividend B@lént, payable in cash, with a
value equal to the value of the declared dividdi Dividend Equivalents shall be subject to thaesaestrictions as the unvested
Performance Shares to which they relate. No interegther earnings shall be credited on the DivitlEquivalents, provided that
additional Dividend Equivalents may be awardedoofefited in the same proportion as the number dioP@ance Shares determined to
be awarded or forfeited based on the achievemethiegberformance measures. Subject to continuedbgmpnt with the Company and
Affiliates and, as applicable, achievement of perfance measures, the restrictions with respettad®ividend Equivalents shall lapse at
the same time and in the same proportion as tlieliaivard of Performance Shares. No additionaidgimd Equivalents shall be accrued
for the benefit of the Participant with respecteoord dates occurring prior to, or with respeateiword dates occurring on or after the
date, if any, on which the Participant has forfitiee Performance Shares or any Performance Shavesbeen settled. For any specified
employee, any Dividend Equivalents subject to C8detion 409A and payable upon a termination of egmpent shall be subject to a
month delay. The Dividend Equivalents shall be sabjo all such other provisions set forth heraimd may be used to satisfy any or all
obligations for the payment of any tax attributatolehe Dividend Equivalents and/or Performancer&ha

3. Effect on AgreementThis Amendment has no effect on the other terfiteeoAgreement and the Agreement shall otherwisgicue
in effect.

WELLPOINT, INC.

By:
Printed: William J. Ryan
Its: Chairman, Compensation Commit!

WellPoint, Inc. Board of Director



Entity Name

American Imaging Management East, L.L
American Imaging Management, Ir
Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan Administratd C
Anthem Blue Cross Life and Health Insurance Comg
Anthem Credentialing Services, Ir

Anthem Financial, Inc

Anthem Health Insurance Company of Nev
Anthem Health Plans of Kentucky, Ir
Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Ir

Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, |
Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, In
Anthem Health Plans, In

Anthem Holding Corp

Anthem Insurance Companies, i

Anthem Life & Disability Insurance Compal
Anthem Life Insurance Compal

Anthem Southeast, In

Anthem UM Services, In

Anthem Workers' Compensation, LL

Arcus Enterprises, In

ARCUS Financial Services, In

ARCUS HealthyLiving Services, In
Associated Group, In

ATH Holding Company, LLC

Behavioral Health Network, In

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia, |
Blue Cross Blue Shield Healthcare Plan of Geolgia,
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Wiscons

Blue Cross of Californi

Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, |
CareMore Health Group, In

CareMore Health Pla

CareMore Health Plan of Arizona, Ir
CareMore Health Plan of Colorado, h
CareMore Health Plan of Neva

CareMore Health Plan of Texas, I
CareMore Holdings, Inc

CareMore Medical Enterpris:

CareMore Medical Management Company, a Califormiaited Partnershi

CareMore, LLC

Cerulean Companies, Ir

Claim Management Services, It
CMMC Holding Company, LLC

Domestic Jurisdiction

Delaware
lllinois
Indiana
California
Delaware
Delaware
Nevada
Kentucky
Maine
New Hampshire
Virginia
Connecticu
Indiana
Indiana
New York
Indiana
Indiana
Indiana
Indiana
Delaware
Indiana
Indiana
Indiana
Indiana
New Hampshire
Georgia
Georgia
Wisconsin
California
California
Delaware
California
Arizona
Colorado
Nevads
Texas
Delaware
California
California
Indiana
Georgia
Wisconsin
Delaware

Exhibit 21



Community Insurance Compa
CommunityConnect Health Plan of Pennsylvania,
Compcare Health Services Insurance Corpor:
Crossroads Acquisition Cor

DeCare Analytics, LLC

DeCare Dental Health International, LI
DeCare Dental Insurance Ireland, L

DeCare Dental Networks, LL

DeCare Dental, LL(C

DeCare Operations Ireland, Limit

DeCare Systems Ireland, Limit

Designated Agent Company, Ir

EHC Benefits Agency, Inc

Empire HealthChoice Assurance,

Empire HealthChoice HMO, Ini

Forty-Four Forty-Four Forest Park Redevelopment Corpora

Golden West Health Plan, In
Government Health Services, L.L.
Greater Georgia Life Insurance Comp:
Health Core, Inc

Health Management Corporati

Health Ventures Partner, L.L.
HealthKeepers, Inc

HealthLink HMO, Inc.

HealthLink, Inc.

Healthy Alliance Life Insurance Compa
HMO Colorado, Inc

HMO Missouri, Inc.

Imaging Management Holdings, L.L.
Imaging Providers of Texe

IMASIS, L.L.C.

Landmark Solutions, LL(

Matthew Thornton Health Plan, In
Meridian Resource Company, LL

National Capital Preferred Provider Organizatiorc.

National Government Services, It
OneNation Insurance Compa
Park Square Holdings, In

Park Square I, Inc

Park Square I, Inc

R & P Realty, Inc

Radiant Services, LL¢

Rayant Insurance Company of New Yt
Resolution Health, Inc
RightCHOICE Insurance Compa
RightCHOICE Managed Care, Ir

Ohio
Pennsylvani:
Wisconsin
Delaware
Minnesots
Minnesots
Ireland
Minnesots
Minnesots
Ireland
Ireland
Kentucky
New York
New York
New York
Missouri
California
Wisconsin
Georgia
Delaware
Virginia
Illinois
Virginia
Missouri
Illinois
Missouri
Colorado
Missouri
Delaware
Texas
Delaware
New Hampshire
New Hampshire
Wisconsin
Maryland
Indiana
Indiana
California
California
California
Missouri
Indiana
New York
Delaware
lllinois
Delaware



Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, |

SellCore, Inc

Southeast Services, Ir

State Sponsored Business UM Services,
Summit Administrative Services, L.L.t
The WellPoint Companies, In
TrustSolutions, LLC

UNICARE Health Insurance Company of the Midw

UNICARE Health Plan of Kansas, Ir
UNICARE Health Plan of West Virginia, In
UNICARE Health Plans of Texas, Ir
UNICARE Health Plans of the Midwest, Ir
UNICARE lllinois Services, Inc

UniCare Life & Health Insurance Compa
UNICARE National Services, In
UNICARE Specialty Services, In

United Government Services, LL
ULIlIMED IPA, Inc.

WellPoint Acquisition, LLC

WellPoint Behavioral Health, In
WellPoint California Services, In
WellPoint Dental Services, In

WellPoint Holding Corp

WellPoint Information Technology Services, li

WellPoint Insurance Services, Ir
WellPoint Partnership Plan, LL

WPMI (Shanghai) Enterprise Consulting and Serviog Ctd.

WPMI, LLC

Colorado
Delaware
Virginia
Indiana
Missouri
Indiana
Wisconsin
Illinois
Kansas
West Virginia
Texas
Illinois
lllinois
Indiana
Delaware
Delaware
Wisconsin
New York
Indiana
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Hawaii
Illinois
China
Delaware



Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifoHewing Registration Statements:
* Form $-8 No. 33:-73516 and Form-8 No. 33:-110503 pertaining to the Anthem 2001 Stock Incenian;

* Form S-8 No. 333-84906 and Form S-8 No. 333-12388thining to the WellPoint 401(k) Retirement SggifPlan (formerly
Anthem 401(k) Lon-term Savings Investment Plai

» Form S-8 No. 333-97423 pertaining to the Trigon IHeare, Inc. 1997 Stock Incentive Plan; Trigon ltezare, Inc. Non-Employee
Directors Stock Incentive Plan; and Certain OptiGnanted to Consultants to Trigon Healthcare, |

* Form £-8 No. 33:-120851 pertaining to the WellPoint Health Netwolrks. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan; WellPoint Health\herks
Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan; WellPoint iebBletworks Inc. Comprehensive Executive Non-(fieadi Retirement Plan;
Cobalt Corporation Equity Incentive Plan; RightCHXBl Managed Care, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plagh®&HOICE Managed
Care, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan; RightCHOIMEnaged Care, Inc. Nonemployee Direc’ Stock Option Plan

* Form S-8 No. 333-121596 pertaining to the 2005 Qeimgnsive Executive Non-Qualified Retirement Plan;
* Form $-8 No. 33:-130743 pertaining to the WellChoice, Inc. 2003 Oousilncentive Plar

* Form S-8 No. 333-134253 pertaining to the WellP@d6 Incentive Compensation Plan;

* Form £-8 No. 33:-156099 pertaining to the WellPoint, Inc. Employ¢ecB Purchase Plal

» Form S-3 No. 333-178394 pertaining to the WellPdimt. automatic shelf registration; and

* Form £-8 No. 33:-159830 pertaining to the WellPoint Incentive Congadion Plar

of our report dated February 22, 2012, with respeethe consolidated financial statements and sdkeaf WellPoint, Inc., and our report dated
February 22, 2012, with respect to the effectiveradsnternal control over financial reporting ofeiPoint, Inc. included in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/s ERNST & Y OUNGLLP

February 22, 2012
Indianapolis, Indiana
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Angela F. Braly, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Weiht, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over financigloming, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors parsons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which au
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a sigmiffole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 22, 201 /s/ ANGELA F. BRALY

Chair of the Board, President a
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Wayne S. DeVeydt, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Weiht, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) designed such internal control over financigloming, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors parsons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which au
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 22, 201 /s/ WAYNE S. DEV EYDT
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial €f
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilmtc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perioddex December 31, 2011 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), |, Angela F. Braly, @haf the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamii8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9t Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s ANGELAF. BRALY
Angela F. Braly

Chair of the Board, President and Chief Executiffécér
February 22, 201
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilmtc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perioddex December 31, 2011 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortéte hereof (the “Report”), |, Wayne S. DeVeydteEtive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 980t Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ WAYNE S. DEV EYDT

Wayne S. DeVeyc

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Office

February 22, 201
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